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Group overview

WELCOME TO BARRATT
DEVELOPMENTS PLC

OUR AIM IS TO BE RECOGNISED
AS THE NATION’S LEADING
HOUSEBUILDER, CREATING
COMMUNITIES WHERE

PEOPLE ASPIRE TO LIVE.

Performance highlights

+ Total comnpletions, including joint
ventures, were 11,377 (2009. 13,277)

» Average selling price (excluding
joint ventures) up 10.9% to £174,300
(2009: £157,200), mainly due to
changes in mix.

+» Profit from operations before operating
exceptional items of £90 1m (2009-
£34.2m). Profit from operations of
£74.3m (2009 £485.3m loss).

* Loss before tax £162.9m (2009:
£6178 9my).

* Net debt reduced by £910 Om
since 30 June 2009 to £366.9m
(2008: £1,276 9rmn).

» Forward sales at 30 June 2010
were up by 27% at £5981 Tm (2009:
£464 3m) representing 3,889 plots
(2009 3,328 plots) At 5 September
2010 forward sales had increased
to £847 1m (2009: £696 3m).

Notice regarding limitations on Directar Hability nndar Englixh Law
Und. ﬂqup.nj s Act 2006 .nh harbotit limits the habiliry of Directars in respect
thand trorm the Repart of the Directors contained on pages 4
Il Under English Law the Directors would be Labie to the Cornpany (bui not te any

lhud party) if the Rapart of the Dirscion contuns arrors as & result of rackleszness
d cancealment of a metanal fact but would not

or ]
otherwise be Lable

Raport of the Directors

Pages 4 to 54 inchisres comprise the Raport of the Direciors which has bsendrawn

up and presentad in accordance with and in rehance upon Enghsh company law

and labilines oﬂml‘n ocmnmeonnxlionnmmluponshnublmb]ml the
and P ded by suchlaw

Cautionary statemant regarding forward looking statements

ThGroup Taport knehading thus d and wnen i d aroral

Stk HANt mads 1o the piubbe m foture by ar on behalf of the Gmp.mxym:un

mwud-bomq sutarsants Although the Groop that s e based
any -.bvul" il mybcmnu e-dhy

l toTs that could cause actual cl results to be
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Group overview

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

IN SUMMARY

Barratt Developments PLC is one of the nation’s largest
housebuilders with over 4,000 employees and 25 divisions
throughout Britain. In 2009/10 we sold over 11,300 homes.
We operate across all sectors of the market: from flats to
family homes and urban regeneration schemes. We also
have a focused commercial developments business.

Our land

Acquiring the right land is critical to our
business and its futare profitability

Our experienced land teams use their
local knowledge to identify land snitable
for development and secure planning

permission to enable new homes to be built.

Agreed terms land purchases
since mid-2009

£5271.2m

Owmed and controlled land
bank plots

62,340

(2009 €8,000)

Land bank years based upon
2010 completion volumes

5.5

(2008 & 0)

Detailed planning consents for
2010/11 expected completions

95%

(2009 96%)

Our homes

We build a variety of homes under our different
brand names ranging from those for first-time
buyers, family homes, high-rise flats and social
housing We seek to match our home types with
customer demand and local regulation.

Average number of active sites
(2009 436)
Total completions®
11,3717
(2009 13,317)
Houmse Flat completions
60%:40%
On 0
(2009 46% 54%)
Average selling price
(2009 £187,200)
» Qur site managers won 82 ‘Pride in the Job’
Quabty Awards (2009 76)- more than any

other housebuilder for anunprecedented
mxth consecutive year
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Where we sell

1 Northernregion
Number of complettons
2,029 {17 9%)

2 Central region
Number of completions
1,788 (15 8%0)

3 East region
Number of completions
2,066 (18 2%)

4. Southern region
Number of completions
2,248 (19 9%)

§ London
Number of completions
1,007 (8 9%)

6 Westregion
Number of completions
2,186 (19 3%)

Our customers

Customer service and satisfaction are of
paramount importance to us and our local
teams seek to ensure that our customers
are satisfied with their new homes

Proportion of customers who
would recommend us to a friend

91%

(2008 96%)

First volume housebulder to recerve the
maximum Five Star raung for custorer
satisfaction awarded by the Home Builders
Federation

» Awarded Dauy Telegraph Homebuilder of
the Year at the British Home Awards 2010

03

Our brands

Our housebuilding business trades under the
Barratt Homes, David Wilson Homes and Ward
Homes brands Barratt Homes is the best known
housebuilding brand in Britain focusing on
traditional housing, flats and urban regeneration
Dawid Wilson Homes has a reputation for producing
larger family homes We also have a strong regional
brand, Ward Homes, operating in Kent and the
SouthEast Commercial developments are mainly
delivered by Wilson Bowden Developments.

! Total complations
ara defined as
housebuikcing
completions
£010 11,325
2009 13,202) plus
compistons from
foint ventures in
whuch the Group
has a share 2010
52,2009 75)
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Group overview

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

LOOKING AFTER
YOUR INTERESTS

This has been an important year for the Group: the recovery
of the housing market continued, we recapitalised the business
and started to see the benefits of a much improved operational
performance. As a result we achieved a profit after tax in the
second half of the year and signuficant improvements in quality

and customer service.

Market conditions

Dunng the year conditions in the housing
market in Britain steadity mproved
Nevertheless, by historic standards the
market remaned difficult and actvity levels
continued to be extremely low In terms of
the number of house buyers and sellers

The key restriction on the industry remains
the avalability of mortgage finance Whilst
there was some improvement during the year,
the lack of avalabibty of surtable higher loan
to value products continued to restrct the
new bulld sector where custorner deposits
have tradimonally been lower

With demand continuing to be constraned,
the industry responded by opening fewer
sites and contreling stock better Whilst the
improved balance between supply and
demand has stabilised prices, it has done
Ittle to address the nation’s fundamental
housing shortage which In the longer term
will underpin the sector’s growth

Qur response

Qur response 10 the restnctions that the current
market conditons impose has been very clear
QOur prienties have been drwving efficiency and
optimising seling price growth As aresult,
we have reduced volumes but have driven
significant margin improvement, especially

in the second half of the year

Awtal component of our response to market
conditions has been to overhaul many
operatonal aspects of our business This has
lowered costs and has also driven far-reaching
improvements n the quality of our business

The quality of our homes has never been
higher For the first tme in the Group's history
we: have achieved Home Bullders Federation
Five Star status, the highest achievable level,
in terms of customer sattstaction and whether
we would be recommended to a fnend
Agdrtionally, under the NHBC ‘Prde in the Job'
scheme our site managers have won more
quality awards than ever before and more
than any one of our competitors for the

sixth year running
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“The foundation of our future
business and marcan growth
18 the land we buy. We have
worked hard to maintain
our long-term relationships
with land sellers throughout
a very difficult period for
the industry and have
benefited from this durning
the year along with our
stronger financial position.”

The hugh level of quality has also helped
to underpin our pncing policy We are
determined 10 get the best possible price

for the outstancing homes that we build
and we have the nght sales and marketing
capabilities to achieve this

Average selling price increased by 10 9%
dunng the year and by 17 8% between

1 January and 30 June 2010 compared with
the same penod in 2009 This partly refiected
price inflaton but was manly drven by the
changing profile of what we build Customer
demand and mortgage avallabity have both
driven a change n our product mix away from
flats towards houses This change in mix will
continue as we start to build on the marny
sites we have successhully replanned,
waorking together with local authonties

A stronger financial position
Dunng the year we substantally mproved our
financial position and reduced our debt levels
We strengthened our balance sheet through
the Placng and the Rights Issue which raised
gross proceeds of £720 5m We also amended
our financing arrangements This was an
important strategie move for us enabling us 1o
develop exsting sites and to take advantage of
attractive new land purchasing opportunities
Qur improved operational performance and
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strong cash management also contnbuted
to a further reduction in debt levels by the
year end

As previously indicated and in accordance
with the terms of our financing arrangements,
no dradend will be paid in respect of the 2010
financial year However, the Board 1s committed
to reinsisting the payment of dwdends when
1t 1s appropnate to do so

Securing land for the future
The foundation of our future business and
rnargn growth 15 the land we buy We have
worked hard to mantain our long-term
relationships with land sellers throughout a
very difficult penod for the mndustry and have
benefited from this dunng the year along with
our stronger financial position This enabled
us to expand successiully our presenca in
the land market, securing a strong flow of
potentaly high margin sites, with a view to
growing margin further We have mamntained
adhscipined approach Wherever possible we
are acqunng land on deferred terms and we
have recently increased our hurdle rates to
ensure that we secure only the best
opporiunties

Our employees

As Charman, I spend a considerable amount
of time with our employees at all levels

We have n place an exceptionally able and
expenenced senor management team

They are supported by our employees who
are | beleve amongst the very best in the
industry These have been difficult tmes for
our people and thew families and they should
take agreat deal of pride from the strength of
the busingss's recovery We are now operating
more efficiently but also at far higher quality
levels and that would not have been possible
without ther cornmitment, skill and resilience

The future
Wiulst economic uncertainty may nfluence
the Company's future, the capabilities of the
Group are strong and continuing 1o develop
We have a skilled work-force, a strong land
bank and an improving financial position
We are at the forefront of many of the changes
that will dominate the industry In future years
evolving customer demand, design and
envirenmental standards and changes in
planning We are therefore well equipped

te now and in the future

Bl Lo

Chairman
7 Septernber 2010
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06 Group overview

GROUP CHILEF

EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
REBUILDING PROFITABILITY

We have delivered a much improved operating performance in a slowly
recovering housing market. We have strengthened the balance sheet,
significantly improved the efficiency of the business, enhanced the
quality and value of our housing and secured a strong supply of high
value land. Whilst the housing market is likely to remain challenging,
we are now well placed to secure further margin growth.

“Dunng the year we have focused
on securing the maximum price
for every sale. As a Group we are
prepared to accept lower sales
volumes to preserve value.”

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQUNTS 2¢i0

Performance

We Increased profit from operations before
exceptional tems by £65 9m to £90 1m with

a significant improvernent in operating margin
before exceptional items to 4 4% (2009 1 5%)
Operating margin before exceptional items
increased i059% (2009 1 8%) n the second
half of the financial year and in the same penod
we achieved a profit after tax of £8 0m Operating
exceptional tems of £15 8m (2009 £519 5m)
reduced profit from operations to £74 3m
{2009 £4853m loss) for the financial year

QOur Placing and Rights Issue coupled with
continuing tight controt of working capital
enabled us 1o reduce net debt by £910 0m
to £366 9m

Our priorities

QOur overriding objectve 1s 10 rebuild profitatilty
and we have set out three clear prnonties

to achieve ths optirmising margin, IMproving
operational effciency and secunng high value
future land We have made considerable
progress In each of these areas and by doing
s0 have started to rebuild the profitabilty of

the Group




A CLEAR SET OF PRIORITIES TO
REBUILD PROFITABILITY

» Optimising margin

We remain focused upon margin
improvement through optimising selling
prices not pursuing volumes.

» Operational efficiency

We continue to focus upon improving
operational efficiency including controlling
costs throughout the business.

» Targeted land buying

We are investing 1n land which we expect
to deliver attractive returns in the future.

Maximising value

During the year we have focused on secunng
the maximum price for every sale As a

Group we are prepared to accept lower sales
volumes {0 preserve value Procedures are in
place to ensure strict pneing discipline in every
region and across every development

Average selling price rose by 10 9% to
£174,300, with average private seling pnces
increasing by 11 2% to £185,200 In the second
hali, we saw average selling price increasing
by 17 8% to £180,700 on the prior year
equivalent perod These increases were
manly as a result of changes in mix

At the same time private reservation rates per
actve site per week dunng the year increased
by 4 2% from an average of 0 48 to an average
of 050 We have achieved this through a better
mix of prociuct, mproverment in our sales and
marketing and a focus on the quality of our homes.

We are bulding more houses to satisfy custormer
demand Excluding the London market where
the majonty of completions are flats, 65 9% of
completions were houses compared with S0 5%

during the prior year The mix of buyers has also
changed as the proporbion of Investor sales has
fallen o 101% compared with 24 8% last year

Improvements in our markeling capabiiity have
been anmportant factor New leads generated
from our websites have continued o ncrease
and we have a new centralsed inbound call
centre At the point of sale, further resources
have been invested N ImMproving cormersion
rates through the enhanced presentation of cur
sales centres and on-site sales technology via
the roli-out of our |-Sales system

In addiion to the record amount of awards

the Group has recenved for quality dunng the
year, we are the only volume housebulder to
have introduced a five-year wamanty This
covers fixtures and fithings and 1s additional to
the ten-year National House-Butlding Council
warranty on the fabng of the building Dunng the
year this has been working effectively as a pont
of sale incentve for the customer

The combination of product marketing and
on-stte sales capabilty has been particularty
mportant N driving sales of the Government

07

Achievement of
our priorities 1s
summarised on
page 10

backed HomeBuy Direct product dunng the year
We sokd 1,735 homes (2009 138 homes) under
thrs scheme

Cost reduction

Driving operational efficiency has remaned
a significant focus for the organisation
During the year we saw a reduction in
buid costs reflecting the actions we had
already taken

Qur matenal supply contracts have continued
t0 be renegotiated Howewver, it (s ikely that
some pressure will be felt in future as raw
matend pnces nse in ine with the recovery
of the econormy

Longer term efficiency savings have been
identified and implermented in a number of
areas By reviewing our purchasing we have
consoldated a number of our supply chans
Standard house-type construction costs have
been reduced and we have Increased our
focus on delivering further reductions wherever
possible Standard house-type costs are
benchmarked across the Group every six
months to ensure the lowest cost 1s achieved

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REFORT AND ACGOUNTS 2010
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08 Group overview

Group Chief Executive’s review

whilst mantaining the quality of our homes
Qverall, we have seen housebuilding total build
costs (including nfrastructure) reducing by

4 7% per square foot

further efficiency savings and reductions In
operabing costs have been achieved through
the roll-out of our Quality and Cost programme
which promotes and shares best practice Inthe
build process across the Group and has been
supported by the introduction of new hand

held terminal technclogy to all of our sites

Land and planning

Our strategy has been to replan exsting sites
and to secure appropriate future land to seek
o ensure margin growth

In the last twehwe months we have replanned

a number of sites In particutar we have been
successful at replacing flats with new purpose-
desgned house-types This ensures that we are
bulding the nght mix of products for our
customers in particular given the landing
restnctions that stilt favour houses over flats

Longer term margin growth wilt be influenced
by the qualty of the land we are able to secure
and brng into producton We have been able
to take advantage of highty attractive land
opporiunites n targeted areas In the latter half
of the year we have seen competition to buy
land increasing, but given the early success

of our land buying teams, we have maintained
a disciplined approach and have continued to
secure opporiunities above our hurde rates

Since re-entering the land market in rid-2009,
until 30 June 2010 we had agreed terms on
£527 2m of land purchases, the majonty of
which were on deferred terms  This equates
to 96 sites and 13,358 plots with an expected
average seling price of ¢ £197,000 Of the
13,353 plots, 51% are located in the South

of England

Commercial Developments

In November 2009, we disposed of Atlantic
Quay 5 for £25 O0m with an exceptional
impairment of £4 8m This sale completed
the planned dvestment of legacy assets
from the Wilson Bowden Developments
portfolio for a total of around £200m

Government policy

it 1s ikely that there will be sigrificant changes
to Government housing policy as the new
Government 1s commitied to moving from

a policy based on central targets to a more
devolved framework and also implementing
significant cuts In expenditure Whilst there s
some uncertanty surrounding planning and
funding for social housing, the short-term
impact on our business is likely to be imited
We have detaled planning consent in respect
of 95% of forecast completions for the year
ending June 2011, cutline consent Inrespect
of an additional 3%, and a fwgh level of
contracted Government funding

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010

“Since re-entering the
land market in mud-2009,
until 30 June 2010 we had
agreed terms on £527 2m
of land purchases, the
majorty of which were
on deferred terms ”




We are committed to workang closely with local
communities and lecal councils o ensure that
we can provide the housing that is required

to high environmental and design standards
This will require genuine partnerships and

new ways of collaborating, many of which are
already emerging We are determined to be

at the forefront of these changes

Partner of choice

Duning the year we have also mads

progress In secunng land through nnovatve
arrangements and partnerships, particularty
with the public sector Cur specalist Urban
Regeneration team, workang with our dvisions,
secured 1,614 units on six sites through public
sector partnerships with a gross development
value of £200m In Newcastle we have formed
a public/private partnership with the council to
regenerate the Scolswood area of the city over
a 15 year period

The Homes and Communities Agency ((HCA')
has selected the Group for each of its three
area based Delvery Partner Panels {{DPP")
We are now working with the HCA in bidding
for projects on HCA and local authonty land
across the country Cur first contract under
thes arrangenent has now been awarded

n Plymouth where we have been selected for
Phase 1 which includes 247 new homes and
a new mixed-use commurity hub We are
pleased to see that the DPP framework 1s
baing used by a significantly greater number of
local authonties than we onginally envisaged

Health, safety and the enviroranent
Finding the lowest cost solution to meet
increasingly demanding bulding regulations
18 an important work stream for the Group
Our objective i1s to secure a position as the
lowest cost provider comphying with the
Code for Sustainable Homes {the ‘Code’)
Dunng the year we bullt 1,765 homes to
Code Level 3 or abave and we are already
starting 1o buld developments at higher
Code levels where required

We have started on site at Hanham Hall, the UK's
first large-scale zero carbon housing development
and are welt acvanced with research to identify
ways of buiding a Code Level 4 house without
the need for renewable sources of power As
well as seeking technological solutions, we wil
continue to discuss with Government the maest
cost-effective way of meeting the environmental
challenges facing the industry

We continue o place the highest pnonty

on the safety of our employees, contractors,
customers and the wider community within
which we operate Dunng the financial year
our Injury Incidence Rate (‘'lIR") was 582 (2009
571 (restated)) per 100,000 persons employed
which s a 2% increase on last year's figure
This ncrease can be largely attributed to
additonai shp and trip incidents due to the
bad weather n the first quarter of the 2010
calendar year We are committed to mproving
health and safety and have established an
Executive Health and Safety Committee, which
reports to the Board, to drive impravernent

09

Onutlook

The outiook for new housing remams challenging
as a result of continuing constraints on the
avalabity of mortgage finance and overall
ECONONEC CONCarms

Aganst this background we will remaimn focused
o mproving prefitability by achieving full value
for the homes we buld and mantaining tight
controt of costs

In-linewith normal seasonal trends we have
seen a slow-down in trading following the
end of the spring selling season Over the

10 weeks since the financial year end, net
private reservations have averaged O 48 (2009
0 51) peractive site per week Thisis slightly
down on the prior year, when sales rates for the
traditionally quieter penod were stronger than
normal, but 1s In-ine with the rate required to
achieve our projected velumes for the current
financatysar Cancellation rates have remained
low atan average of 11 0% (2009 12 3%) for
the year to date

We are targeting total cornpletions for this
financia) year at 5-10% higher than 2010, dnven
by increasing our numbers of outlets rather than
hugher sales rates Our focus continues 1o be
on optmsing seling pnees rather thar: pursung
volumes We expect to see a further shift In
product mix, with houses likely to represent at
least 65% of total velumes, resulting in a modest
Increase n average selling pnce

Mark Clare
Group Chief Executive
7 September, 201
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10 Group overview

OUR PROGRESS
CLEAR SET OF PRIORITIES

The overriding objective that we have set for the business is to
rebuild our profitability. We will do this through focusing upon three
key priorities: optimising margin, operational efficiency and targeted
land buying. At the same time we will continue to focus upon our
continuing objectives of customer service and qualty, investing

in our people, the homes that we build, environmental and social
responsibility and managing our cash flow. Cur progress upon

these areas is set out below.

Key priorities to rebuild our profitability:

Comments Progress

Optimising margin The average selling price of our homes in the
We are focused upon margin improvement year was £174,300 (2008 £157,200) an increase
through optumising average selling prices of 10 8% prnimanty due to a sigruficant change
not pursuing volumes n product mux with houses representung 60%

(2009 46%) of our housebtulding completions

Operational efficiency Profit from operations before exceptional

‘We continue to focus upon ensuring operational tems wan £30 Im (2009 £34 2m), an in¢rease
efficencyincluding controlling costs throughout  of 183 8% on the prior year

the business

Operating margin before exceptional items
was 4 4% (2008 1 5%)

Targeted land buying Since mud-2008, we have agreed terms on
We are investing in land which we expect £827 2m of land purchases, the majority of which
to deliver attractive returns in the future are on deferred terms This equates to 96 sites

and 13,389 plots of which 77% are for houses
Land additions during the year were £339m
{2009 £218m)

Our owned and controlled land bank consists
of 62,340 plota (2009 68,000) which equates
to 8 5 (2000 6 0) years supply at 2010
completion volumes

' Profit from operations was £74 3m (2008 £485 3m loss)
Operating margin was 3 7% (2009 21 2% loss)

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUALREPQRT AND ACCOUNTS 2010




Our continuing objectives:

Customer service and quality

We are commutted to bulding quality homes
and our teams seek to ensure that our customers
are satisfied with their new home

‘We continue to make progress in improving
customer service and 97% (2009 96%) of our

8 independently surveyed said they
wonld recommend us to a fnend

In Apnl we became the first major housebwlder
to receive the maximum Five Star rating for
customer satisfaction awarded by the Home
Bullders Federatton

Our site managers won 82 (2008 76) 'Pnide
inthe Job’ Quality Awards, more than any
other housebuilder for an unprecedented
s1xth consecutive year

11

Commenis Progress

Investing in our people

We recogiuse that one of cur key strengths:s
our people and have therefore continued to
invest in them and thewr expertise

Dunng the year many of our employees have
benefited from our sales and markeung,
construction and leadershup development
programmes

The Group continues o target a fully Construction
Shlls Certification Scheme ("CSCS") carded and
quahfied workforce

The homes that we build

We serve all sectors of the market, creating
homes for sale and shared ownership and
work with many partners on a range of urban
regenerahon schemes

Qur wide product range vanes from homes
for first tume buyers, family hornes and fats
to social housing We also have a focused
commeraal developments business

Total completions for the year were 11,377
{2009 13,277) mcluding 52 (2009 75) joint
venture completions in which the Group had
ashare Social housing accounted for 16 §%
(2009 15 7%) of completons excluding
Jount ventures

Environmental and

social responsibility

We seek to manage environmental, social

and governance nsks throughout our business

‘We continue to make progress developing lower
cost solutions to meetincreasing envirorirerntal
standards Dumng the year we built 1,765 homes
thatmeet Code Level 3 or above

T0% of our completions in the year were buzlt
on brownfield land (2008 70%)

Health and safety 18 of paramount importance
for our employees, customers and the public
During the year our Injury Incidence Rate ('IIR")
was 582 (2008 5717 per 100,000 employees
largely due to inczeased ship and trip incidents
owang t¢ the bad weather in the first quarter of
the 2010 calendar year

Managing cash flow

Following the completion of our Placing
and Raghts Issue 1n November 2009, we
have continued to focus upon managing
our cash flow

Net debt at 30 June 2010 was £366 8m, £910 Om
lower than the prior year

The Placing and Righis Issue coninbuted net
proceeds of £693 Om, there was an outflow of
£111 1Im related to exceptional inance costs
ansing from the Group's amended financing
arrangements and £2 2m related to the purchase
of shares for the Group's EBT and the remainung
inflow of £330 3m waz due to cash [lows from
operations, Interest and taxation

?Onginally reported as 522 but restated due to late notfications

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010
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BUSINESS REVIEW
HOW WE HAVE DONE

Our beach front development at Honeycombe Beach
1n Boscombe has played an important role in the
regeneration of this part of Bournemouth
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OUR PERFORMANCE
REBUILDING OUR
PROFITABILITY

Whilst there has been some recovery in the
housing market during the year, the environment
in which we operate has remained challenging,
with mortgage finance still constrained for many

of our potential customers.

“Dunng the year we have
continuzed to focus upon
dnving operational
efiiciency. We have reduced
our standard house-type
construction costs and have
increased the use of these
wherever possible.”

We delivered a profit from operaticns betore
operating exceptonal items of £90 1m (2009
£34 2m) at a marginof 4 4% (2009 1 5%)
After exceptional tems of £15 8m (2009
£519 5m), our profit from cperations was
£74 3m (2009 £485 3m loss)

The Increase In cperating margin before
exceptional items can be explained by a
number of factors We achieved a 3 6%
IMprovernent upon revenue per square foot
on housebulding completions and a 4 7%
reducticn per square foot on housebuiiding
buikd costs {including infrastructure) These
coupled with other items resufted In a gross
margin before exceptional tems of 91%,

a 3 4% increase on the pnor year Although
admiristratve costs reduced year-on-year
from £95 2m to £94 7m, this reduced
operating margin by 0 5% Overall there
was a 2 9% improvement in cperating
margin before exceptional tems in the year

Housebuilding

Dunng the year, we operated from an average
of 360 (2009 436} active sites  Visitor numbers
were lower than in the pnor year at 182

(2009 1 95} per active site per week but our
sales conversion rate was higher with an
average of 0 50 (2009 0 48) net private
reservations per active site per week

Total completions were 11,377 (2008 13,277)
ncluding 52 (2009 75) from joint ventures in
which we have a share Housebuilding
completions totalled 11,325 (2009 13,202),

a decrease of 14 2% reflecting fewer active
sites dunng the year Housebuilding revenue

totalled £2,000 1m (2008 £2,095 8m) Of the
housebulding completions, private were 9,455
{2009 11,133), and soctal were 1,870 {2009
2,069) Socal housing completions represented
16 5% of completions in the year, versus 157%
in the prior year

Our average seling price Increased by 10 9%
to £174,300 (2009 £157,200) mainty as a resull
of changes in max but also reflecting some
underlying sales price inflation

Private average sellng prices increased by

11 2% to £185,200 {2009 £166,500) pnmanty
due to anumber of mix changes including an
increased proportion of houses compared to
flats, a 18% increase due to our development at
Rochester Row in London with a private average
seling pnce of £1,022,900 and geographical
mix changes Achieving the optmum sales
price upon every plot that we selt has remained
a key focus for the business during the year

The average revenue that we achieved upon
private completions per square foot increased
by 3 6% 0 £191 7 (2009 £1850)

Our social average selling pnce increased
by 11 6% to £119,500 (2009 £107,300) due
to changes i mx including an increase I
the average square footage of our social
completions of 6 1% to 799 square feet

The avalabiity of mortgage finance at higher
loan {o value ratios remains constramned

and accordingly 27 0% (2009 11 4%) of our
completons this year have used shared equity
products Of these completions, 1,735 (15 3%)
{2009 138 {1 0%)) have used HomeBuy Direct
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and the remainder have used our own
Headstart or Dreamstart schemes The option
of part-exchange also remains an effective
seling tool, with 9 6% (2009 11 8%} of our
completions in the year supported by this We
continue to manage carefully our commitment
and exposure to part-exchange properties

During the year we have continued 1o focus
upon drving operational efficiency We have
reduced cur standard house-type construction
costs and have increased the use of these
wherever possible We benchmark our standard
house-type costs across the Group every six
months Overall, we have seen a reduction in
total buid costs (Including infrastructure) with
the cost per square foot reducing by 4 7%

We will continue to drive other cost savings and
operatonal efficency dunng the current financial
year However in future, i 1s ikely that some
pressure will be felt as raw matenal pnces nse
in-line with the recovery of the econommy

The benefit of our strategies of optmising the
sales price of every plot and controlling our
costs can be seen in the year with a significant
impravement 1 cur housebulding operating
margin before exceptional items to 4 6%
{2009 1 9%) and 5 9% (2009 2 7%) for

the second half of the financial year Our
housebuitding profit from operations before
exceptional tems for the year was £914m
{2009 £38 8m) After operating exceptional
itemns of £110m (2009 £446 4m), the
housebuiiding profit from operations was
£80 4m {2009 £4076m loss)

Commercial Developments
Conchtions in the commerctal property market
remain challenging Whilst investor demand for
well located prime stock came back strongly
in the final quarter of 2009, this demand had
stabilised by the second quarter of 2010
Revenue from the commercial developments
business totalled £35 1m (2009 £189 4m)

with a loss from operations before exceptional
tems of £1 3m (2009 £4 6m) After exceptional
items of £4 8m (2009 £73 1m), the loss from
operations was £6 1m (2009 £777m}

During the year, we disposed of Atlantic
Quay 5, acommercial property n Glasgow
for £25 Om with an exceptional iImparment
of £4 8m, completed a 70,000 square feet
warehouse and office facdity at the Kingsway
site in Rochdale and also completed a number
of land disposals at positve margins We
have also recently exchanged contracts with
JD Sports to complete an 866,000 square
feet warehouse and distnbution centre In
Rochdale, which 1s scheduled for completion
n spring 2011

The disposal of Atlantic Quay 5 duning the
financial year completed the planned sale
of legacy assets from the Wilson Bowden
Developments portfolio for a total of
around £200m
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“The benefit of our strateqies
of optimising the sales price
of every plot and controlling
our costs can be seenin
the year with a sigruficant
improverment in our
housebuilding cperating
margin before exceptional
items to 4.6% (2009. 1 9%)
and 5.9% (2009. 2.7%)
for the second half of the
financial year.”
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THE HOMES WE BUILD
OUR STRENGTH

Our aim is to be recognised as the nation’s
leading housebuilder creating communities
where people aspire to live.

“We continue to serve all
sectors of the market,
creating homes for sale,
shared ownership and
affordable rental and work
with Government agencies
and housing associations
on a broad range of urban
regeneration schemes.”

Geographic and product diversity
We operate throughout Britain under the Barratt
Homes and Dawvd Wiison Homes brands and
n Kent and the South East under the local
Ward Homes brand At 30 June 2010, we were
selling from 339 (2009 376) acive sites across
25 dvisions

We continue to serve all sectors of the market,
creating homes for sale, shared ownership and
affordable rental and work with Government
agencies and housing associations on a broad
range of urban regeneration schemes Our wide
product range vanes frorm homes for first time
buyers, family homes and high nse flats to socil
housing and commercial development Privale
seling pnces dunng the financial year ranged
from £46,500 to £2 1m, wath a private average
selling pnce for the year of £185,200 (2009
£166,500)

Duning the year, we completed 1,735 (2009
138) homes under the HomeBuy Direct
scheme including 1,673 from the initial allocation
of HomeBuy Direct, which has to be completed
by the end of September 2010 Our HomeBuy
Cirect funding from Kickstart 1 and Kickstart 2
for ¢ 510 units has been secured together
with ¢ £311m of other Government funding

In addtion to the Government supported
HomeBuy Direct scheme, we also supported
1,325 (2009 1,368) purchasers with cur own
shared equity schemes

The provision of social housing remains a key
component of our actvities with 1,870 (2009
2,069) homes completed during the financal
year ended 30 June 2010 at an average selling
price of £119,500 (2009 £107,100)
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The Homes and Communities Agency ('HCA) :
has established a Delivery Pariner Panel ‘
(‘DPP} framework to develop its sies, which |
can also be used by local authorty partners

for develeping their land The DPP framework

will exist for three years and s split nto three

regional clusters — Northern, Central and

Southempanels As one of only two national

housebuiders appointed to all three panels,

we are able to work closely with the HCA

in biddding for projects on HCA and local

authonty owned land across the country

We are pleased to see the DPP framework

beirg used by a significantly greater number of

local authonhies than we onginally envisaged

People and expertise

We believe that one of our key strengths

1S our people and that despite the current
economic envirenment it 1$ important to
continue to develop and wwvest in them and
therr expertise Accordingly, we have continued
to invest in our vocational and leadership
traming programmes as well as employee
development, engagement and recogniion

Durnng the year we have launched the Barratt
Acadenmy, which combines professional traning !
fon-site and in the classroom) wath industry-
recogrised qualfications The Academy wil
delver trade specialists, site managers and
comrnercal and techrical speciaists Since its
launch, 48 Site Managers and 48 Assistant Site
Managers have joined the programme and
100 apprentices are beng recrurted for the

first intake of the Apprenticeship Programme

in September 2010 In addition, we have four
leadershp development programmes in place
10 assst with the development of managers
dentdied within our succession plan
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We also have a Graduate Recrutment and
Development Programme consisting of a
two-year multi-disciplinary programme Due
to the downiturn in the sector, we decided not

to increase the number of graduates in the
programme In the year to 30 June 2010 Howevey,
we have recruted 30 graduates under the
programme who joined the business In

August 2010

During the year, we have remaned focused

on employee engagement with our third annual
engagement survey Seeing an INcrease In
participation to 71% and a 3% improvernent

in our employee engagement score compared
with 2009 We have continued o reward

our employees gving over 1,400 indrdual
expenence pnzes or additional hohday Qur
structured recognibion Programme 1S ongoing
wath quarterty and annual dwvisional awards
and annual national awards for Site Managers,
Sales Advisers, Apprentices, Indmdual
Excelence and Tearmn Excellence

The expertise of our construction teams has
agan been recognised externally, with 82
{2009 76) of our Site Managers winning ‘Pride
in the Job' quality awards from the National
House-Building Council This 1s more than
any other housebuilder for an unprecedented
sixth consecutive year

Our target was to have a fully carded
Construction Skils Certrficabon Scheme (CSCS')
workforce, Including subcontractors, by 2010

At 30 June 2010, 97% (2009 85%) of the
Group's workforce, including subcontractors,
was fully CSCS carded and we continue to
target a 100% CSCS carded workforce

Corporate responsibility

We are committed to the pnnciples of
Corporate Responsibinty {{CR'} as stated

in our CR poliey which 1s avaitable at

www barrattdevelopments ¢o uk We have
wdentified and assessed the key CR rnisks facing
the business, which include Environmental,
Social and Governance ((ESG') nsks, and have
grouped these into four key philosophres so
that we can manage them effectively The
four philosophies People, Partners, Planet
and Customers are underpinned by our
commitment to financial performance and
Health and Safety These are eachled by a
member of the Executive Commuittee who 1s
responsible for developing and implementing
CR related objectives and targets to achieve
the overall CR strategy set by the Board

This ensures that CR 1ssues are embedded in
the normal course of business and decisions
affecting CR issues can be implermented

swiftly at an operational level This process
ensures that adequate information in relation to
ESG matters 1s available to the Board Significant
ESG nisks that could impact on the future of
the business are included n the Principal nsks
and uncertainties section on pages 26 and 27

We publish a CR report each year that explains
our approach and our management of CR
governance and nsk, and includes the actions
we have taken during the year to improve CR
performance CR disclosures in the Annual
Report and CR Report, ncluding disclosures
on ESG matters, are based on nformation
collected annually and from reguiar managernent
information This information 1s subject to
external independent review and internal audit

Envirenment

Qur develepment actmties have the potential
to mpact significantly on the environment

and we are subject to extensive and complex
regutations and an Increasingly stnngent
regulatory environment including planning and
techmcal requrements, such as a requrement
for all new homes to achieve zero carbon
emissions by 2016 In response 1o these
challenges we follow a strong environmental
agenda which focuses on managing our
envircnmental iImpact, helping our customers
to imprave the ervaronment, improving the
environmental standards of what we build and
making cur supply chain more sustainable

We are committed to undertaking research
and development that will enable us to
respond to the Increasingly demanding design
criteria for new housing In 2008 we were the
first mayjor housebuilder to buid a prototype
home to Level 6 of the Code for Sustanable
Homes (the '‘Code’}, the highest fevel
attanable We are currently bulding one of
the first large scale zero carbon communities
in Britaun, in partnership with the HCA, at
Hanham Hall near Bnistol The development
includes 185 new homes built to Code Level 6
and the total refurbishment of the hall itself

The key performance indicator that we use

o monitor ervironmental performance is the
average amourt of carbon diade ermitted
dunng the constructon process per legal
completon Ths metne reduced shghtly thes year
1o 1,787 KgCO, /unit (2008 1,804 KgCO, /unit
{restated)) We are targeting a reduction in energy
use of 20% over three years and are looking at
ways to mprove this reduction Dunng the year
we camed out energy audits on sample
developments 1o understand energy usage in
more detall and the opporturities for Increasing
energy efficency
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We monttor the proporbon of construction waste
segregated for recyciing on site, which this year
improved to 91% (2009 73%) In addon, we
continually monitor cur performance aganst ouwr
environmental management system via regular
compliance audits on all sites

Health ard safety

We consider heatth and safety to be of paramount
importance for our employees, customers and
the public All our divisions are certified to the
health and safsty standard OHSAS 18001 which
s vertfied by a programme of ntemal and external
audits This ensures that we have consistent
and approprate standards inplace and Is
complernented by our own comprehensive
Safety, Heslth and Ervronmental (SHE)
Managerment Systern We continually morstor
our performance aganst our SHE Management
Systerm by camying out regular complance
audits on all stes Dunng the year we camed

out over 4,000 monitonng wsits and achieved

an average of 96% compliance (2009 96%) In
addition, a magenty of the Group's Safety, Heatth
and Ermaronment managers are certified to the
Insttute of Enrvronmental Management and
Assessment standard and are able to underiake
reguiar enviionmental audits on our sites

We use our reportable Injury Incdence Rate (‘iR
as a key performance indicator to measure health
and safety perforrnance on a monthly and yearly
basis Dunng the financial year ended 30 June
2010 our IR was 582 (2009 571 (restated)) per
100,000 persons employad This ncreasecan
largety be atinbuted to additional siip and tnp
incdents due to bad weather in the first quarter
of the 2010 calendar year We are committed to
reducing the lIR year-on-year and we are working
with our supply chain to ensure their supenrasory
staff are able to manage effectvely health and
safety risk on-ste.




The qualty of our management of heafth and
safety has also been recognised through the
receipt of six awards at the Inaugural NHBC
Health and Safety Awards 2010

The investigation by the Police and the Heatth
and Safety Executive into the incidert at
Bediont, London in February 2008, where
carbon monoxide paisoning from a gas heating
installation caused the death of one person and
left another senously ill, continues We continue
to work closety with the authonties

Partners

We recogrise that there are a large number

of stakehelders in our business and we am to
work with local, regional and national partners
and stakeholders to ensure the effective delivery
of housing needs

We create hormes for sale and shared ownership
and work with Govermment agencies, housing
associations and other bodies on a broad range
of ownership Intiatves Including HormeBuy Direct,
our own shared equity products and social
housing We have alse been apponted to every
HCA DPP and work with a wide range of public
sector regeneration agencies, local authonties
and Regstered Social Landlords {RSL}

We are committed 10 the Comtinuous Improvement
N the standard of our design for indmdual homes

and entire developments We have introduced
design gudelines to spread best practice
throughout the business and our nternal annual
design compettion promoates high standards

of design which focuses on the layout of
developments, the creation of places where

our customers want to Ive and compliance with
our own and national design standards

We have a speciilist public sector developments
team, which works on schemes delivering
homas on regenerated former public sector
land, and seeks to promote the highest
industry standards for community engagemert,
environmental practice and local employment
We also have a national team which prowides
expertse to our dvisions in the area of
affordable housing, grants and working

with RSLs

We continue to build the majonty of our
developments on brownfield sites, with
70% (2009 70%) of our legal completions
in the year being on brownfieid land,
which significantly exceeds the previous
Government's target of 60%

17

CASE STUDY OUR PEOPLE

OUR PEOPLEL
AWARD WINNERS

During the year, 82 of our Site Managers won NHBC 'Pride
n the Job' quality awards (2009 76) Additionally we have
internal awards for Site Managers, Sales Advisers,
Apprentices, Individual Excellence and Team Excellence

Apprentice of the Year - Theo Welsh (main picture), DWH South West
Theo received strong feedback at college and has successfully
completed his NVQ level 2

Sales Adwviser of the Year — Emma Welham (inset), Barratt North London
Emma achieved a customer satisfaction survey score of 99%

Other award winners

Site Manager of the Year - Darren Reaney, DWH North West
Individual Excellence - Rebecca Wasse, Bamratt Yorkshire West
Team Excellence - Group Procurement/Lead buyers
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LAND AND PLANNING
FUTURE INVESTMENT

Our strategy has been to replan existing sites and
undertake targeted land buying to seek to deliver
future margin growth. We have detailed planning
consents in place on 95% of land required for 2011
forecast completions and outline consent in respect

of an additional 3%.

Our land bank

Qur land bank consists of both owned and
controlled plots At 30 June 2010, we had
62,340 (2009 68,000) owned and controlled
plots consisting of 50,848 (2009 53,541}
owned/uncondtional plots and 11,392 (2009
14,459) plots under conditional contracts
This amounts to a 5 5 year land bank at 2010
financial year completions volumes (2009

6 0 years) In agdition, we have ¢ 11,000
(2009 10,400} acres of strategic land which
are regularty reassessed, until the necessary
ptanning consents are obtained, and carned
at the lower of cost and net realisable value
MMINIMISING our exposure to nsk from these
strategic land holdings

At 30 June 2010, our land bank had a carrying-
value of £2,308 7m (2009 £2,453 2m) with an
average cost per plot of £43,100 2009 £44,000)
The average selling price of the plots within our
tand bank s currertly expectad to be ¢ 180,000
gvng an average plot cost to average selling
price ratic of 24% (2009 26%)

Dunng the year, an mpairment to our land
bank carryng-value of £4 8m was recorded
inrespect of the disposal of Atlantic Quay 5,

a commerctal development Whilst our fand
bank carrying-value has been reviewed for
imparment at 30 June 2010 and no additonal
net impairment charge was required, should
UK house prnces or commercial property values
decline or nse infuture, further impairments or
reversals In imparrments of the carrying-value
of our land bank may be required

Land approvals since mid-2009

30 June 2010
Total approved £5272m
Total number of plots 13,358
Location
- South North (by value) 66% 34%
- South North {by plots) 51% 49%
Vendor
- Government Private 34% 66%
Type
- Brownfield Greenfield 60% 40%
—Houses Flats 7% 23%
Status
- Owned 52%
- Contracted 30%
- Praogressing 18%

Land acquisition

Each divsion has a dedicated land buying
team with local knowledge and expenence
These teams identify land suitable for
development and secure planning perrmission
to enable new homes to be bult This
capabilty, combined with our strategic land
portfohe, s designed to ensure that we have
sufficient land to meet customer demand

Qur future growth and profitability 1s influenced
by the quality of the land that we purchase
and develop Accordingly, one of our key
prionties has been targeted land buying and
since re-entenng the land market in mid-2008,
to 30 June 2010 we had agreed terms on
£527 2m of tand purchases, the maonty of
which we will acquire on the basis of deferred

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010




payment This equates tc 96 sites and 13,359
plots of which 77% are for houses With an
expected average selling prnce of ¢ £197,000,
based on current prices, the average plot cost
to average selling price ratio on this land would
be 20%

Dunryg the financial year, land additions were
£339m (2009 £219m) and £253m (2009
£264m) was spent on land resulting in land
creditors at 30 June 2010 of £566 8m (2009
£470 6m) of which £266 6m (2009 £225 4m)
fall due within one year

Whilst we will continue to pursue iand
opportuniies where the expected returns
exceed our hurdls rates, the rate of acquisition
15 ikely to slow given our success over the
past year and the increased competition in
tha market In addition, we expect cur cash
expenditure for land to ncrease reflecting the
payment as they fall due of deferred amounts
upon the land purchases acquired since
re-entenng the land market in mid-2009

Planning

In the year to 30 June 2009, we started the
replanning of a number of our sites 1o replace
flats with houses, a process which has continued
thes year The proportion of our completions
which were houses in the financial year was 60%
(2009 46%) Outskle London, houses were

65 9% (2009 50 5%) of completions.

There s currently some uncertainty surrounding
the planning process with the new Government’s
move from a policy based on central targets

to a more devolved framework. However, at

30 June 2010, detalled planning consents

were In place on 95% (2009 96%) of land
required 1o meet our forecast activity for the
2011 financal year In addition, we had outling
planming consents on a further 3% of our
forecast completion volumes

CRASE STUDY URBAN REGENERATION

URBAN
REGENERATION
CAMP HILL

Bluebell forms the final phase of a major multi-agency
partnership project transfornung the Camp Hill area of
Nuneaton — one of the most depnived areas in Britain -
inte a thriving sustainable communuty

Qur development will provide over 800 new homes, a
new High Street, open spaces and views Work1s well
under way on the first phase, with run-down and derelict
properties cleared to make way for 188 newhomes and
the first residents already settled in
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CUSTOMER SERVICE

AND QUALITY
OUR COMMITMENT

We are committed to offering the highest standards

of quality and customer service. We seek to develop

our quality and service standards by listening to
customers, monitoring performance and adopting
best practice throughout the Group.

Communicating with our
customers

Qur sales and marketing team has continued
to promote our brands throughout the year
using focused marketing campaigns This
included use of the internet, radio and drect
ma, targeted incentives and discounts for
customers and tools such as shared equity
products and part-exchange

We have completed the introducton of 1-Sales,
our new sales technology In our sales centres
across Bntain dunng the financial year |-Sales
combines website capability with the Group's
computensed custormer database

In December 2008 we launched our new
customer call centre to help with any enquines
to the Group The call centre enables us o
provide a consistent standard of service and
deal with high call volumes ensunng that
customers can eastly contact us The call
centre transfers the customer's details to

the appropnate Sales Adwviser so that we

can quickly cantact them and start to help
thermn with therr home purchase

Customer Care Charter

We have a Customer Care Charter which we
use to explan our commitment to customers
and to bnef and train our sales teams Dunng
the last twelve months we have sought to
embed further the Charter within our systems
and processes In particular we have rolled out
our Qualty and Cost programme, introduced
anew out of hours service and an online
customer enquiry procedure

We continue to make progress in Improving
customer service and dunng the year, 87%
(2009 96%) of our customers surveyed said
they would recommend us to a fnend These
scores form part of our overall customer
survey which our customers are contacted to
complete nine weeks after legal completion of
the purchase of ther new home We monitor
the results of the survey on a monthly basis
throughout our business

Continuing to develop our
customer service and sales
teams

We have completed the roll-out of our Quality
and Cost programme which implements

best practice in our pre and post completion
actmities, Including customer service We
also regularly share best practice amongst
our Customer Service Managers and have
introduced new hand held terminal technclogy
to all of our sites as part of the Quality and Cost
programme We have focused in particular
upon the early stages of the customer journey
and have introduced the Sales Development
Tracker (SDT') to our sales team

The SDT 15 a document personal to each
Sales Adwiser and records ther learming
and career progression to ensure that they
continually develop and improve therr skills
We believe that this will improve our Sales
Adwvigers’ efficiency and effectiveness, thus
improving the quality of service we provide
1o our customers
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Consumer Code

implementation

The Consumer Code was introduced as the

result of agreement between the housebulding

industry and the Government with the main

purpose to ensure that consumers

* are treated fanly,

* know what service levels to expect,

= are given reliable nformation on which 1o
make suitably informed decisions, and

* know how to access speedy, low cost
dispute resclution if they are dissatisfied

The Consumer Code applies to all reservations
made on or after 1 Aprl 2010 and only to
clams made within two years of the legal
completion date

We have developed point of sale matenal for
our sales offices to implement the Consumer
Code and have made changes to all of our
reservation forms 10 ensure that all stages

of the purchase process comply with the
Consumer Code and that customers are fully
informed through the sales process Wa have
also undertaken a training programime across
tha business for our Sales Advisers, Sales
Managers and dvisional management teams
to communicate the pnnciples and
requirements of the Consumer Code

Working with mortgage
providers

We also recognise the mportance of assisting
customers to find suitable financial assistance
1o purchase ther new homes The Group's
Lender Relations Manager works closaly with
morigage lenders in order to assure them that
the homes built by the Group are of a high
qualty which they can confidently lend on and
to gan thewr support for affordable housing
schemes such as HomeBuy Direct

External awards

Qur high quality homes have been recognised
independently by the achievernent of Five Star
burlder status i the Home Builders Federation
annual customer satisfaction survey and the
award of Dady Telegraph Homebuilder of the
Year at the Briish Homes Awards 2010

Five-year warranty

In addiion to the record number of awards
the Group has receved for quality dunng the
year, we are the anly volume housebuilder to
have introduced a five-year warranty This
covars fixtures and fittings and 1s additional

to the ten-year NHBC warranty on the fabnc
of the building Dunng the year this has started
to work effectively as a point of sale ncentve
for the customer

CASE STUDY CUSTOMER SERVICE

CUSTOMER SERVICE
HOMEBUY DIRECT

During the year, we completed 1,735 homes (2009 138
homesy) under the HomeBuy Direct scherne One of our
purchasers was Gareth Gay, a music teacher, who
purchased a two bedroom apartment 1n our New South
Quarter develepment in Croydon using HomeBuy Darect

Gareth was further attracted to our development as the
five-year warranty and range of white goods meant that
he would not have many other costs after he moved 1n
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GROUP FINANCE

DIRECTOR’S REVIEW
OPERATING EFFICENTLY

The Group has significantly improved its operating margin
and reduced its net debt against the backdrop of a market
that remained challenging throughout the year with
continued constraints on the availability of mortgage

finance and overall economic concerns.

“Profit from operations before
operating exceptional items
increased by 163% to
£90.1m (2009: £34.2m)...
Profit from operations was
£74.3m (2008: £485.3m loss).”
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Performance metncs were as follows

+ Revenue was £2,035 2m (2009 £2,285 2m)

+ Total completrons® decreased by 14 3%
to 11,377 (2009 13.277)

« Profit from operations before operatng
axceptional tems? increased by 163% to
£90 1m (2009 £34 2m)

+ Operating exceptional items? comprised
an impavment of iInventones of £4 8m
(2009 £493 5m), reorganisation costs
of £11 Om {2009 £271m) and a pension
curtailment gain of £nil (2009 £71m)

* Profit from operations was £74 3m
(2009 £4853m loss)

+ Operating margin before operating
axceptiona tems? was 4 4% (2009 1 5%)
* Adjusted loss per share before exceptional
items® was 2 9p (2009 15 6p (restated)

+ Basic loss per share was 14 5p (2009
89 1p {restated*)y)




Segmental analysis
Commarcial
Housebwilding developments Total
£m £m £m
Revenue 20001 351 20352
Profit{loss) from operations before operating
exceptional items? ey (13) 201
Profitdloss) from operations 804 61) 743

Segmental analysis

The Group's operations compnse of two
segments, housebulding and commercial
developments These segments reflect the
different product offenngs and market nsks
facing the business

An analysis of the operational performance
of these segments 15 provided within the
Business review on pages 13 and 14

Exceptional items

The Group incurred exceptional items betore
tax in the year of £128 9m (2009 £534 8m)
This compnsed operating exceptional items
of £15 8m (2009 £519 5m) and excephonal
finance costs of £114 1m (2009 £13 3m)

Operating exceptional items

1) Impairment of land and werk in progress
The Group recognised a total net impairment of
land and work in progress of £4 8m 2009

£499 bm} dunng the year relating to the disposal
of Atlantic Quay 5 in Novermnber 2009 for £25 0m
Thes sale completed the planned sale of legacy
assets from the Wilson Bowden Developrments
portfolo for a totat of around £200m

The Group has completed a site-by-site
impairment review using vatuations
incorporating forecast sales rates and average
seling pnces that reflected both current and
anticipated trading conditions  Since overall
average selling prices across the Group's
developments were primarnly in-ine with those
incorparated mnto pnor penod impairment
reviews no further mparrment was required

at 30 June 2010, although there were gross
impairment reversals and charges of £57 4m
due to vanabons in market conditions across
housebulding sites It should be noted that f

there were to be a future decling or nse in UK
house pnces then a further imparment or
reversal of impairment of the Group's land
bank may be required

u) Restructuring costs

Ourning the year, the Group continued to adjust
its operaticns in Iight of current trading
conditions resulting in £11 Om (2009 £27 1m)
of reorganisation and restructuring costs

Financing exceptional item

On 23 September 2009 the Company
announced a fully underwntten Placing and
Rughts Issue, rasing gross proceeds of

£720 5m, and the amendment of its financing
facikties The equity 1Issue was completed on

4 November 2009 and the armended financing
facilitles came into effect on 16 November 2009
As a consequence of amending the financing
arrangements the Group incurred £114 1m of
exceptional tems related to the amendments
to and prepayments of ndebtedness under
the Group's financing arrangements

Tax benefit of exceptional items
The tax benefit of the operating and financing
exceptonal items was £35 4m (2009 £148 3m)

Finance cost

The net finance charge before exceptional
costs for the year was £121 6m (2009
£1773m) This included a non-cash finance
charge of £30 9m (2009 £26 7m)

After financing exceptional costs of £114 1m
{2009 £13 3m), the net finance charge for
the year was £235 7m 2008 £190 8m}

For the financial year ending 30 June 2011 we
currently expect the total finance charge to be
approsmataly £105m, conssting of cash interest
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of around £75m on net debt including term debt
and around £30m of non-cash finance charge.

Tax

The Group's tax credi for the year was £44 5m
(2009 £210 3m), an effective rate of 27 3%
(2009 310%) This differed from the standard
rate of 28% mainly due to adjustments related
to prior periods

During the year, the Group receved tax
refunds totalling £53 8m relating to the carry
back of losses from the prior financial year

For the financial vear ending 30 Jure 2011 we
expect the total taxation charge 1o be around
the standard rate of corporation tax of 27%
excluding the impact of the charge ansing from
the reducton In the value of the Group's deferred
tax asset due to the change in the standard rate
of corporation tax from 28% to 27%

' Total completions of 11 377 (2009 13277}
compnse private completions of 9 455 {2009
11,133} soclal completions of 1 870 (2009 2 069}
and jomt venture completions of 52 (2009 75}

 Operating exceptional tems comprising
impairment of inventories and restructunng
costs wers £15 8m (2009 £519 Sm including
pension curtallment gain) of which £11 Om (2009
£446 4m) related to the housebulding business
and £48m (2008 £73 1m) related to the
commercal developments business

? Exceptional items compnse operating excepbonal
items of £15 8m (2009 £519 5m), exceptional
financa costs ansing from the amended financing
arrangemants of £1%4 1m (2009 £13 3m ansing
from redemphbon of certan prvate placement
nates} net imparment of Inventones relating
to investments accounted for using the squty
mathod of Enid (2009 £2 Om) and tha related
tax credit on exceptional items of £35 4m (2009
£148 3m)

* The number of shares in 1ssue has been revised
to reflect the Rights Issue as required by 1AS33
‘Earnings per Share which has adjusted the
loss per sharg
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Business review

Group Finance Director’s review

Cash flow
Year Halfyear Half year Half year  Half year
ended ended 31 ended Yearended ended 31 ended
30June December 30 June 30June December 30 June
2010 2009 2010 2009 2008 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net debt at start
of penod (1,276 9) (1,276 9) (6053) (1,68506) (1,6508) (1,4228)
Operating cash flow 3698 1014 268 4 5118 3078 2040
Tax and net interest paid (409) (52) (357) {100 3) {53 0) 473
Free cash flow 328 9 96 2 2327 4115 2548 1567
Acquistions - - - 40 39 {01
Investments In joint
ventures 18 52 70 (207) (24 5) 38
Net fixed asset
(purchasesyproceeds {04 02 02 02 14 (12)
Share 1ssue 7205 7205 - - - -
Share issue costs (27 5) (26 7) {0 8 - - -
Exceptional finance costs (1111) (110 8) {03} (133 - {133
Purchases of shares
for EBT 22 22 - - - -
Net debt at end of penod (366 9) (605 3) {366 9) (1,2768 (14228 (1,2769)
An analysis of the Group's free cash flow s as follows
Year Halfyear Half year Year Haffyear Half year
ended ended 31 ended ended  ended 31 ended
30 June December 30 June 30June December 30 June
2010 2009 2010 2009 2008 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit from operations
before operating
exceptional items' 901 210 691 342 160 82
Operating excepticnal
tems? (15 8} (158) - (519 5} (513 9) (56}
Total non-cash items
{excluding exceptional
write-off of unamortised
facility fees) (16 6) 30) {13 6} 5030 4950 80
Land, work in progress
and other inventories 1937 1490 447 7955 5163 2792
Other working capital 118 4 (49 8) 168 2 (301 4) (205 6) (95 8)
Operating cash flow 3698 101 4 268 4 5118 3078 2040
Net mierest pad (94 7) (58 8) {35 9) {151 §} 843 (67 3)
Taxation 538 536 02 613 313 200
Tax and net interest paid {40 9) 52 357) (100 3} 530} 47 3)
Free cash flow 328 9 96 2 2327 4115 254 8 156 7

' Operating exceptional items compnsing imparmeant of nventones and restructunng costs wera £15 8m
(2009 £519 5m comprised impaiment of inventories pension curtailment gain and réstructunng costs)
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Dividend

The Board suspended dividend payments

in June 2008 as part of its cash conservation
palicy The Board remains focused on
strengthening the balance shest and conserving
cash The exsting terms of the Group's
committed bank facilities and private placement
notes do not elow the declaration and payment
of dvidends in respect of the financial year
ended 30.June 2010

The Boardis committed to renstating the
payment of dvidends and will when it
becomes appropriate to do so

Losses recognised in equity
Duning the year £3 6m (2009 £70 4m) of losses
have beenrecogrised in equity predominanthy
relating to actuarial losses on the defined
benefit pension scheme partially offset by
moverments on interest rate swaps (2009
losses on interest rate swaps)

Balance sheet

The net assets of the Group Increased by
£668 6m to £2,900 2m primanly reflecting
the receipt of net proceeds of £693 Om from
the Group's Placing and Rights Issue and the
loss after tax for the year of £118 4m

Significant movernents in the balance

sheet included

* The Group s book value of land was
£2,308 7m 2009 £2,453 2m), a decrease
of £144 5m Thes decrease ncluded land
addihions of £339m offset by land usage

= Group work in progress at 30 June 2010 was

£981 4m {2009 £1,044 2m) The fall of £62 8m

reflects the reduction in number of sites and
the Group’s continued focus upon careful
management of work in progress levels upen
trading sites At 3C June 2010, there were
746 (2009 822) unreserved completed units,
an average of 2 2 (2009 2 2) unveserved
units per actve site

« Group net debt decreased by £9100mto
£366 Smover the full year of which £693 Om
represented the net proceeds from the
Placing and the Rights Issue, an outflow of
£111 1m related to exceplonal finance costs
ansing from the Group's amended financing
arrangements and £2 2m related to the
purchase of shares for the Group's Employee
Benefits Trust (EBT') following the Rights
Issue and the rermaining inflow of £330 3m
was dus 1o cash flow from operations,
nterest and taxation

¢ Goodwill and ntangible assets remaned at
£892 2m as the annual imparment review of
the entire housebulding business and brand
indicated that no imparment was required




“During the year, the Group
has successfully increased
operating profit through
optimusing sales prices
and tight cost control.

This improvement resulted
in the Group making a
profit after tax of £9.0min
the second half.”

* The Group had a corporation tax creditor
of £2 8m (2008 £50 6m asset)and a
deferred tax asset of £173 3m (2009
£127 3m) Dunng the year the Group
receved £53 8m of tax refunds The
Group's deferred tax asset increased by
£46 Om (ncluding £46 6m due to ksses
that will be carned forward to offset the tax
liabiities ansing from future profits) The
changes to corporation tax rates announced
in the June 2010 Budget will reduce the
future value of the Group's carmed forward
losses As the changes were not substantvely
enacted at 30 June 2010, they are not
reflected in the Group's deferred tax asset
The reduction in corporation tax rate from
28% to 27%, which has been enacted since
the balance sheet date, will reduce the
Group's deferred tax asset by £6 2m to
£1671m

* The pension fund deficit on the Barratt
Developments defined benefit pension
scheme increased by £14 6min the year
to £46 1m mainly due to lower than
anticipated corporate bond yields and
revised life expectancy assumptions

« Trade and other payables were £1,313 5m
(2008 £1,107 8m) including an increase
of ££96 2min land payablas from £470 6m
to £566 8m reflecting increased land
acquistions on deferred payment terms
dunng the year

Cash flow

Group net debt at the year end was £366 9m
{2009 £1,276 9m) The decrease n net debt
1S explaned by the tables on page 24

The decrease in net debt of £810 0m dunng
the year was made up of inflows of £671 6m
in the first half and £238 4m in the second
half The inflows included £693 Om relating
to the net proceeds from the Group's Placing
and Rights Issue In addition there was

£111 1m related to exceptional finance costs
ansing from the Group’s amended financing
arrangements and £2 2m relating to the
purchase of shares for the Group's EBT
following the Rights Issue

The Group expects cash expenditure on land
to Increase dunng the 2011 financial year due
to payment faling due on land acquired on
deferred terms since re entenng the land
market n mid-2009 As a result, it 15 expected
that there will be a small Increase in full year
debt levels for the 2011 financial year with delbt
at the half year expected to be considerably
higher than as at 30 June 2010 n ine with
normal cperational trends
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Treasury

The Board approves treasury policies and
certan day-to-day treasury actwvibes have
been delegated to a Treasury Operating
Committes that in turn regularly reports to
the Board The Group operates a centralised
treasury function which operates within
guidelines established by the Board and

the Treasury Operating Committee

The Group has a conservative treasury nsk
management strategy which includes a target
that 60-80% of the Group's median gross
borrowings calculated on the latest three-year
plan should be at fixed rates of interest At 30
June 2010, 70 4% {2009 68 4%%) of the Group
borrowngs were fixed Group interest rates
are fixed using both swaps and fixed rate
debt nstuments

Capital structure

On 23 September 2009 the Company
announced a fully underwntten Placing and
Rights Issue, raising gross proceeds of

£720 5m, and certan amendments to the terms

of tts financing arrangements, which would
come into effect following completion of the
Placing and the Rights Issue The equity 1ssue
was completed on 4 November 2009 and the
amended financing arrangements came INto
effect on 16 Novernber 2009 The Placing and
the Rights Issue, together with the armended
financing arrangernents, have significantly
strengthened the position of the Group and
have enabied the Group to take advantage

of land acquisiton opporturities

In conclusion

Dunng the year the Group has successftilly
Increased operating profit through optimising
sales prces and tight cost contral This
imprevement resuited in the Group making
a profit after tax of £8 Om in the second haff

The Group remains committed to maxmising
operating margins through optimising prices
and contnuing 1o control costs rather than
pursung wiughes

w—d |

David Thomas
Group Finance Director
7 September 2010

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORTAND ACCOUNTS 2010




26 Business review

PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial and operational performance is subject to a
number of risks. The Board seeks to ensure that appropriate processes
are put in place to manage, monitor and mitigate these risks which

are identified in the table below. The Group recognses that the
management of risk is fundamental to the achuevement of Group
targets. As such all tiers of management are involved in this process.

Principal risks of the Group include, but are not limited to:

Risk Mitigation

Market

Respense to changes in the macroeconemue
envirenment including unemployment, buyer
confidence, availability of mortgage finance
for purchasers, interest rates and the impact
of competitor pricing

Design and construction defects may lead to
cost overruns including remedial costs, and
may reduce selling prices and adversely
impact the Group's reputation

A weekly review 13 undertaken of key trading indicators, including reservations, sales rates, visitor
levels, levels of incentives, competitor activaty and cash flow projechons and where appropnate
management action ts taken

The Group seeks to give mertgage lenders complete ransparency regarchng house purchase
prices alongside any discounts or other incentives in order that they have appropriate information
upon which to base their lendung decision

The Group works with key mortgage lenders to ensure that products are approprnate wherever
poasible for its customers

The Group has a comprehensive approach to quality, service and customer care encapsulated in
the 'Forward through Quality' irutiative and customer care code of practice

Liguidity

Availabihity of sufficient borrowing facilihes
to enable the servicing of labihities as they
fall due

Inabihty to ebtain surety konds

Inabihity of the Group torelinance its facilities
as they fall due

Inabiiity of the Group to comply withats
borrowing covenants

‘The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and medium term cormumtted facilities that
are designed to ensure that 1t has sufficient available fundas for operatons

The Group’s borrowings are typically cychcal throughout the linancial year and peak in Apnl

and May, and Ccteber and November, of each year, as, due to seascnal trends inincome, these

are the points in the year when the Group has the lhighest working capital requirements Accordingly,
the Group maintains suficient facility headroom to cover these requrementa On a normal ¢perating
basis the Group has a policy of maintarning facility headroom of up to £250m

The Group has in place a comprehensve regular forecashng process encompassing profitabiity,
workang capital and cash flow that 1s fully embedded in the business These forecasts

are further stress tested at a Group level on a regular bass 1o ensure that adequate headroom
within facilities and banking covenants 1s maintained

The Group actively maintains a number of surety facilies that are designed to ensure thatithas
sufficient bonds avallable

The Group has a comprehensive regular forecashng process for surety bond requirements

The Group has a policy that the matunty of its commutted [acilities and private placement notes in
aggregate 1s atleast two years on average with a target of three years

On 22 September 2009 the Company entered into agreements withiis bank lenders and pnvate
placement noteholders to amend the terms of 1ts exnsting financing amangements mcluding revised
financial covenants These amendments became effective on 16 November 2008 following the
completion of the Group's Placing and Rights Issue

The Group 18 1n comphance with 1ts borrowing covenants and at the date of approval of these financial
statemenis, the Group s internal forecasts indicate that  will remainin compliance with these covenants
for the foreseeable future being at least twelve months from the date of sgrung these financal statements

People
Ability of the Group to attract, retain and develop
asufficently skilled and expenenced workforce

Underfunding of the Group's obligations in
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme

The Group has a comprehensive Human Resources policy in place which includes apprentice
schemes, a graduate programme, succession planmng and tragung schemes tallored
te each dusciphine The Group continues to target a fully CSCS carded and qualified workforce

An actuana) valtation 12 conducted every three years The Group reviews this and as appropnate
considers what addiional contnibutions are necessary to make good this shortfall

To Lumut the nisk further, with effect from 30 June 2008, the scheme ceased te offer future accrual of
defined benefit pensions for current employees and the hink between acerued benefits and future
salary increages was removed
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Principal risks of the Group include, but are not limited to:

Risk Mitigation

Subcontractors and suppliers |

Shortages or ncreased costs of matenals The Group adopts a professional approach to site management and seeks to partner with its

and skilled labour could increase costs and supply chain

delay construction

Failure of a key supplier or tnability to secure The Group has a policy of having multiple supplers for bothlabour contracts and matenal supphes,
supplies upon apprepriate credit terms and coningency plans should key suppliera fail

Land

Secunng sufficient land of appropnate size and Each division produces a detailed site-by-site monthly analysis of the amount of land currently
qualty to provide profitable growth subject to owned, commtted and tdentfied These are conselidated for regular review at Board level

the available borrowing fagilities In addation, each operating division holds weekly land meetinga

Every land acqusition is subject to a formal appraigsal procedure and 18 requured to achieve an
overall Group defined hurdle rate of return

The timung of conditional Jand purchase contracts  Each division has a sile-by-site detailed shont-term and medum-term forecastiing process
becoming unconditional 13 uncertain Unexpected including sensitivity scenarioa

changes in contract status may result in additional

cash outflow {or the Group

MIIATY SSHNISIIEI

Fallsin house prices or land values or a failure of Tha Group's internal systems clearly identify the impact of sales price changes on the
the housing market to recover could lead to further marguin achuevable
impatrments of the Group’s inventones, goodwll

Asa mumumum, the Group performs biannual asset impairment reviews
and intangible assets

The market for land can be 1liquid and therefore The Group's internal forecasting process 1s able to identify the impact of these sensitivibes explicitly
it may be difficult to sell or trade land if reqqured

Where land 18 50ld, there 18 a risk that the proceeds

may not be received from the counterparty

Government regulation
Changes in Government policy lowards the The Group consults with the UK Government both chirectly and through industry bodies te lughlight
housebuilding industry potennal issues

The housebuilding industry 18 subject to extensive  The Group has considerable in-house technical and planmng expertise devoted to complying
and complex regulations and an increasingly with regulations and achueving implementable planning consents

stnngent regulatory envirenment including

planmng and techiucal requirements

Consequence of changes in tax legislation The Group has adopied a low nsk gtrategy to tax planmng Potential and actual changesin
tax legislation are momtored by both industry experiencedin-house finance teams and external
tax advisers

Construction
Faulure to 1dentify and aclueve key construction The Group’s weekly reporting :dentifies the number of properties at key stages of construction
milestones, including the impact of adverse Projected constructon rates are evaluated as part of the monthly forecasting cycle

weather condutions, could delay construction
oI INcTease cosls

Large development projects, including comunercial Development projects, including returng and cash flows, are mentored regularly by divisional
developments are complex and capital intensive management teams
and changes may negatively impact upon cash

flows or returna

Failure to :dentify cost overruns prompily The total costs on every site un progress are evaluated at least quarterly and reviewed by the
divistonal management teama

Cost reduction measures may adversely affect In parallel to reducing costs during the downturn a Main Board level commuttee has developed

the Group's business or 118 ability to respond to a ‘Planrung for Recovery programme

future improvements in market condinons

Exposure to environmental habihties and The Group reqularly morutors a umber of envaronmental impact indicators The resultaof thus

consideration of the impact of construction appear in the Group's Corporate Responsibility Report

schemes upon the environment and zocial

surroundings

Litigation and uninsured losses The Group has an in-house legal department and consults with external lawyers as appropnate
The Group maintains insurance cover for all main nsks of the Group

Health and safety

Health and safety The Group has a dedicated health and safety audit department whtch 1s independent of the
managemernt of the operating divimons

IT

Failure of the Group 8 [T systems, 1 particular The Group has a fully tested disaster recovery programme 1n place

those relating to surveying and valuanon, could
adversely impact the performance of the Group

Detals of the Group s management of hquidity risk market nsk credt nsk and capital nsk in relation to financial nstruments are prowided in nota 25 on pages 101 to 107
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Governance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Robert Lawson

Chairman

Bob Lawson was apponied a
Non-Executive Director on 1 June 2008
and Charman on 1 July 2008 He s

a member of the Remuneration and
Nominations Committees Bob 1s also
the Chairman of Hays plc and a Director
of The Federation of Groundwork
Trusts He was formerly the Managing
Director of the Vitec Group for

three years and Chief Executive of
Hectrocomponents plc for ten years

Robert Davies

Senior Independent Director

Bob Davies was appointed a Non-Executve
Drirector on 5 May 2004 and 1s the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit and Nerminations
Committees He 1s also a Non-Executve
Director of Northem Rock (Asset
Management) pic and a member of the
Investment Adwvisory Board for North East
Finance He was previcusty Charman of
Biffa, a Non-Executive Director of Briish
Energy Group pic, the Chief Executve of
Armva plc and the char of the Board of
Governors of Sunderland Uniersity

He was also the Charrnan of the CBI
Regtonal Councilin the North East and

a Non-Executive Drrector of Sunderiand
ARC urban regeneraton comparty

Mark Clare

Group Chief Executive

Mark Clare was appomnted Group Chief
Executive on 2 October 2006 and 1s a
mamber of the Nominations Committee
He was appomnted as a Director of the
BRE Trust in August 2009 He was
formerly an Executive Director of Centnca
Plc and Managing Director of Centrica’s
Bntish Gas Residential Energy operation
He joined Brtish Gas in 1894, becoming
Centrica's Finance Director in 1997 and
Managing Director of Brtish Gas
Residential Energy in 2002

Tessa Bamford
Non-Executive Director

(from 1 July 2009)

Tessa Bamford was appointed a
Non-Executive Director on 1 July 2009
and 1s a member of the Remuneration
and Nominations Committees Tessa is
a Director of Cantos Communications
Limited, the online communications
service provider, where she leads the
corporate client relationships and 1s a
Governror of the British Institute of
Florence She was formerty a Director
of J Henry Schroder & Co with whom
her career spanned over 12 years in
VAnous roles
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David Thomas

Group Finance Director

{from 21 July 2009)

David Thomas was appointed an
Executive Director and Group Finance
Drector on 21 July 2009 He was formerty
the Group Finance Director and the
Deputy Chief Executive of The GAME
Group plc Before that he was the Group
Finance Director at Millenmum and
Copthorne Hotels plc and held senior
financial roles with House of Fraser

and Forte plc

Roderick MacEachrane
Non-Executive Director

Rod MacEachrane was appointed a
Non Executive Director on 1 May

2006 and 13 a member of the Audt,
Remuneration and Nominations
Committees He was formerly the
GCommercial Director and an Executive
Director of the National Housa-Buidding
Council ({NHBC') Main Board before
retinng after 25 years’ service In April
2006 He s a member of the Governing
Board of the NHBC Foundation, an
independent charitable research
foundation which is a joint venture with
the Buikding Research Establishrnent
and a Director of the National Centre
for Excellence n Housing




Steven Boyes

Group Board Executive Director
Steven Boyes joined the Group in 1978
Formerly the Managing Director of Barratt
York, he was appointed to the Group
Board n July 2001 and s the Group
Board Executve Direcior responsible

for the Barratt North Region

Mark Rolfe

Non-Executive Director

Mark Rolfe was apponted a Non-
Executive Director on 1 May 2008

He s the Charman of the Audit Committee
and 15 a member of the Nominations
Committee Marks also a Non-Executive
Dwrector of The Sage Group plkc and
Hornby Plc and Chairman of Lane Clark
& Peacock LLP He was formerly the
Finance Director of Gallaher Group Plc
for seven years until April 2007 when it
was acquired by Japan Tobacco Inc

His career wath Gallaher spanned 20
years during which time he served in
vanouss finance and executive rofes

Clive Fenton

Group Board Executive Director
Clive Fenton joined the Group i 1883,
hecoming Managing Director of Barratt
West Londonin 1896 He was apponted
to the Group Board in July 2003 and 15
the Group Board Executve Director
responsible for the Barratt South Region

William Shannon
Non-Executive Director

Bill Shannon was apponted a
Non-Executive Director on 1 September
2005 and 15 a member of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations
Committees He 1s currently Non-
Executive Chawman of Aegon UK pic,

a Non-Executive Director of Rank Plc
and of Johnson Service Group PLC and
a partner with Tn-Artisan Partners
Europe LLP He was previously an
Executive Director of Whitbread PLC
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Laurence Dent

Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Laurence Dent was appointed Group
General Counse and Company Secretary
in January 2001 He s a solicitor and was
previcusly Group Deputy Chief Executive
of Home Group Limited, one of the targest
housing associations in the UK
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Governance

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors' Report should be read in
conunction with the information contained in
the Report of the Directors onpages 4 to 54
which include, inter alia the Charman's
statement, Group Chief Executive's review,
Business review, Group Finance Director's
review, Board of Directors, Corporate
governance and Remuneration report and are
ncorperated by reference in (and deemed to
form part of} this report

Activities of the Group

Barrait Developments PLC (the '‘Company’) 1s
tha holding company of the Barratt Group of
companies {the 'Group’) The Group's principal
actvities compnse acquinng and developing
land, planning, destgring and constructing
residental property developments and seling
the homes it bulds These core actmties

are supperted by the Group's commercial
development, urban regeneration, procurement,
design and strategic land capabilities

Results and dividends

The loss from continuing actvities for the
year ended 30 June 2010 was £118 4m
(2009 £468 6m)

No intenm dvdend was paid dunng the
financial year (2009 nd) The Directors do
not recommend a final dwvidend for the year
ended 30 Jung 2010 (2009 i}

Enhanced Business Review
The Charman's statement, Group Chief
Executive’s review, Business review and
Group Finance Director's review on pages
4 to 25 together compnse the Group's
Enhanced Business Review

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (the *2010 AGM)
will be held at the Royal College of Physicians,
11 St Andrews Place, Regent’s Park, London
NW1 4LE on 17 November 2010 at 2 30pm
The notice cornvening the 2010 AGM will be
set out In a separate letter to shareholders

Directors and their interests
Each of the Directors listed on pages 28 and
29 held office as at 30 June 2010 Dawd
Thomas was appointed as Group Finance
Director on 21 July 2009, replacing Mark Pain
who stepped down on the same date

The beneficial interests of the Directors and
connected persons in the ordinary share
captal of the Company together with the
interests of the Executive Directors in share
ophons and awards of shares as at 30 June
2010 and as at the date of this report are
disclosed in the Remuneration repert on
pages 50 0 52

Al no tme duning or at the end of the vear
did any Director have a matenal nterest m
a contract of significance in relation to the
busness of the Group

Appointment and replacement
of Directors

In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Associaton (the ‘Articles’) there shall be
no less than two and no more than fifteen
Directors appointed to the Board at any one
tme Drectors may be appointed by the
Company by ordinary resolution or by the
Board The Board may from time to tme
appoint one or more Directors to hold
employment or executive office for such
penod (subject to the Comparies Act 2008
{the *Act') and on such terms as they may
determine and may revoke or termunate any
such appointment Directors are no longer
subject to a maximum age hmit

The Company may by special resoluton remove
any Director before the expiration of his term of
office The office of Director shall be vacated

(i) he resigns or offers to resign and the Board
resolves to accept such offer; (it his resignation
1s requested by all of the cther Directors and all
of the other Directors are not less than three in
numbser, {ii) he 1s or has been suffenng from
mental or physical il health, (v} he s ebsent
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without permission of the Board from meetings
of the Board for six consecutive months and
the Board resolves that his office 1s vacated,

() he becomes bankrupt or compounds with
his creditors generally, (vi) he s prohibited by
law from being a Director; {wi) he ceases to

be a Director by virtue of the Act, or {vii} he Is
removed from office pursuant to the Articles

Detatls refating to the retirement and re-election
of Dwectors at each annual general mesting
('AGM’) can be found on page 37 of this report

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special rescluticn, the
husiness of the Company 15 managed by
the Board who may exercise all the powers
of the Company, whether relating to the
management of the business of the Company
or not In particular, the Board may exercise
all the powers of the Compary to borrow
money and o mortgage or charge any of its
undertakings, property, assets and uncalled
capital and to issue debentures and other
securities and to give secunty for any debt,
liability or obligation of the Company to any
third party

Qualifying third party
indemnity provisions

As at the date of this report, there are gualifying
thurd party ndemnity provisions governed by the
Act in place under which the Company

has agreed to indemnify the Directors, former
Directors and the Company Secretary of the
Company, Directors and former Directors of
any member of the Group or of an associated
company or affilate company and members

of the Executve Committee, to the extent
permitted by law and the Articles aganst all
lability ansing i respect of any act or omission
n ther duties In additon the Company has in
place Directors' and Officers’ lability insurance
for each Director of the Company and its
associated companies

No Drector of the Compary or of any associated
company shall be accountable to the Company
orthe members for any benefit provided
pursuant to the Articles and recerpt of any such
benefit shall not disqualify any person from being
or becorning a Director of the Company

Property, plant and equipment
The Direclors are of the cpirion that the value of
land and buldings included within the Group's
property, plant and equipment I1s In excess of
book value but that the difference 1S not matenal
inrelation to the affawrs of the Group

Disclosure of information

to auditors

So far as each of the Directors 1s aware,

there I1s no relevant audit information (that 1s,
information needed by the Company’s auditors
In connection with preparing thewr report) of
which the Company’s auditors are not aware

Each of the Directors has taken ali the relevant
steps that they ought to have taken in
accordance with ther duty as a Director to
rmake themsalves aware of any relevant audit
intormation and to establish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be
interpreted n accordance with the provisions
of section 418{2) of the Act

Charitable and political
contributions

During the year the Group made chartable
donations of £36,100 (2008 £28,300) Of the
donations In the current year £5,000 was to
the Habitat for Humanity, Hait earthquake
appeal and the remainder was to local and
good causes

No political contributions were made durng
the year (2009 Crul)

Offices

The Group had 25 offices (excluding those
coffices undertaking an administrative function
onhy located throughout Britain at the end

of the financial year A full st of the Group's
cffices and thexr locations can be cbtained
from the Group Genera! Counsel and
Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company or from the Company's
websile www barrattdevelopments co uk

Risk management objectives
The prncipal operational nisks of the business
are detaled on pages 26 and 27 The Group's
financtal assets, finangal abiites and
denvative financial Instruments are detaled

In notes 22, 23 and 24

The Group's operations and financing
arrangements expose It to a variety of financial
nsks that nclude the effects of changes in debt
markef pnces, credit nsks, igquidity nsks and
Interest rates The most sigruficant of these

10 the Group 1s lquidity nsk and, accoerdingly,
there 1s a regular, detaled systemn for the
reporting and forecasting of cash flows from
the operations to Group management with
the goal of ensuring that nsks are promptly
identfied and appropnate mibgating actions
taken by the central treasury department
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These forecasts are further stress tested at
a Group level on a regular basis to ensure
that adequate headroom within faciities and
banking covenants 1s mantained In addstion,
the Group has in place a nsk management
programme that seeks to imit the adverse
effects of the other nsks on its financial
performance, in particutar by using financial
nstruments, INcluding debt and dervatives,
to hedge nterest rates and currency rates
The Group does not use dervative financial
instruments for speculative purposes

The Board approves treasury policies and
certain day-to-day treasury actvties have
been delegated 1o a centralised Treasury
Operating Commities, which in turn regularty
reports to the Board The treasury department
implements guidelines that are established

by the Board and the Treasury Operating
Commiitee

a) Liqudity risk

Liguidty nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will be
unable to meet its labhities as they fall due
The Group actvely mantains a mixture of
long-term and medium-term committed facilties
that are designed to ensure that the Group
has sufficent avallable funds for operations
The Group's borrowings are typically cyclical
throughout the financial year and peak in April
and May, and October and Novernber, of
each year, due to seasonal frends in INCome
Accordingly the Group maintamns sufficient
facility headroom to cover these requirermnents
On a normal operating basis the Group has

a policy of mantaning headroom of up to
€250 0m The Group dentifies and takes
appropnate actions based upon its regular,
detatled system for the reporting and
forecastng of cash flows from ¢s operations

At 30 June 2010, the Group had committed
bank facities of £1,615 3m (2008 £2,284 4m)
and total facilibes of £1,676 5m (2009 £2,360 6m).
At 30 June 2010, the Group's debt drawn
against these facilites was £930 1m (2009
£1.4841m} This represented 57 6% of available
committed facilibes at 30 June 2010 (2009

65 0%) Inaddition the Group had £546 5m
(20089 £178 8m) of cash

The Group was in comphance with its financial
covenants at 30 June 2010 At the date of
approval of the financial statements the
Group’s nternal forecasts indicate that it wall
remain incompliance with these covenants
for the foreseeable future beng at least twelve
months from the date of signing these financial
staterments Compliance with covenants 1s
also consdered on page 61
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The Group’s objective 1s to minimise refinancing
nsk The Group therefore has a policy that the
average matunty of its committed banrk facites
and private placement notes Is at least two
years on average with a target of three years

At 30 June 2010, the average matunty of the
Group's committed faciibes was 2 6 years
(2009 31 years)

In addition, the Group had £61 2m of undrawn
uncommitted faciities avalable at 30 June
2010 (2009 £68 8m)

b) Market risk (price nsk)

1) UK housing market risk

This section specifically dscusses UK housing
market risk in the context of the financial
instruments in the Group balance shest

The Group 1s subject to the prevaling conditions

of the UK economy and the Group's earnings

are dependent upon the level of UK house prces

UK house prices are determined by the UK

economy and economic conditions ncluding

employment levels, interest rates, consumer
confidence, mortgage avalability and competitor
pncing However, the Group does seek to
maintain an appropriate geographic spread

of operating divisions and an appropnate

product mix to mitigate any nsks caused by
local econemic conditions The Group has
detaled procedures to manage its market
related operational risks which include

» g weekly review of key trading indicators,
including reservaticns, sales rates, visitor
levels, levels of Incentives, competitor
actvity and cash fiow projections,

* the provision to mortgage providers with
complete transparency of house purchase
prices alongside any discounts or
other iIncentives in order that they have
appropriate Information upon which to
base ther lending decision, and

* collaboration with key mortgage lenders
to ensure that products are appropnate
wherever possible for its customers

The UK housing market affects the valuation of
the Group's non-financial assets and labiities
and the critical judgements applied by
management in these financial statements,
including the valuation of land and work in
progress, goodwil and brands The value of
the Group's available for sale financial assets

1s directly linked 1o the UK housing market

At 30 June 2010 these assets were carned

at a far value of £136 3m (2009 £86 5m}

At 30 June 2010, f UK house prices had been
5% lower and all other vanables were held
constant, the Group’s house price linked

financial assets and abilites, which are sclely
avalable for sale financial assets, would decrease
in value, excluding the effects of tax, by £5 2m
(2009 £6 2m) with a corresponding reduction
in both the result for the year and equity

1} Interest rate risk

The Group has both interest beanng assets
and interest beaning llabiiies Floating rate
borrowings expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate nsk and fixed rate borrowings
expose the Group to far value interest rate nsk

The Group has a policy of mantaining both
long-term fixed rate funding and medium-term
floating rate funding so as to ensure that

there 1s appropnate fliexitality for the Group's
operational requirements The Group has
entered into swap arrangements to hedge cash
flow nsks refating to interest rate movements ona
proportion of its debit and has entered nto fixed
rate debt in the form of Sterling and US Dollar
denominated prvate placements

The Group has a policy that 60%-80% of the
Group's median gross borrowings calculated
on the latest three-year plan (taking into
account hedging) 1s at a fixed rate, withan
average minmum duration of five years and
an average maximum duration of fifteen years
At 30 June 2010, 70 4% (2009 68 4%) of the
Group's borrowings was at a fixed rate

The exposure of the Group's and Company's
financial labilities to interest rate nsk is detailed
Innote 25

Floating interest rates on Stering borrowings
are Inked to UK bank rate, LIBOR and money
rmarket rates The floating rates are fixed n
advance for penods generally ranging from one
to six months Short-terrn flexibility 1s achieved
through the use of overdraft, commutted and
uncommitted bank faciities The weighted
average interest rate for floating rate borrowings
IN 2010 was 3 2% (2009 5 6%)

Stering private placement notes of £778m

(2009 £114 2rm) were aranged at fixed interest
rates and exposed the Group to far value nterest
rate nsk The wexghted average interest rate for
fixed rate Stering private placerment notes for
2010 was 11 8% (2009 11 5%) with, at 30 June
2010, a werghted average penod of 77 years
(2009 8 5 years) for which the rate 1s fixed

US Dollar denormenated private placerment notes
of £1251m {2009 £164 Om) were arranged at
fixed interest rates and exposed the Group

to far value interest rate nsk. The weighted
average Interest rate for fixed rate US Dollar
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denominated private placement notes, after tha
effect of foregn exchange rate swaps, for 2010
was 11 2% {2008 11 0%) with, at 30 June 2010,
aweighted average penod of 6 8 years (2009
78 years) for which the rate 1s fixed

In the year ended 30 June 2010, if UK interest
rates had been 50 bagis points higher/lower
and aft other variables were held constant, the
Group's predax loss would Increase/decrease
by £1 8m (2008 £3 9m), the Group's post-tax
loss would increase/decrease by £1 3m (2008
£2 8m) and the Group's equity would
decrease/increase by £1 3m (2009 £2 8m}

w) Foreign exchange rate nisk

As at 30 Juns 2010, the Group has fixed rate
US Dollar denorminated private placement
notes of $1872m (2008 $271 6m} In order to
mitigate nsks associated with the movement
invthe foreign exchange rate, the Greup has

a policy of fuly hedging the pnncipal of its US
Dollar denominated debt and a significant
proportion of the interest payments The Group
therefore entered into forexgn exchange swap
arrangements on the 1ssue of its US Dollar
denominated debt, all of which are designated
as cash flow hedges Accordingly the Group
has no net exposure to foreign currency nsk
on the principal of its US Dollar debt The
forergn exchange swaps match 76% of the
iiterest payments and therefore the Group

1 subject to foreign exchange rate nsk upon
the remaining 24%

Details of the Group’s foreign exchange
swaps are provided in ncte 24

in the year ended 30 June 2010, f the US
Doflar per Pound Sterling exchange rate had
been $0 20 hgher/lower and all other variatles
were held constant, the Group's pre-tax loss
would increase/decrease by £0 4m (2009

£0 7m), the Group's post-tax loss would
Increase/decrease by £0 3m 2009 £0 5m)
and the Group's equity would decrease/
Increase by £0 3m (2009 £0 5m)

¢) Creditnsk

Im the majorty of cases, the Group receves
cash upon 'egal completion for private sales
and receives advance stage payments from
Registered Social Landlords for social housing
The Group has £136 3m {2009 £86 5m) of
avallable for sale financial assets which expose
It to credt nsk, although this asset s spread
over a large number of properties As such,
the Group has no significant concentration of
credit nsk, wih exposure spread over a large
number of counterpartes and customers




The Group manages credit nsk inthe

following ways

+ The Group has a credit policy that 1s
Iimited to financial Insttutions with high
credi ratings as set by international
credit rating agenciss and has a policy
determiring the masimum permissible
exposure to any single counterparty

» The Group only contracts denvative
financial nstruments with counterparties
with which the Group has an International
Swaps and Dervatives Association Master
Agreement in place These agreements
permit net settliement, thereby reducing
the Group's credit exposure to ndmidual
counterparties

The maximum exposure to any counterparty

at 30 June 2010 was £100 Om of cash on
depost with a financia nsttution (2009 £310m)
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded
i the financial statements, net of any allowance
for losses, represents the Group's maximum
exposure to credt nsk

Asat 30 June 2010, the Company was exposed
0 €898 5m (2009 £1,511 1m) of credit nskn
relation to intercompany koans, financial
guarantees, periormance bonds and the bank
borrowings of subsidiary undertakings Further
details are prowvided in notes 32 and 33

d) Capital risk management

(cash flow nisk)

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard its ability te continue
as a gaing concern In order to prowide returns
for shareholdars and meet its labhbes as
they fall due whilst maintaining an appropnate
capital structure

The Grroup manages as capital its equity,

as set out In the condensed consolidated
statement of changes in shareholders' equity,
its bank borrowings (being overdrafts, loan
notes and bank ioans) and its private
placement notes, as set out In note 23

Tha Group 1 subject to the prevaling conditions
of the UK economy and the Group's eamings
are dependent upon the level of UK house
pnces UK house prices are determined by

the UK economy and economic conditions
Including employment levels, interest rates,
consumer confidence, mortgage avatlability

and competitor pncing The management of
these operational nsks 1s set out in the pnncipal
nisks and uncertaintes on pages 26 and 27

In additon, the other methods by which
the Group can manage ts short-term and

long-term capital structure include adjusting
the level of ordinary dividends pad to
shareholders {assurming the Company i1s
paying a dvidend), 1ssuing new share capital,
arranging debt to meet hability payments
and seling assets 1o reduce debt

Likely future developments
Anindication of likely future developmentsin
the Group including in the field of research
and development 1s given in the Business
review on pages 131025

Creditor payments

The Group 1s responsible for agreeng the
detall of terms and conditions relating to
transachons with its suppliers Itis Group
polcy to ensure that supplers are made aware
of the terms of payment and to atude by the
agreed terms of payment with supphers where
the goods and services have been supphed

in accordance with the relevant terms and
conditions of contract Implementation of this
polcy resulted in a supplier payment penod
by the Cempany of 28 days (2009 42 days)
for its trade creditors at 30 June 2010

Capital structure

The Company has a single class of share
capital which i1s draded into ordinary shares
of 10 pence each Allissued shares are In
registered form and are fully paid Details of
the Company's issued share capital and of
the movements in the share capital dunng the
year can be found in note 27 on page 112

Subject to the Articles, the Act and cther
shareholders’ nghts, shares are at the disposal
of the Board At each AGM the Board seeks
authonsation from its shareholders to allot
shares At the general meeting held on

19 October 2008, to approve the Compary's
Placing and Rights Issue, the Directors were
given authonty to allot shares up to a nominal
value of £61,844,176 for the purposes of the
Placing and the Rights kssue In addition, by
virtue of secticn 549 of the Act, the Direclors
were gven authonty to allot further shares up
to a nominal value of 32,168,775 {representing
approximately 33 33% of the nominal value

of the Compary's 1ssued share capral
immediately following the Placing and the
Ruighits [ssue, on the assumption that no further
shares would be issued as a result of the
exercisa of options under any Company
employee share scheme between publication
of the notice of the general meeting and the
completion of the Placing and the Rights Issue),
such authonty to reman valid untl the end of
the 2010 AGM A resolution 1o renew this
authority will be proposed at the 2010 AGM
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Rights and obligations
attaching to shares

Subject 1o any nghts attached 1o existing
shares, shares may be issued with such nghts
and restnctions as the Company may by
ordinary resolution decide, or (f there 1s nc
such resolutron or so far as it does not make
specific provision) as the Board may decide

Subject 1o the Act, the Articles specify that
rights attached to any existing class of shares
may be vaned either with the wrtten consent
of the helders of not less than three-fourths
1in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of that
class {excluding any shares of that class held
as treasury shares), or with the sanction of a
specia resolution passed at a separate general
mesting of the holders of those shares

The nghts conferred upon the holders of any
shares shall not, unless otherwise exprassly
provided in the nghts attaching to those
shares, be deemed to be vaned by the
creation or 1ssue of further shares ranking
pan passu with them

Voting

Subject to any special terms as to voting upon
which any shares may be issued or may at the
relevant time: be held, every member present in
person or by proxy at a general meeting or class
meeting has one vote upon a show of hands

or, upen a poll vote, one vote for every share

of which they are a holder In the case of joint
holders of a share, the vote of the senior who
tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy,
shall be accepted to the exclusion of votes of
the other joint holders and seniortty shall be
determined by the order In which the names
stand in the register In respect of the joint holding

JONYNEIAOD I

In accordance wath the Act, each member s
entitled to appoint one or more proxies, and

n the case of corporations, more than one
corporate representative to exercise all or any
of their nghts to attend, speak and vote on ther
behali at a general meeting or class meeting
The timescales for appointing proxies will

be set outin the Notice of the 2010 AGM

No member shall be entiled to vote at any
general meeting or class meeting N respect
of any shares held by them if ary call or other
sum then payable by them in respect of that
share remains unpaid or f they have been
served with a restnction notice {as defined

in the Aricles) after fallure to provide the
Company with information concerning
interests nthose shares required to be
provided under the Act

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010




34 Governance
Directors’ Report

Transfer of shares

Shares in the Company may be in uncertificated
or certificated form Titke to unceruficated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant
system and certificated shares may be
transferred by an instrument of transfer as
approved by the Board The transiferor of a
share 1s deemed to reman the holder until the
transferee’s name s entered into the Company’s
register of members

There are no restnctions on the transfer of shares
except as follows The Board may, in s absolute
discretion and without gving any reason, decine
to register any transfer of any share which s not a
fully paxd share Registration of a franster of an
uncertificated share may be refused in the
circumstances sat out In the uncertificated
secuntes nules {as defined in the Articles) and
where, In the case of a transler to ont holders,
the number of joint holders to whom the
uncertficated share s to be transferred exceeds
four The Board may decline to register a transfer
of a centrficated share unless the nstrurment of
transfer () 1s duly stamped or certified or
otherwise shown to the satisfaction of the

Board to be exempt from stamp duty and 1S
accompaned by the rdevant share certficate
and such ather evidence of the nght 1o transfer
as the Board may reascnably requrre, {ii) is in
respect of only one class of share; and @i} f joint
transferees, 15 in favour of not maore than four
such transferees, or where the transfer 15
requested by a person with a 0 25% interest

(as defined in the Articles) f such a person

has been served with a restnction notice after
failure to provide the Comparty with information
concerning nterests in those shares required to
be provded under the Act, unless the transfer is
shown to the Board to be pursuant to an arm's
length sale (as defined i the Articles}

Shareholder authority for
purchase of own shares

At the Company's AGM held on 17 November
2009, shareholders gave authonty 1o the
Company to buy back up to an aggregate of
34,671,802 ordinary shares {representing 10%
of the Company's 1ssued share capital pre
Placing and Rights Issue) This authority 1s
vahid until the end of the 2010 AGM or close of
business on 16 February 2011, whichever

15 the earlier Under the authonty thereis a
minimum and maximum price to be paid for
such shares Any shares which are bought
back may be heid as treasury shares or, If not
so held, will be cancelled immediately upon
completion of the purchase, thereby reducing
the Company's issued share capial

No purchases had been made under this
authonty as at the date of this report

A resolution renewing the authonty wil
be proposed at the 2010 AGM

Dividends and distributions
Subject to the provisions of the Act, the
Company may by ordinary resolution from time
to time declare dvidends for payment to the
holders of the ordinary shares of 10 pence
each, of an amount which does not exceed
the amount recommended by the Board

The Board may pay intenm dividends, and also
any fixed rate dividend, whenever the financial
position of the Company, In the opinon of the
Board, justifies their payment If the Board acts
ngood faith, 11s not lable to holders of shares
with preferred or pan passu nghts for losses
ansing from the payment of intenm or fixed
dradends on other shares

The Board may withhold payment of all or any
part of any dwdends or other monies payable

Table 1 - Notifiable Intexests

Date of notification  Nama

in respect of the Company's shares from a
person with a 0 25% nterest if such person
has been sarved with & restnction notice after
falure to provde the Company with information
conceming interests in those shares required
to be provded under the Act

Shareholder arrangements to
waive dividends

The Barratt Cevelopments Employee Berefit
Trust {the 'EBT"} holds ordinary shares in the
Company The shares are held in the EBT for
the purpose of satisfying options and awards
that have been granted under the vanous
employee share schemes operated by the
Company The EBT has agreed to wave all
or any future nght to dvidend payments on
shares held within the EBT and these shares
do not count n the calculation of the weighted
average number of shares used to calculate
sarnings per share untill such tme as they
are vesied to the relevan! employee

The Trustees of the EBT may vote or abstan
from voting on shares held in the EBT in any
way they think fit and in doing so may take
into account both financial and non-financial
interests of the beneficianes of the EBT or
their dependants

Detalls of the shares so held are set out in
note 27

Total

Numberofvoting % of 1ssued

nghts share capital Nature of holding

26/37/2010! JP Morgan Chase & Co 17,286,656 498 Indirect
15/07/2010 Credit Suisse Group AG 57,226,322 593 Indlirect
17/06/2010 Legal & General Group Plc 57,738,115 5098 Direct
17/06/2010° Phoenix Asset Management Partners Limited 48,256,698 499 Direct
10/06/2010 Tremblant Capital LP 30,282,432 314 Indirect
08/06/2010 Standard Life Investments Ltd 68,119,574 705  Direct & Indirect
06/11/2009 Polans Capital Management LLC 34,606,678 359 Indirect
05/11/2008 FMR LLC 34,579,199 824 Indirect

' Actual receipt of notification by the Company was on this date even though the notification was sent by JP Morgan Chase & Co on 9 July 2007
On 7 July 2010 JP Morgan Chase & Co confirmed that their current holding remains below 5%
2 Actual receipt of notfication by the Company was on this date even though the notification wag sent by Phoenix Asset Managamaent Partners
Limuied on 3 December 2009
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Major shareholders

In accordance with the UKLA's Disclosure
and Transparency Rules (the ‘DTR'} all
notifications receved by the Company
are published on the Company's website
www barrattdevelopments co uk and wa
a Regulated Information Service

As at the date of this report, the Company
had receved notifications, in accordance
with DTR 5, of the notifiable interests set
out in Table 1, In the voting nghts in the
Company's issued share capital

Employee share schemes
Details of employee share schemes are set
out in note 28

Articles of Association

The Artcles contan regulations which deal with
matters such as appontment and removal of
Drectors, Directors' interests and proceedings at
general and board meetings Any amendments
to the Artictes may be made in accordance
with the provisions of the Act by way of special
resolution at a general meeting

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain

provisions entiting the counterparties 1o

exercise termination or other nghts n the

event of a change of control of the Company

« under the credt faciity agreement dated
§ February 2007, the revolving credit facility
agreement dated 9 July 2008 and the
revolving credlt facility agreement dated
2 February 2005 (each as amended from
time to time and most recentty with effect
from 16 Novernber 2009} in each case
between, amongst others, the Company,
Lloyds TSB Bank Plc (as ths facility agent)
and the banks and financial institutions
named therein as lenders (together, the
‘Credit Faciitres'), the facility agent must,
upon a change of control, cancel the total
commitments of the lenders under such
Credit Facilites and declare all outstanding
loans and credits, together with accrued
interest and any other amounts payable
in respect of such Credit Faailities, to be
immediately due and payable For these
purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs if
any person or group of persons acting in
concert gains control of the Company,

+ under the privately-placed notes onginally
amounting In aggregate to £20 Om (the
'€20m Notes’) issued pursuant to a note
purchase agreement dated 29 August
2007 (as amended from time to time
and most recently with effect from 16
November 2009) to varous institutions

within a single corporate group, the holders
of the £20m Notes have an option to
require the Company to repay the entire
unpard principal amount of the £20m Notes
held by each holder (at par), together with
interest accrued thereon and a 'make-
whole” amount, and

* under the pnvately-placed notes ongnally
amounting In aggregate to £105 0m and
$300 Om (the 'Remaning Notes') issued
pursuant to a note purchase agreement
dated 23 August 2007 and a note purchase
agreement dated 23 April 2008 (sach as
amended from time to time and most
recently with effect from 16 Novermnber
2009) by the Comparny to vanous
institutions, the holders of the Remaning
Notes have an option to require the
Company to repay the entire unpaid
pnncipal amount of the Remaining Notes
held by each holder (at par), together with
interest accrued thereon but without any
‘make-whole' amount in respect of any
repayment cccurnng durning an interest
pericd The same repayment nght on a
change of contral also apples in respect of
the privaiely-placed notes onginally
amounting in aggregate to £20m issued n
pursuant 1o a note purchase agreement
dated 23 August 2008 (as amended from
time to time and most recently with effect
from 16 November 2009) However, the
£11 2m of such notes that remain
outstanding will expire on 15 October 2010

Under the terms of each of the above
referenced note purchase agreements, a
‘change of control” occurs if any person of
group of persons acting In concert acquires
beneficial ownership of more than 50% of the
1ssued share capital of the Comparwy carrying
voting nghis

The note purchase agreements also iImpose
upon the holders customary restrictions on
resale or transfer of the notes other than in
compliance with applicable secunties laws

On behalf of the Board
‘\M&\E&J

Laurence Dent

Group General Counse!
and Company Secretary
7 September 2010
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Governance

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company’s approach to
Corporate Governance

The Board believes that, n termns of the overall
direction and control of the Company, effective
carporate governance will come principally
from the values, standards and disciplines it
seeks to apply in dealings with shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers, contractors
and other stakeholders Many of the Company's
cora values and standards are set cutina
range of procedures and practice guidelines
communicated throughout the Group However,
external governance codes set the framework
for the Group's Internal standards and it therefore
seeks to comply with established best practice
I all areas of corporate governance

Statement of compliance with
Code provisions

The Company recognises the mportance of
rmantaning the highest standards of corporate
govemance In afl areas of ts busness Throughout
the year ended 30 June 2010 the Company
complied with the provisicns of Section 1 of
the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
ssted by the Financial Reporting Council (the
'FRCY in June 2008 (the ‘Code') as detalled
below A copy of the Code 1s available from
the FRC's website (www frc org uk)

The Board

Composition

The Company is led and controlled by the
Group Board The names, responsibilibes and
other detads of the Group Board Directors are
set out on pages 28 and 28 of this report The
Group Board met on 15 occasions dunng the
financial year and attendance at each of these
meetings is set out In Table 2 on page 39

Bob Lawson was appointed Non-Executive
Chairman of the Company with effect from

1 July 2008 and was considered 1o be
independent on his appointment He is alsc
currently the Chairman of Hays Plie, the
specialist recruitment comparny and a Director
of The Federation of Groundwork Trusts and will
become Non-Executve Charrman of Genus plc
following its Annual General Mesting on

11 Novernber 201C

On 1 Juty 2009 Tessa Bamford joined the Board
Tessa Is also cuerently a Director of Cantos
Communications Linited and has a broad
finance and business development background

On 21 July 2009, Mark Pain stepped down as
an Executve Director and as Group Finance
Director and was replaced by David Thomas
David has a strong track record as a Finance
Director having held this posiion at The GAME
Group plc and at Millennium and Copthorne
Hotels plc

At the end of the financial year the Board
compnsed ten members, including the
Chairman, five Non-Executive Directors and
four Executive Directors The Company
therefore complied dunng the relevant penod
wath the pnciples of the Code inrelation to
the batance of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors The number and calibre of Non-
Executve Directors on the Board, together
with ther dverse backgrounds and expenence,
also ensures that this principle 1s met

Board responsibihties

The Board has overall authority for the conduct

of the business of the Group Thereare a

number of matters that have been specifically

reserved for the Board and these include

* determination and approvat of matters
redating to the strategy and management of
the Group, Including approval of long-term
obgctves and commercial strategy and
extension of the Group's actvbes Nto new
businesses/geographic areas;

¢ determination of the structure and capital
of the Cormpany such as changes to the
Group’s management and control structure;

¢ share issues or buy back of shares,

* approval of financial reporting and controls
such as intenm and annual results
announcements, the Group annual report
and accounts, dvidend payments,
accounting and treasury polices,

o establishment of effective systems of
delegation and intemal contro! and the
annual review of ther effectiveress,
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* authonsing matenal acquisiions, disposals,
investments, capital proects and other
signdicard transactions,

* approval of changes to the composiion
of the Board, selection of Chaiman
and Senicr Independent Director and
succession planning,

* appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary,

¢ determining remunaration of Executive
Dwrectors, Company Secretary and
other senior executives,

« annual review of the performance of the
Board, its committees and its Direclors,

+ approval of core policies Including, but not
mited to, the Code of Conduct, Health
& Safety Policy, Corporate Responsibility
Policy, Accounting Policy and Procedure,

s moniionng the Group's overall performance
n relaton to its strateges, plans, budgets
and decwsions, and

+ authonsaton of conflicts of nterest following
recommendations from the Audit Committee
and/or Nominations Committee

Retirement and re-election

of Directors

The Company's Articles of Association (the
‘Articles’) currently require Directors to submit
thernsehves for re-election by shareholders at
the first annual general meeting (the 'AGM’)
following ther intial appointment to the Board
and thereafter at subsequent AGMs at intervals
of no more than three years, in accordance with
the Code Non-Executve Direclors are apponted
by the Board for an inal three-year term and
romaly serve a second three-year term
subject to performance review and re-glection
Beyond this a third term of up to three years
may be served subject to a ngorous review In
accordance with the Code, any Non-Executive
Director who served nine years or more on the
Board would be subject to annual re-election

The Board has noted the provision on annual
re-election of all Directors introduced by the
UK Corporate Governance Code {the ‘New
Code'} which applies 1o financial years
beginring on or aiter 29 June 2010 in view of
the very recent introduction of {his requrernent,
the Board has concluded it will not submut all
the Direciors for re-election at the annuat
general meeting to be held on 17 November
2010 (the '2010 AGM?) It will thereafter monttor
emerging practice and take account of
shareholder vews on compliance with this
requirement In respect of subsequent years

Bob Davies, the Semior Independent Drector and
Charrman of the Remureraton Committee, has
completed six years' sence on the Board this

year Bob is also a member of the Audtt and
Nominations Committees Following a farmal
performance evaluabon process by the Board,

n hght of hes penod of sence to date, the Board
has re-apponted Bob for a further one-year
term, subject to re-election, dunng which penod
he will reman the Senior Independent Dwector
and Charrman of the Remuneration Comimitiee
The Board believes that Bob's performance
continues to be effective, that he continues to
demonstrate commitment to his role and remans
independent n character and judgerment Bob
wall retire and stand for re-electon by shareholders
at the 2010 AGM, n consequence of the penod
that has elapsed since his last re-election under
the Articles

In addition to Bob Dawvies, Bill Shannon will
also retire at the 2010 AGM In consequence
of the penod that has elansed since his last
re-election and, being eligible, walt offer imseif
for re-election Billis a member of the Audit,
Rermuneration and Nominations Committees
Faliowang a formal performance evaluation
process, the Board believes that Bill's
performance continues to be effectve and
that he demonstrates commitment to his role

The Board recommends that shareholders
approve the resolutons to be put forward at
the 2010 AGM relating to the re-election of
Bob Davies and Bill Shannon

Information and professional
development

On joning the Company, each new Drector
partcipates in an induction process which
includes a mesting with all of the Directors,
provision of an induction pack, site visits
and meetings with senior and operational
managemernt teams

The Directors update therr skills, knowledge and
farmilianty with the Company by attending
appropnate external semnars and traning
courses, meeting with senior maragement and
wisiting regional and divisional operating offices

In January 2010, the Board met for a full day to
review and develop the overall business strategy
of the Group which included presentations from
senior management within the Group as well as
external professionals

Each Director 15 1ssued with an agenda, briefing
papers and comprehensive operating and
financial management reponts for the penod
under review at least a week before any Board
Meeting The Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary attends all Board and
Comrmittee Meetings and all Directors have
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access o his advice and, f necessary, to
independcent professional advice at the
Comparny's expense to assist with the
discharge of thewr responsibiliies as Drrectors
During the year the Board tock detaled advice
In respect of the raising of addibonal equity
through a Placing and Rights Issue from a
rumber of external adwsers including the
Company's legal adwvisers, Slaughter and May
{wath regard to English law} and Dawis Polk and
Wardwel LLP (with regard to US law) and the
Company's financial advisers Credit Suisse
Secuntes (Europe) Limited arxt UBS Investrment
Bank as Joint Spensors and Joint Bookrunners

Al Directors are provided with a schedule of
proposed meeting dates for the following
calendar year at least six months inadvance
Any Director who 1s unable to attend a meeting
presents thesr apologes and 1s invited to prowde
therr views to the Charman ahead of the
maeting having reviewed the agenda, briefing
papers and management information Reasons
for non-attendance are recorded by the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary After
the meeting the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary will meet with any absent
Director to go through any acton points which
are of refevance to that Director

Formal mnutes of each Board meeting are
prepared, circutated and submitted for approval
at the next meeting

Independence and effectiveness
Directors’ mmdependence

The Board believes that the Charman and all
Non-Executive Directors are ndependent in that
they have no business ar other relabonship with
the Group that night influence therr
ndependence or judgement.

Roles of Chawrman, Chief Executive
and Semor Independent Director
The dmsion of responsibiiity between the
Charrman of the Board and the Group Chief
Executve s clearly defined and has been
approved by the Board

The Charman leads the Board in the
determmnation of strategy and in the achievement
of ts objectives He i1s responsible for organising
the business of the Board, for settng its agenda
and for ensunng its effectveness The Charman
facinates the eftective contnbution of the
Non-Executve Directors and also ensures
that the Board recewves timely and accurate
information 50 as to properly conduct its
business as well as ensunng effective
communications with shareholders
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Corporate governance

The Group Chief Executive 1s responsible tor
the day-to-day management of the operational
actnties of the Group in accordance with
overall strategy and policy as determined by
the Board The Group Chief Executive, Mark
Clare, carnes out duties delegated to him by
the Board through an Executive Commtiee
compnsing of himself, the Group Finance
Director, Dawd Thomas, the Group Executve
Drrectors, Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton,
the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary, Laurence Dent, the Managing
Directer of Wilson Bowden Developments
Limited, Nick Richardson, Group Director of
Corporate Affarrs, Patnck Law and the Group
Peogple and Customer Expenence Director,
Jayne Mee The Executive Commitiee meets
on a weekly basis to discuss and review
operational matters and the implermentation
of the Group's strategy with a more in-depth
meeting held once a month, which alt
members are expected to attend in person

The Semor Independent Director has specrfic
responshility for co-ordinating the evaluation
by the Nominations Commitiee of the
Chaiman's effectiveness as well as being a
poirt of contact for shareholders in the event
of there being any matenal 1ssues or concerns
which the Chairman and/or Group Chief
Executive have faled adequately to address

Directors’ conflicts of interest
On 1 October 2008, the Comparies Act 2006
codified the duty to avord conflicts of interests,
by which Directors have a duty to avoid a
situation N which they have, or may have, a
direct or indirect conflict of nterest or possible
conflict of interest with the Company This

duty applies to the exploitation of any property,
information or opportunity regardless of whether
the Company cculd have taken advantage of it
The Articles were amended &t the AGM held on
18 Novernber 2008 to include a general power
for the Board to authonse such conflicts

The Board has, in accordance with the Articles
and best practice gudance, authonsed the
Audit and Nominations Committees to

oversee the process for reviewing and making
recormmendations to the Board conceming any
actual and/or potental conflicts of interest which
anse or may anse In relation to each member
ofthe Board including detalls of any terms and
conditons which it deems necessary to impose
on ary authonsation gven, This process was
camed out satsfactonly dunng the year

The Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary maintans a Register of Diwectors’
conflicts of interests which 15 rewewed every six

months by the Audit Committee who then make
recornmendations to the Board in respect of
any changes to the authonsations, or terms and
conditons applied, that may be required Each
Director 1s responsible, and 1s aware of therr
responsibilty, to notify the Audit Committee
and/or the Board of any new conflicts or
possible conflicts and of any changa in
crcumstances relating to authonsations already
gven The Board, when authonsing any conflict
or possibla conflict of interest, does not count
inthe quorum the Director whose conflict or
possible conflict is being discussed and
reserves the nght to exclude a Dwrector from a
meeting whilst a conflict or possible confict 1s
being considerad The Board may revoke or
vary any authonsation at any ume

Board Committees

The Board has established three standing
Committees. the Audt Committee, the
Remuneraticn Comimttee and the Nominations
Committee. Membership and attendance of each
Committee 1s shown in the table on page 39

The Audit Committee

All members of the Audt Committee, as
wdentrfied in Table 2 on page 39, are Independent
Non-Executve Directors in accordance with
Code proviston C31 The Board 1s satisfied that
Mark Rolfe, who 1s a member of the Institute

of Chartered Accountanis in England and
Wales and was formerty the Finance Director

of Gallaher Group Plc, has recent and refevant
financial experience

The Audit Commitiee met on five occasions
dunng the financial year The attendance at
each of these meetings s set out in Table 2
onpage 39 In addition, serior representatives
from the auditors, Delortte LLP { Delote’)
attended each of the Audit Commuttee
meetngs dunng the financial year

The Audt Committee invites the Group Chief
Executive, the Group Finance Director, other
members of senior management and senor
representatives of the external auditors to
attend meetings as required

Principal responsibilities

Under its Terms of Reference the Audit

Committee's principal responsibiities are

s monitonng the integrty of the Group’s
financial statements and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
performance,

* reviewing and challenging where necessary
the consistency of, and changes to, its
accounting policies,

*  monitoring the effectveness, iIndependence
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and chiectmty of the external auditors and
the effeciveness of the external audit
process and making recommendations to
the Board n relation to the appointment,
re-appontment and remuneration of the
external auditors,

s monitonng the Group's financial
management and reporting systems and
assessing the integnty and effectiveness
of its accounting procedures, system
of internal control and the process for
identifying and monitoring the nsks
facing the Group,

* reviewing and monitonng the effectiveness
of the nternal audit furction, the annual
Internal audit plan and all reports produced
by the internal auditor and management's
responsiveness to the findings and
recommendations of the internal auditor,

¢ reviewing whistleblowing procedures and
ensunng arangements are in place for
proparionate and independent nvestigation
and follow-up action; and

* reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the authonsation of Directors’
conflicts of interest

The Terms of Reference for the Audit
Committee are available from the Company's
website www barratidevelopments co uk

As well as camying out the work associated with
the annual financial reporting cycle, the Audit
Committee discharged a number of pnncipal
responsibiites dunng the year including, inter
alha, reviews the effectiveness of internal control
systerms, the Audit Commitiee's Terms of
Reterence; auditor effectveness, performance
and ndependence; non-audtt fees policy; the
whustleblowng palicy: the internal audt plan,
key accountng policees, judgements and ssues,
the externa audt plan and assocated reports,
re-appontment of the external auditors, and
Directors’ conficts of nterest

Re-appointment of Auditors
The Audit Committee consdered the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the audrtors to
the Company in August 2010 On the basis
that Deloitte's performance conttnues to be
satisfactory the Auclit Committee made a
recommendation to the Board to propose

a resolution re-appointing Deloitte as the
auditors to the Company at the 2010 AGM

Auditor objectivity and
independence

Deloitte provided non-audit related services
dunng the year pnmarily refating to the
Company's Placing and Rights Issue

which concludedt on 4 November 2009




The Company has developed and implemented
a policy on Auditor Indepencence and Non-Audit
Fees (the '‘Policy’) The Policy sets out the
duties of the Audit Commuttes relating to the
maintenance of audit ndependence and
non-audit fees and the services which the
audrtors can and cannot provide 1o the Group

Under the Policy the followang services should

not be provided by the auditors

» bookkeeping or other services related to
the accounting records or financial
statements,

» financial information systems design and
mplementation relating to the financial
staternents or accounting records,

* appraisal or valuation servicas or
tarrness opinions,

* gactuanal services,

* nternal audit outsourcing services, and

« management functions, legal services or
executive recruting

The Company s also requied, under the
Policy, to obtan written confirmation from the
auditors that they reman independent on an
annual basis The Audit Committee s therefore
satisfied that there are no iIndependence
1ssues In respect of the audrtors

Remuneration Committee
Allmembers of the Remuneration Commitiee,
as set out n Table 2, are considered by the
Cempany to be ndependent in accordance
with Code proviston B 21

Tessa Bamford joined the Remuneration
Committee on 1 July 2009

The Remuneration Committee met on six
oceasions dunng the financial year Attendance
at each of these meetings 1s set out in Table 2

Principal responsibilities

The Remuneration Committee's principal

respensibiiies include

+ determining and reviewing the overalt
remuneration policy of the Company
with regard to attracting, retaining and
motivating directors and senior managers
of the experience and calibre required,

* determining and reviewing executive
remuneration pelicy, including the terms
and condibons of ermployment for Executve
Dwrectors and ther indmdual remuneration
packages,

*  making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the remuneration of the Charman,

s agreeing targets and benefits in respect of
performance related pay schemes for all
employees which are challenging and
commensurate with industry practice,

« approving the rules of and the basis of
partiipation in Group share options,
long-term performance plans and cash
based bonus incentive schemes and the
specific awards, grants and payments
made under any such schemes,

»  dstermining the policy for and scope of
pension arrangaments for Executnve Directors
and senior management,

s agreeing severance arrangements or other
compensation for loss of office or early
retirement for all employees,

+ the evaluabon of Executve Director
pertormance with regard to the award of
share incentives, annual bonus and other
performance based remuneration, and
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* cbtanng independent professional advice In
refation to Executive Director remunerahon

The Terms of Reference for the Remuneration
Commitee are avalable from the Company's
wabste www barrattdevelopments co uk

Nominations Committee

The members of the Nominavens Comrmitiee,
the number of meetings held and the attendance
at each of these meetings are shown in Table 2

Tessa Bamford joned the Nominations
Committee on 1 July 2009

The Nominations Committes’s principal

responshilities include

* regularly reviewing the structure, size
and composition required of the Board
ard succession planning for Directors
and senior executives,

* dentifying and nominating candidates
tofil Board vacancies and evaluating
the role and capabiltes required for a
partcular appoiriment,

¢ revewng the leadership needs of the
Group to ensure continued ability of
the Group te compete effectively in
the market,

¢ annually reviewing, through performancs
evaluation, the time required from
Nor-Executve Directors to fulfil their
dutes, arxd

* obtaning details of and reviewing any
interests of candidates which conflict
or may conflict with the interests of the
Company and recommending to the
Board the terms and condilions on which
such conflicts should be authonsed

Table 2 -Membership and attendance at Board and Committee Meetings

Group Audit ARemuneration Nominations

Board Committee Committee Committeo
Mark Clare 15/15 - - 1/1
Steven Boyes 15/15 — - -
Clive Fenton 15/15 - - -
Dawid Thomas 15/15 - - -
Bob Lawson Chairman 15/15 - 6/6 Chairrnan 1/1
Bob Davies™” 15/15 4/5 Chairman 6/6 1/1
Rod MacEachrane 15/15 5/5 6/6 11
Tessa Bamford 15115 — 6/6 1/1
Mark Rolfe** 14/15 Chairman 5/5 - 11
Bil Shannon™ 12/15 3/5 36 0A

Includes three special meetings hald in respect of the Company's Placing and Rights Essue which concluded on 4 November 2009
** BobDavies Mark Rotie and Bill Shannon presanted theirr comments to the Charman pnor to the meetings they were unabls to attend

/15 Indicates number of meetings held whiist a Director

15/ Indicates number of meetings attended whilst a Diractor
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The Terms of Reference for the Nominations
Committee are avallable from the Company’s
website www barrattdevelopments co uk

The service contracts of the Executne Orrectors
and the letters of appointment of the Non-
Executive Directors are avalable for inspection
by any person at the Company’s registered
coffice dunng normal office hours and will be

s0 avalable at the AGM for 15 minutes prior

1o and throughout the meeting

Performance evaluation

In accordance with the Code, the Chairman
and the Non-Executve Directors met on one
occasion during the year ndependently of the
Executive Drrectors and the Senor
Independent Director met once durng the
course of the year with the Non-Executve
Directors independently of the Chairman, to
assass the performance of the Charman

Last year the annual evaluation of the
performance of the Board, s Committees and
ndviduat Directors was carried out internally
by the Chairman and the Group General
Counsel and Compary Secretary Actions
implemented dunng the year in respect of

the key 1ssues identified from the evaluation
included the appointment of Egon Zehnder
International { Egon Zehnder'}, an external
consultant, to undertake an evaluation of the
Board, ts Cormmmittees and ds Direclors, the
canstitution of a Risk Committee to dentify
and manage nisks throughout the Group and
report drectly to the Audit Committes, and

the review and development of the Company's
brand recognition and land acquistion
strategies at the Board Strategy conference

in January 2010

The evaluation by Egon Zehnder focused on the
key areas of Board Structure, Board Dyramics
and Relationships, Board Processes, Board
Committees, People and People Processes,
Company Strategy and Performance, Capital
and Risk and Progress and Benchmarking

A questionnaire dealing with each of these
1ssues was circulated to each Director for
completion and retumn Regular attendees at
Committee meetings were also asked to
complete questions on the performance of the
respectve Committees  Representatives from
Egon Zehnder attended a Beard meeting in
order 1o review how the meetings are
conducted and undertook one-to-one
interviews with each of the Directors

Egon Zehnder presented therr findings to the
Board in August 2010 and intend te provide
feedback, irom the evaluation, to each
individual Director relating to therr respective

performance and contnbution te the Board
and its Commitiees Recommendations from
Egon Zehnder included, inter aha, to increase
the frequency of meetings of the Nominations
Committee, to revise the procedures and
responsibiiity for reviewing the succession plans
for each of the Directors including the Charman,
t0 encourage Non-Executve Directors fo
increase the nurmber of site vistis beyond those:
prograrmmed into the Board meetings schedule
and to revise the layout of Board papers so as
o give more emphasis to the key 1Ssues that
need to be addressed by the Board The
Charrman, together with the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, wil develop
and submit an action plan to the Board to
implement the recommendations ansing

from the evaluation

Employment policy and
involvement

The Group 1s commitied to developing the
talents of its employees so that they can
maximise their career potential and to prowding
rewarding careers in an atmosphers that
ensures equal opportunities for all Selection
for employment and promotion 15 based on the
objective assessment of ability and experence,
gvng full and farr consideration to all applications
(including indrnrduals with disabilities) for
employment, and the Group 1s committed

to ensuring that its workplaces are free from
uniawful discnmination of any sort The Company
strives to ensure that its policies and practices
provide equal opportunities N respect of Issues
such as training, career development and
promotion for ali existing or potential staff
rrrespective of gender, race, ethnic ongin,
cotour, rehigion, physical disability, mantal status,
sexual onentation or age Every effori is made
to retain and support employess who become
disabled whilst working within the Group

The Board recognises that employes
engagement 1S a key factor inthe long-term
success of the Company and has implemented
a comprehensive emplayee engagement
pregramme with the aim of creating a strong,
shared culture All employees are nvited 10 take
part in an engagement survey each January
and the results of this survey are fed back to
each operating dvision who use the results to
formulate a plan for Improving engagement
dunng the year ahead

Akey part of effective employee engagement
is communication The Company ensures
that all significant events, economic factors
and financial updates and the impact of
these on the performance of the Company
are communicated to employees through
email alerts and regutar newsletters
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The Executive Committee regularty bnief senior
management via telephone conference calls
which allow them to ask questons and enter
into discussion The Board and the Executive
Commuttes alse wvisit operating dmsions and
working sites in order to talk to employees
face 1o face and get first-hand expenence

of employees’ aspirations and concerns

The Group runs a Graduate Recrutment

and Development Programme consisting of a
two-year mull-disciphnary programme of both
on-job and off-job medules Five graduates
have recently completed therr second year of
the programme and will progress intc full-time
roles in the business The Group has recruted
30 graduates onto the next two-year
programme which started in August 2010

The Group 1s committed to employee traning
and development at all levels of the
organisation and has introduced a sute of
teadership and management development
programmes aimed at all levels within the
organisation from graduates and middle
management to senor management The
programme is designed and delvered
nternally and s tailored to the needs of the
business Succession planning s in place
across the Group and the leadership
development programmes assist with the
development of mdmviduals as part of the
succession plan

In February 2010 the Company invited all
elgible employees to participate in the second
grant under the Savings Related Share Option
Scheme which was approved by shareholders
at the Company’s 2008 AGM (the 'SRSOS')
This gave those iIndmdiuals who had previously
participated in the 2008 grant, but not used up
al of thewr entierment, the opportunity 1o increase
thewr savings and gave new employees the
chance to participate in the SRSOS and
become more Involved in the Company's
performance Approximately 18% of eligble
employees participated

New inihiatives, such as an enling recrutment
systern and a flexible benefits package, were
introduced by the Group dunng the year to
Improve recrugment, motrvation and
engagement of new and existing employees

Investor relations

The Board beleves that the effective
management of Investor relations 1s critical

to its relationship with its shareholders and to
the market n which the Company's shares
are held, analysed and traded The Group's
corporate governance framework sets the
context for its continuing INvestor relations




programme particularly n respect of key areas
such as board membership, remuneration and
public accountahilty statements

The Group continues to develop its investor
communIcation programme N conjunchon
with its financial public refations {'PR") advisers,
Martland, and the Group’s joint brokers, Credt
Suisse Securties (Europe) Limited and UBS
Investment Bank The Company’s website
(www Carrattdevelopments co uk) provides a
full Company profile, regular corporate news
updates, access o the Company's share
price, reguiatory announcements and investor
relations information

Further, shareholder services have been
established whereby shareholders may deal
inthe Company's shares via its websiie and
also access the Company's share register to
view therr shareholding, with the opportunity
to make changes to therr account details,
including the downloading of aporopriate
forms and also access the history of their
shareholding

The Group's annual and intenm reports, together
with intenm management statements and haff
yearly trading updates, continue to be the
prmary means by which information about

the Group, ts Board and its business I1s
communicated to institutional and private
shareholders, mvestors and analysts In addrion,
other major Company publications are avalable
to shareholders on the Company’s website
www barrattdevelopments co uk The AGM 15
used to enable all shareholders to discuss the
Group's operations and progress directly with
the Board The Directors are avalable to answer
shareholder questions, informally, before and
after the AGM and the Chairman alsc invites
questions from shareholders durng the
meeting {nformation of a prce sensitive nature
18 communicated as required by the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary to
the Company Announcements Office of the
London Stock Exchange and the Group strives
to ensure that all key nformation 1s effectvely
and clearly communicated

In addition to the above formal communications,
the Group Chief Executve and Group Finance
Director meet regularly with institubonal
wvestors and analysts in order to convey an
understanding of the Group’s operations, the
market and its management objectves, and in
the year under review in excess of 100 such
meetings were held The aim is to meet with
ragor nstitutional shareholders at least once a
year Press releases on the Group's actvities are
made to journalists and the mecha throughthe
Group Press Office and its external PR advisers

The Group's joint brokers, Credt Suisse
Securties (Europe) Limited and UBS Investment
Bark, alsc work actively on behalf of the
Company in an effort to ensure that nvestors
and potential nvestors in the business are gven
reliable information on the Group's operations,
its values and ethos in order to make informed
nvestment decisions The Charman of the
Company and the Charman of the
Remuneration Committee also consult,
annually, with major shareholders on the
Company's remuneration policy

The Group Finance Director presents regular
reports to the Group Board on the Company's
nvestor relaticns actvities to ensure that it has
a clear understanding of the views of major
shareholders

Going concern

In determining the appropnate basis of
preparation of the financial statements, the
Directars are required to consider whether the
Group can continue in operational existence
for the foreseeabie future

The Group's business actwities, together with
factors which the Directors consider are likely
to affect its future development, financial
performance and financial position are set out
in the Group Chief Exacutive’s review on pages
6 to 8 and the Business review on pages 12

1o 25 The matenal inancial and operational
risks and uncertanties that rmay impact the
Group's performance and ther miigation are
outlined on pages 26 and 27 and financia! nsks
including hquidity nisk, market nsk, crecht nsk
and capital risk are outlined in note 25

The financial performance of the Group s
dependent upon the wider economic
environment in which the Group operates

As explained in the pnncipal nsks on pages 26
and 27, factors that particularly impact upon
the performance of the Group include changes
in the macroeconomic environment INcluding
buyer confidence, avalability of mortgage
finance for the Group's purchasers and
interest rates

0On 23 September 2009 the Company
announced a fully underwntten Placing and
Rights Issue, to raise gross proceeds of

£720 5m, and certan amendments agreed in
relation to the Group's financing arrangements,
which would come into effect following
completion of the Placing and the Rights Issue
and a reducton in the amount of term debt
The equty iIssue was completed on 4 Novernber
2009 and the amended financing arrangements
came Into effect on 16 Novemnber 2009
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The Placing and the Rights Issue, together with
the amended financing arrangements, have
significantly strengthened the position of the
Group and have enabled the Group to take
advantage of land acquisiion opportunities
There has been some recovery in the new
housing market dunng the year, although

the market remains subject to economic
uncertanty and a lack of mortgage finance
particularly in the higher loan to value segment
The amended financing arrangements provide
an appropriate alternative framework for the
Group should a further downturn arise

Accordingly, after making enquines, the
Directors have formed a judgement, at the
time of approving these financial statements,
that there 1s a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adeqguate resocurces to continue
N operaticnal existence for the foreseeable
future beng at least twelve months from the date
of these financial statements For this reason,
they continue io adopt the going concern basis
in prepanng the financial statements

Internal control and risk
management

The Board confirms in accordance with
principle C 2 of the Code that it has maintained
a sound systern of internal control, to safeguard
shareholders investment and the Company’s
assets There 1s an ongoing process for
Identifying, evaluatng and managing the
significant nsks faced by the Group that has
been in place throughout the year ended

30 June 2010 and up to the date of this report,
whichis regularly reviewed by the Board and
accords with the Turnbull gudance

JONYNIIAQD I

The Group's system of internal control 1s
designed to manage nsks that may mpede
the achievement of the Group's business
cobjectives rather than to eiminate those nsks
entirely The systemn of internal control therefore
provides only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance aganst matenal misstaterment or
loss The system of internal control does,
however, provide reasonable assurance that
potental problems can be identfied promptly
and appropriate remedial action taken

The Group operates internal controls to ensure
that the Group's financial statements are
reconcied to the underlying financial ledgers
A review of the consolidated accounts and
financial statements 1s completed by
management to ensure that the financial
position and results of the Group are
appropriatety reflected
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Governance

Cozporate governance

The Board is responsible for the Group's
systen of intermnal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness It s the responsibility of the
Executive Directors and senior management to
implement and mantain the Group's internat
control and nsk management systems in
accordance with policy approved by the Board

During the year a Risk Committee has been
established Subject te the general supervision
of the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee

is to review the effectiveness of the Group
companies’ internal control policies and
procedures for the identfication, assessment
and reparting of risks

The Risk Commuttee consists of standing
members compnsing the Group Finance
Director, Group General Counsel and
Comparty Secretary, an Operational Executive
Director and/or a Regional Managing Director
and the Chief Internal Auditor Gther members
of the Executive, Heads of function and senior
managers may be invited to attend meetings
of the Risk Committee having regard to the
business areas to be discussed

The key aspects of the Group’s system of
internal control and risk management
framework are as follows

I} aclear organisational structure with defined
levels of authonty and responsibility for
each operating division,

) extensive financial and management
reporting systems under which financial
and operating performance 1s consistently
reviewed against budget and forecasts at
dvisional, regional and Group level ona
rmonthly basis,

) principal nsk areas are embedded in the
Group's monthly management reporting
system so that nsk identification and the
control of nisk are a routine aspect of
management responsibility

These nsks include

» the market, including changes in the
macroeconomic environment, sales
and quality of product,

* [iquidity, ncluding the avalabiity of
sufhicient borrowing faciites,

* peocple, Including the development of
a skilled and experienced workforce,

* subcontractors and supgliers,

= securing sufficient land,

»  Government regulation, including
obtaning planning permission,

* construction, ncluding achieving key
milastones and the impact on the
environment and social surroundings,

* health and safety, and

* falure of the Group’s IT systems, and

) internal control and nsk management
systems are supported by the Group's
internal audit team which 1s responsible for
adwising senior management, the Executive
Directors and, through the Audit
Committeg, the Board on the operation
and effectiveness of those systems
The internal audit team undertakes a
planned programme of audit appraisals
across Group operations approved by the
Audit Coemmuttee, including full divisional
audits and targeted audits of key nsk areas
such as the land viability process, land
acquisition controf and monitoring, wark
N progress and subcontractor payment
controls Where the nternal audit team
does not have the expertise or resources
required to conduct complex audits they
use external expertise

Inaccordance with principle C 21 of the Code
the Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the Group's system of internal controls,
covering all matenal controls including financial,
operational and compliance contrels and nsk
management systems A nsk framework has
been developed for all business processes by
the imternal audit function and approved by the
Audit Committee This framewark forms the
basis of the internal control audit plan for the
year ahead, which tests if controls are being
applied effectively In each operating dwvision
Material issues identified during internal audits
and foliow-up action plans are reviewed by the
Exacutive Directors and by the Board on a
quarterly basis, and necessary actions are
Immedtately taken to remedy any falings in the
nternal control systerm

During the course of its review of systems of
internal control, the Board has not identified
nor been advised of any falings or weaknesses
which it has determined to be signficant
Therefore, a confirmation of necessary actions
has not been considered appropriate

In addition, the management teams of all
operating divisions identify key risks in their
monthly management reports to the Executive
Commitiee and complete a cantrol self
assessment twice a year in which they confurm
that they have appled approprate levels of
control The Audt Committee, as a standing
agenda item every six months, reviews the nisk
framework to determine if the system of
internal control remains effective and report on
therr findings to the Board Dunng the year
under review, the Executive Committee
pnortised the risk framework by identifying the
nsks considered most signficant to the Group
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For each of the nisks dentified, an assessment
has been made of the probability and potential
impact on the business and these risks are
reported oninternally and reviewed dunng
internal audits and control self assessments

!On behalf of the BO:Ed ]

nce Dent
Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary
7 September 2010
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

This year's Remuneration report 1s prepared
in accordance with schedule 8 of the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
(S| 2008/410) (the 'Regutations’) and will be

subject to an advisory vote at the Annual
General Meeting 1o be held on 17 November
2010 (the ‘2010 AGM)

The key 1ssues te be aware of this year are

1

Executive Directors did not receve a salary
increase in the 2008 or 2009 calendar
years, however they will receve one in

the 2010 calendar year

The Company's final salary pension
scheme ceased to offer future accruat of
defined benefits for current employees with
effect frorm 30 June 2009

Under the annual bonus scheme, the
payment for on-target performance
remains unchanged at 75% However in
order {0 ncentwvise performance the
maximum potential for the year to 30 June
2011 has been increased from 100% to
150% of salary Up to one-third of this
maximum bonus 1s payable n Company
shares and will be deferred for three years
It should be noted that prior to 2009 the
payment for on-target performance was
130% with a8 maxarmum bonus potential

of 180%

A clawback provision applies to any annual
benuses paid and to any share awards
granted under the Executive Share Option
Scheme ('ESOS) and the Long-Term
Performance Plan {the ‘LTPP"), subject,

in the case of HMRC approved options, to
the approval of HMRC The Remuneration
Committee (the 'Committee) has retained
its general discretion to reduce levels

of bonus and share vesting where the
Company's overall financial performance
relative to the housebulld sector does not
Justify the ndicated level of bonus or vesting
For the year ending 30 June 2011, the
Commitiee confinms that it wilt revert to its
policy of granting LTPP awards rather than
awards under the ESOS which was used in
2008 and 2009 The Committee will
maintain i preferred equal mx of Total

Shareholder Return {'TSR" and Earnings
per Share (‘EPS) performance conditions
and will be reverting 1o setting three-year
targets Further, the Committee recognises
that the Group’s recovery is not complete
and therefore will not revert to making
awards of 200% of salary, instead they will
grant awards of up to 150% of basic salary
Dunng the financial year ended 30 June
2010, Executve Directors were granted
further share options under the ESOS

Half of these awards are subject to TSR
performance condions and the other

half are subject to a senes of annual EPS
performance conditions One-third of the
awards subject to the EPS performance
conditions were based on the EPS
performance tor the 2008/10 financial year
Actual performance aganst the target was
61% and as a resutt vesting of 1017% of
the total award has so far been achieved
(see page 46 for further details)

Remuneration Committee

The Committee operates within Terms of
Reference and governance policies approved
by the Board and Is responsible on behalf

of the Board for

determining and reviewing the overall
remuneration poley of the Compary

with regard to attracting, retaining and
motvating Directors and senior managers
of the expenence and calibre required,
determining and reviewing executive
remungration policy, Including the terms
and conditions of employment for
Executve Directors and ther indnadual
remuneration packages,

making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the remuneration of the Chairman,
agreeing targets and benefits in respect of
performance related pay schemes for al
employees which are challenging and
commensurate with industry practice,
approving the rules of and the basis of
participabion in Group share options,
long-term performance plans and
cash-based bonus incentrve schemes and
the specific awards, grants and payments
made under any such schemes,
determmning the policy for and scope of

pension arrangernents for Executive
Dvectors and senior management,
agregng severance arrangements or
other compensation for loss of office or
early retirement for all employees,

the evaluation of Executive Director

performance with regard to the award of
shars ncentives, annual bonus and other
performance-based remuneration, and

* obtaning independent professional advice
N refation 1o Senior executive remuneration

The Terms of Reference for the Cormmittee
are avalable from the Company's website at
www barrattdevelopments co uk

Membership and proceedings of
the Remuneration Commattee

The members of the Commitiee during the
financial year were Bob Davies (Chairman),
Bob Lawson, Bill Shannon, Red MacEachrane
and Tessa Bamford The Committee met on
six 0ccasions during the financial year and
attendance at each of these meetings 1s
descrbed in Table 2 on page 39 of the
Corporate governance section All Commitiee
members are considered to be independent
with no financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the Committee’s decisions
The Group Chief Executive attends meetings
of the Committee as required but be 1 not
present when matters aifecting his own
remuneration are constdered

The Committee has comphed with the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance
and recognises its accountabilty on executve
remunerabon to shareholders through this report
and through regular dialogue with institutional
investors in determining future remureration
policy, t wil consider both the shareholders'
vote on the report and views expressed by
sharehoiders on the detail of the report

The Committee 1s curmently reviewing the
requirements of the UK Corporate Governancs
Code niroduced in May 2010 fthe ‘New Code),
and wil report the Committee’s compliance with
the New Code in the report and accourts for the
financial year ending 30 June 2011
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Advice

The Committee receved input into therr
decision making from Mark Clare, the Group
Chief Executive, Jayne Mee, the Group People
and Customer Experence Director, and
Laurence Dent, Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary Laurence Dent also acts
as secretary to the Committee These
indnviduals are not presant when therr own
remuneration 1s being discussed

Duning the ysar the Committes has taken
adwvice from independent advisers, Hewitt
New Bndge Street (HNBS'), a trading name
of Hewitt Associates Limited {Hewaitt')

In addition to advising the Committee,
HNBS also provided the Company with
advice on mplementing decisions mads

by the Committee and remuneration
benchmarking HNBS's fees for providing
such advice amounted to approximatety
£261,000 for the year ended 30 June 2010
HNBS and Hewtt did not provide any other
services to the Company

Mercer Human Resource Consutting Limited
has adwised the Company i relation to vanous
pension issues and has been appointed
actuary to the Barratt Group Pension and

Life Assurance Scheme since 2004

Remuneration policy

Each year the Committee reviews the policy on

executive remuneration in the context of the

business ervironment, best practice and

market trends for the current and subsequent

financial years The underlying principles

reman the same, namely, the Commitiee

bekeves that executive remuneration should

s be fully aligned with the performance of the
Company and the returms received by
shareholders,

s reward the sustaned growth and
profitability of the business, ang

¢ conform with market-leading best prachce

The Committee has the discrebon to consider
corporate performance on ervironmental,
social and governance 1ssues when setting

the remuneration of the Executive Bireclors
The Committee does take into account
environmental, social and governance nsks
when setting incentive structuraes for senior
management 1o ensure these nsks do not
Inadvertently motrvate iresponsible behaviour
The Committee has considered the structure of
the Executve Directors' remuneration packages
from a general nsk perspective and 1t 1s satisfied
that the packages, which mclude a market
competiive basa salary, an annual bonus

{with deferral) and long-term incentives do not

encourage inappropnate nsk taking Risk s also
taken into account when setting the targets and
when determining entittements under vanable
reward schemes, this 1s done by ensuring that
targets, whilst stretching, are realistic, attanable
and for the long-term benefit of the Company
and that they are not achieved by takang
inappropriate business risks The Committee
also considers the level of pay and employment
conditions throughout the Group when setting
Executve Directors’ remuneration

Central to the Group remuneration policy is
recognition that the sustained growth and
profitability of the business s determined In

no short measure by the skill and commuiment

of the Executive Team The reward policy for

Executve Directors seeks 1o provide remunerabon

and other service conditions which will attract,

retan, motrvate and reward Executive Directors
of a hugh calibre within the iIndustry’s highly
competitve employment market Within these
broad objectives, the executive remuneration
package for the following year 1s based on

the following pnnciples

+ performance-related remuneration should
be linked to the achwevernent of demanding
performance targets, currently
approximately 70% of the total executive
remuneration potential is performance
based (see Chart 1),

* performance-related remuneration should
align the nterests of executves with those of
shareholders by setting performance targets
based on measures of shareholder retumn
With the exception of the share optons
granted in 2008, which were basedona
retum on capital employed performance
metnc, the Committee’s policy ts to use a
combination of TSR and EPS performance
conditons to achieve ahlgnment, and

* total remuneration for outstanding
performance should be competitive with
that available elsewhere in the sector

Chart 1 demonstrates the balance between
fixed pay (base salary, benelits and pension)
and short and long-term performance related
pay for the 2010/11 financral year for the Chief
Executive based on a maximum payout basis
The remuneration package for
Executive Directors

The remuneration package for Executve
Drrectors compnses

* basic salary,

« annual performance related bonus,

* long-term share incentives, and

+ pension and other benefits

The performance conditions which apply to
the performance related element of executive
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remuneration are the same for all Executive
Directors and are set out in the following
sections of this report

Bas:c salary

Basic salanes for Executive Directors are a
feeed annual sum payable in monthly
instalments n cash Salanes are set having
regard to indwvdual respensibilities, skills and
expenence and to competitive market practice
for similar postions in targe national
housebulding comparues and also for
companies compnsing the FTSE 250

Given that salanes for Executive Directors and
Senior Managers have not increased since
July 2007 and that the Company's final salary
pension scheme ceased to offer future accrual
of defined benefits for current employees

with effect from 30 June 2008, the Board

has approved a Company-wide 2% salary
ncrease, in order to motvate and retain staff
This increase 1s comparative to salary increases
made by other companies in the sector In ight
of this, the Committee has approved a similar
2% salary ncrease for Mark Clare and Dawd
Thomas The Committee recognised that n
respect of Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton,

the two Executve Directors responsible for
housebuilding operatiens, it s criical for the
Company o remain competitive with others

in the sector and to mitgate s exposure to a
significant retention nsk, especially at such a
crucial tme in the sector's recovery Therefore,
the Committes has approved a salary increase
of approximatety 1156 for each of them

Salanes with effect from 1 July 2010 are
shown in Table 3 on page 45




Annual bonus

The annuat cash bonus 18 dependent upon the
achievement of demanding financial objectves
and key strategie measures for the business set
annually by the Board These include operating
profit, cash generation, personal objectives,
customer service, health and safety and
employee engagement For the financial year
ending 30 June 2011 the Executve Directors’
maximum cash bonus has been maintained

at 100% of basic satary

Te ensure that the Company's bonus
arrangements continue to incentvise
management to rebuild profitability, the
Committee has introduced a supplemental
bonus of up to 50% of basic salary, which may
be earned for signficant over-performance
This element will be deferred into shares in

the Company, which will be held under the
Co-trvestment Plan for a period of three years
with a continued employment condition

No other performance conditions will apply

to this award and the Committee has agreed
that no matching shares will be awarded
against these shares Accordingly, the total
annual bonus opporturity for Executive
Directors will be 150% of basic salary for the
financial year ending 30 June 2011 As with the
2009/10 financial yeas, payment for on-target
performance will remain at 75% of basic salary
It 1s worth noting that despite the Increase in
maxamum bonus potential for the forthcoming
year, on-target and maximum bonus levels
were higher prior to the economic downturm,
at 130% and 180% of salary respectively

The Committee has retained a general discration
inthe making of bonus payments, and will
censider, among other factors, the undertying
financial performance of the business relative
to the sector

As disclosed in the 2009 annual report and
accounts, a one-off payment of £100,000 was
rmade to Mark Pain duning the year in

consderaton of the extension to his remaining
I employmant beyond his required notice
penod, until 31 October 2009 Mark Pain's
other salary and benefits remained in place up
untl he left the Company on 31 October 2009

For the financial year ended 30 June 2010, the
Committee has approved a bonus payment of
approximately 90% of basic salary to Executive
Directors based on performance aganst
financial, non-financial and indnadual objectves
The Committee believes that this level of bonus
15 Justified on the basis that the Company has
delivered operating profit before exceptional
items {which determined 50% of the tctal
bonus for the year) of £90 1m aganst the
munimum threshold estabhished for the

bonus of £67m and the target level of £84m

No part of the annual bonus I1s pensionable

Bonus clawback

The Committee decided that for any bonuses

paid in respect of the financial year ended

30 June 2010 and iater years it will retain a

power of clawback This can be invoked 1f

{8) 1t1s necessary to restate the Company’s
accounts used to calculate a participant's
bonus, In circumstances where the onginal
over-statement has led to a bonus being
paid which would not otherwise have been
pad, or

{b) the participant 1s found guiity of any cnminal
actvaty In connection with his employment
and this related to an act whichled to a
bonus being pad to him or her

In such crrcumstances, the Committee may
determine that bonuses will be retrospectvely
recalcutated and, if bonus monies have been
paud, the participant will be required to reimburse
the Company for an amount up to the total
amount of the net bonus paxd less ary bonus
that the Commutiee determines would have
been pad regardless of the event in question

Table 3 - Executive Directors’ Salaries
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Share incentive schemes

Dunng the year the Committee undertook a
review of the share incentve schemes currently
N operation and agreed that grant levels,
performance criteria and vesting schedules
reman appropnate to the Company's current
circumstances and prospects There have
been no significant amendments to the terms
and conditions of any entitlement under any
scheme Details of all Executive Director share
option and long-term performance plang are
set out on pages 45 1o 49

New Awards to be granted
during the financial year ending
30 June 2011

The Commitiee has decided to grant LTPP
awards 1o Executve Directors dunng the
financial year ending 30 June 2011, instead
of granting options under the ESOS

The LTPP was approved by shareholders at
the AGM held In November 2003 Awards
under the LTPP are at the discretion of the
Committeg, taking into account indmdual
performance and the overall performance of
the Group An employee 1s not elgible to
recene options under the ESOS and awards
under the LTPP in the same financial year

Any LTPP awards that are made in the 2010/11
financial year (the ‘2010/11 LTPP Award') wll
not exceed 150% of basic salary and will be
subyject to three-year TSR and EPS conditions
The vesting of 50% of the 201011 LTPP Award
subyect to TSR conditions will be dependent
upon the Compary's perforrmance over three
years aganst the constituents of the FTSE
250, excluding investment trusts The full 50%
will vest if the Company’s TSR ranks at the
upper quartile or above, 25% will vest if the
TSR ranks at median and none of the 2010/11
LTPP Award will vest if the TSR ranks below
median The 2010/11 LTPP award will vest on
a straight Iine basis between the upper and
median targets

Per annum

2010 2009

£ c

Mark Clare 642,600 630,000
Mark Pain® - 350,000
David Thomas** 408,000 400,000
Steven Boyes 390,000 350,000
Clive Fenton 390,000 350,000

* Mark Pan stepped down from the Board on 21 July 2009 and is included 1n the tebie for pnor year comparative purposes onfy

= Dawd Thornas joned the Board on 21 July 2009
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The 50% EPS element will vest on the attainment
of the EPS target for the year ending 30 June
2013 The Commuittee believes that a wide target
range should be set for the EPS elerment n order
to ensure full engagement from management by
having an achigvable minmum vesting level
whilst requinng outstanding performance to
acheve maxirnurm fevel of vesting Accordingly,
the Comimittee has set the rrinimum vesting level
at 10 pence per share and the maxamum level

of vesting at 25 pence per share The award

will vest on a straight-line basis between the
minimum and maximum targets

For the 2010/11 LTPP, vesting will be subject to
an overnding Committee chscretion, in that the

Commitiee must be satisfied that the undertying
financial perfarmance of the Company over the
performance penod warrants the level of vesting
as deterrmined by applying the above targets

If the Committee 1s not of this clear view then it
will be empowered to reduca the level of vesting

Partial vesting of Awards under
the ESOS granted December 2009
The 2009/10 ESOS 1s subject to TSR and EPS
performance condiions The Committee chose
these targets as the most approprate measure
of financial performance for a housebuilder at
the time of the grant, as they are a fundamental
measure of the Group's underiying performance
and are directly inked to the generation of
returns to shareholders

Performance conditions

50% of the 2009/10 ESOS will vest on attanment
of a performance target based on relative TSR,
and 50% on attainment of a targst to be based
on EPS growth

The TSR element of the award will be calculated
as the percentage change in share price plus
dividends over a performance period against
the comparator group compnsing the FTSE
250 {excluding investment trusts), with the
opening share pnce averaged across the
dealing days in the three-month penod ending
immediately before the start of the performance
pencd and the closing share pnce averaged
over the dealing days In the last three months
of the performance penod

Levels of vesting aganst the TSR wil be as folows:

Level of Vasting

Upper Quartile or above 50%
Median 125%
Below Median 0%
Batween Upper Quartile Straight-line
and Medtan basis

The EPS element of the award has been dvided
into three one-year targets with the Committee
setting targets annually for the: forthcoming year
neach year The EPS for the Company will be
calcutated by deading the profit for the year
attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the
weghted average number of ordnary shares in
1ssue dunng the year, exchuding those held by the
Empiovee Benefit Trust Performance against
the annual EPS target will be tested at the end of
each of the financial years dunng the three-year
performance penod and each year's EPS target
will determine the vesting level of ong-sixth of the
total award, however, actual vesting will not take
place untl after the year ending 30 June 2012

The EPS targets, which are before exceptional
termns, and the level of vesting for the financial
year ended 30 June 2010 were as follows

Amount of EPS Element
Available for Vesting

(one-third of 50%) 16 67%
Minimum Target -4 4 pence
On Target -2 8 pence
Maximum Target -18 pence
Achievement Against Target 61%
Actual Level of Vesting 1017%

It should be noted that the approach of using
three one-year targets was adopted due to the
uncertan economic conditions prevailing in
2009 At that tme, the Committee stated that #
would revert to the policy of setting three-year
targets at the earliest opportunity and this will
be the case with the LTPP awards o be made
dunng the financial year ending 30 June 2011

Both perlormance conditons applyng to the
200910 ESOS, are subject to an overnding
Committee discretion to take into account,
among other factors, performance relative 1o the
sector and the undertang financal performance
of the business Including free cash flow

Details in respect of the approval of the ESOS
and the grants made under the ESOS in
December 2008 (the '2008/09 ESOS') can
be found on page 47

Executive share schemes currently
in operation

Long-Term Performance Plan

There 15 currently one unvested award under
the LTPP which was granted by the Company
n December 2007 (the *2007/08 LTPP')

Awards under the 2007/08 LTPP in 2007 were
based on an annual allecation of noticnal
ordinary shares equivalent invalueto a
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maximum of 200% of basic salary with vesting
takang place at the exprry of the three-year
performance penod of the plan, subject to
attanrment of the agreed perfomancs targets
There 18 nore-testing of performance condrbons

The Committee considered these targets to

be the most approprate measure of financal
periarmance for a housebuilder at the time of
the awards, as they are fundamental measures
of the Group's underiying performance and
are directly inked to the generation of returns
to shareholders

Performance conditions

50% of the 2007/08 LTPP will vest on
attainment of a performance target based on
TSR and 50% based on EPS growth

The TSR portion of the 2007/08 LTPP uses a
comparator group compnsing those compares,
excluding investment trusts, ranked 51-100

in the FTSE Index and 1s measured over a
three-year penod against the comparator
group The levels of vesting against the TSR
targets are as follows

Level of Vesting

Upper Quartile 50%
Median 10%
Below Median 0%
Between Upper Quartle Straight-line
and Median basis

The EPS for the Company Is calculated by
dnmding the profit for the year attnbutable to
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares i 1ssue dunng the
year, excluding those held by the Employee
Benefit Trust The levels of vesting against

the EPS targets are as follows

Level of Vesting

Exceeds RPIl + 18% 50%
Exceeds RPl + 9% 10%
Less than RPl + 9% 0%

Straight-line
Performance in between basis

The qualifying pencd for the 2007/08 LTPP waill
end on 21 December 2010 Periormance of
this award against the constituent TSR and
EPS targets wit be tested afier this date

Co-Investment Plan

The only unvested awards as at 30 June 2010
under The Co Investment Plan {the 'Plan’)
relate to the annual bonus earned above target
for the financal year ended 30 June 2007 (the
'2007 Award)




The Plan was approved by shareholders at the
AGM held In November 2005 and any annual
bonus eamed above target will normally be
compulsonly deferred into shares held under
this Plan (the ‘Basic Award’) The Executve
Directors also have the opportunity to voluntanly
defer additonal amounts of annual bonus up to
a maximum of 25% of basic salary into the Plan

Matching awards will be made by the Company,
if approved by the Committee, at the rate of one
for one for compuisory dedferral and at a
maximum of four for one for voluntary deferral
{the ‘Matching Awards') The Matching Awards
will be subject to performancea condiilons
measured over a penod of three years

Performance conditions

The relevant TSR and EPS performance
conditons for the 2007 Award are the same as
those used for the 2007/08 LTPP, as detaled on
page 46, with a qualifying penod which ended
30 June 2010 The TSR and EPS performance
conditions of the 2007 Award were tested after
the year end and netther of the targets had been
achieved Accordingty, the Basic Award will be
retuned to particpants and the Matching Award
will lapse.

As the maxamum annual bonus payable for
the financal year ended 30 June 2010 was
capped at 100% of basic salary there will be
no compulsery deferral of annual bonus into
the Plan for this year

Any supplemental bonus earned {uptoa
maximum of 50% of basic salary) for the year
ending 30 June 2011 will be deferred into
shares held under the Plan The Committee
has agreed that no matching shares will be
awarded aganst these shares

Executive Share Option Scheme

The ESOS was approved by shareholders at
the AGM held in November 2008 It was the
wview of the Committee that the focus on share
price growth ansing from the use of market
value cptions combined with ths performance
condition would ensure strong alignment with
shareholders Hawvng made grants under the
ESOS in December 2008 and 2009, the
Commuttee does not intend to grant further
options under the ESOS during the financial
year ending 30 June 2011 as an employee s
not eligible to receve options under the ESOS
and awards under the LTPP in the same
financial year

Options awarded under the ESOS must
normally be held for a minimum of three years
from the date of grant before they can be

exercised and lapse if not exercised within
ten years of grant The maximum number of
shares over which an employee may be
granted aptions n any financial year under
the ESOS will be imited so that the aggregate
cost of exercise does not exceed 200% of his
annual salary The exercise of options granted
under the ESOS 15 subject to the achievement
of an objective performance condition set by
the Committee

Performance condiions

For the 2008/09 ESOS, the Committee decided
to usa Return on Caprtal Employed (ROCE) as
the financial performance measure ROCE wil
be calcutated as operating profil (measured
across the whole year to 30 June 2011) drded
by shareholder funds plus net debt less any
ntangble assets (being the average of the 12
month-end figures dunng the same year} The
Committee considered that ROCE was the most
rounded measure of financial performance fora
housebuilder at the tme of this award and was
satsfied that the ROCE target range represented
a stretching target considenng the outiook for
the housebulding markest There will be no
opportunty to retest any performance criteria

The levels of vesting against ROCE wil be
as follows

Laval of Vesting

14 5% 100%
10 5% 25%
Less than 10 5% 0%
In between the upper and Straight-line
fower targets basis

Award to Group Finance Director

In recogrimen of his loss of benefit under tus
premviouts emplkoyer's long-term incentive and
share opton plans, David Thomas was granted,
as previously disclosed, a one-off award which
targets benefits equivalent to the options granted
under the ESOS in 2008 The option was granted
by the trustees of the Employee Benefit Trust
and, f and when exeraised, will be satisfied from
ordinary shares acquired in the market After
adjustment for the Company's Placing and
Rights Issue the option 15 over 1,016,656 ordinary
shares, at an exercise pnee per share of 36 06
pence. The options subject {o the same
performance targets as the options granted
under the ESOS in 2008 and 15 on substantally
the same terms and conditions as those options

ESQOS clawback

The Committee has retained a power of
clawback on any ESOS options granted during
the firancial year ended 30 June 2010 and
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later years on a simiar basis to that descrbed
on page 45 relating to the payment of annual
bonuses, subject in the case of HMRC
approved options, to the approval of HMRC

Executive Share Option Plan

The only vested award currently remaining to
be exercsed under the Executve Share Option
Plan {the 'ESOP") was awarded in 2003

The ESOP was adopted by the Compary in
November 1997 and options must be held for
a minmum of three years from the date of grant
before they can be exercised and lapse if not
exercised within ten years of the grant date
The exercise of options granted under the
ESOP was subject to the achievement of
cbjectve performance conditions set by

the Committee

Under the rules of the ESOP no further options
can be granted under this plan Options which
have been granted in previous years remain
unchanged and are set out on page 52 The
award granted to Steven Boyes in 2003 vested
In 2006 but has not been exercised

Savings Related Share Option
Scheme

The Savings Retated Share Option Scheme
{the 'SR30S") was approved by shareholders
at the AGM held in November 2008

JONYNIIACD I

The SRSOS was implemented in order to
promale share ownership amongst ak
employees of the Company, linking employee
benefit to the performance of the Comparny,
and te ad retention of staff

All empioyees and Executive Directors who
work more than 25 hours per week and who
have five or more years of continuous senice,
enchng on the date of grant, or such shorter
period as the Board may decide, with the
Company, or any subsidiary in the Group
nominated to join n the SRSOS, are eligible
to partcipate In the scheme The Board has
discretion to reduce the penod of qualifying
service and to invite other employees of the
Group toparticipate Under the SRSQS,
employees can save up to £250 per month for
three or five years and receve options to
purchase the Company’s shares at a discount
of up to 20% on the market value In February
2010, 704 employees (18 6% of those eligible)
applied to participate In the second grant of
options under the SRSOS

Pension benefits
The Company's pension policy for Executive
Oirectors s that they can choose to participate
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in the Company’s money purchase pension
plan or receve a cash supplement that does
not count for iIncentive purposes The defined
benefit section of the Barratt Group Pension
and Ufe Assurance Scheme {the 'Scheme'’)
was closed to new entrants in 2001 and 1t
ceased to offer future accrual of defined
benefits for current members with effect

from 30 June 2009

Mark Clare and Dawvid Thomas are paid a

cash supplement equal i 30% and 25%,
respectively, of basic salary per annum Up until
30 June 2009, when the defined benefit section
of the Scheme ceased to offer future accrual of
defined benefits for current employees, Steven
Boyes and Ciive Fenton were members of the
defined benefit section of the Scheme This
entitlement was based on a 1/60 accrual rate
and a normal retirement age of 65 The
entitlement of Clive Fenton was restncted by
the earnings cap imposed under the Finance
Act 1989, for service up to 5 Apnl 2006 and
thereafter was calculated by reference to his
basc salary Since 1 July 2009, Steven Boyes
and Clive Fenton are entitled 1o receve a cash
supplermnent equal to 30% of tharr respective
basic salanes per annum Steven Boyes
recenves the full 30% as a cash supplement
and Clive Fenton receves 20% as a cash
supplerment and the remaning 10% s paid into
the defined contnbubion section of the Scheme

The most recent full actuanal valuatien of the
Scheme as at 30 Novernber 2007 showed a
defict of £87 4m calculated on the basis of the
Scheme's technical provisions This was updated
1030 Jjune 2010 by a qualfied independent
aciuary and a defioit of £46 1mis included inthe
Group balance sheet as shown in note 26 The
Compary and the Trustees of the Scheme have
agreed that, with effect from 1 December 2008,
the Company will pay, n addition to the joint

contnbution rate, £13 3m per annum for seven
years to address the deficit

On 30 June 2009, the Company exercised Its
consent under the rutes of the Scheme and
agreed 10 cease offenng future accrual of
defined benefits for its current employees
The Comparny will continue to pay the deficit
reduction contnbutions at a level not lower
than the £13 3m agreed in December 2008
and will discuss the funding reguirements of
the Scheme with the Trustees if any matenal
change In the Group's financial circumstances
1s anticipated

Members of the Scheme became eligble to yoin
the defined contnbution money purchase section
of the Scheme with effect from 1 July 2009

Only the basic salary element of a Director’'s
remuneration 1s pensionable

Members of the Scheme are also eligble for
dependents’ penston and an insured lump
sum of four times pensionable salary on
death in service

Service contracts

All Executwve Directors, are engaged on the
basis of one-year rolling contracts which can
be terminated by twelve months' notice given
by the Company or by twelve monihs' notice
given by the Executive at any time Mark Pain,
who stepped down from the Board on 21 July
2008, could, and did, terminate his contract
by gving six months' notice There are no
specific prowsions for compensation on earty
termination or loss of office due 1o a takeover
bid The contracts entitle Executive Directors
to the provisicn of a company car and
membership of a private healthcare scheme
Detarls of Executive Directors’ service
contracts are included in Table 4

Table 4 - Executive Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Director Sarvice contract date

Non-Executive Directors’
remuneration

The remuneration of the Non-Executive
Drrectors 15 set by the Board on the
recommendation of a Committee of Executive
Directors havng regard to the time commitrnent
and responsihilities associated with the role
The remuneration of the Charman is set by the
Board on the recommendation of the
Committee again having regard to the tme
commutrment and responsibities of the role

The Charman and each of the Non-Executive
Directors are appointed under terms set out In a
letter of appontment They da not have service
contracts and thexr appointments can be
terminated (by the Board} without compensation
for loss of office and by gving the appropnate
length of nolice as prescnbed in ther respective
letters cf appontrment The notice penods
applicable to each of the Non-Executve
Drrectors are, or Bob Lawson, three months’
notice, for Tessa Bamford, Mark Rolfe, Bob
Dawvies and Rod MacEachrane, one month's
notice, and for Bill Shannon no nobice 1s required
Under govemance policies approved by the
Board, Non Executive Directors are appointed
for a three-year term and usually serve a second
three-year term subject to performance review
and re-electon Beyond thus a further term of up
1o three vears may be served subject to ngorous
revew by the Nominations Committee Detais of
Non-Executve Directors’ letters of appointment
can be found n Table 5 on page 49

Total Shareholder Return
performance graph

Figure: 1 prepared in accordance with the
Regulations, shows the TSR performance
over the last five years against the FTSE 250
(excluding nvesiment trusts) and against an
ndex of hsted housebulders The Board
has chosen these comparator indices as

Effactive date Notice penod

Mark Clare 27 June 2006 2 Qctober 2006 12 months
Mark Pain® 23 January 2006 1 March 2006 6 months
Dawid Thomas 5 May 2009 21 July 2009 12 months
Steven Boyes 25 June 2001 1 July 2001 12 months
Clive Fenton 1 July 2003 1 July 2003 12 months

Stapped down as a Director on 21 July 2009

BARRATT DEVELOPMENTS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2010




the Group and s major competitors are
constituents of one or both of these Indices
The TSR has been calculated using a far
method in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

Executive Directors

shareholding guidelines

The tollowing shareholding gundelines apply

to Executive Directors

= within five years of first appointment
Executve Directors are expected to hold
throughout therr remaining penod of office
ordinary shares in the Company equivalent
10 100% of ther basic annual salary,

« for the purposes of determining the
requisite level of each Executrve Director's
sharehelding relatve to basic salary,
the share price will be that prevailing on
30 June in each year, and

+ provided Executive Directors hold the
appropnate level of shares they are at

liberty to sell shares so as to realse their
LTPP awards or upon the exercise of share
options subject to the normat Listing Rules
and Disclosure Rules and Transparency
Rules requirements for Chrector
shareholdings

Both Steven Boyes and Clve Fenton miet

the shareholding guidelines until the recent
economic downturn which resulted in an
unprecedented reduction in the share price in
early 2008 The Committee reviewed the value
of the shareholdings of both Steven Boyes and
Clive Fenton as at 30 June 2010 and found
that Chve Fenton did nct meet the
requirements of the shareholding guidelines
Hawving regard to current economic conditions,
the Committee 1s not requinng Clive Fenton to
purchase additional shares to respond to this
termporary position however it will review the
position on or after 30 June 2011

Table 5 - Non-Executive Directors’ Letters of Appointment

Non-Executive Director

Date of last re-election at AGM

Date of imtial appointment

Bob Lawson 18 November 2008 1 June 2008
Bob Davies 27 Novermber 2007 5 May 2004
Tessa Bamford 17 November 2009 1 July 2009
Rod MacEachrane 18 November 2008 1 May 2006
Mark Rolfe 18 November 2008 1 May 2008
8il Shannon 27 November 2007 1 September 2005

Figure 1 - Total Shareholder Return
Source Datastream
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The following tables and accompanying notes constitute the auditable part of the
Remuneration report as defined in the Regulations

Directors’ emoluments

2010 2009

Gain on Gannon

Employer's exercise of  exercise of

Pension peansion Performance Bensfits 2010 2009 share share

Salary/fee  allowance contnbution related n kind Total Total options options

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000

Mark Clare 630 189 - 568 30 1,47 847 - -
Dawvid Thomas™ 384 96 - 362 13 855 - - -
Steven Boyes 350 105 - 316 23 794 370 1 -
Clive Fenton 350 70 a5 310 25 790 378 1 -
Mark Pamn” 217 29 - - 5 251 462 - -
Bob Lawson 270 ~ - - - 270 270 - -
Bob Daviesnan 55 -~ - - - 55 53 - -
Tessa Bamford 40 - - - - 40 - - -
Rod MacEachrane 40 - - - - 40 40 - -
Mark Rolfean 50 - - - - 50 AS - -
Bill Shannon 40 - - - - 40 40 - -
Total 2,426 489 35 1,556 06 4,602 2,533 2 -

* Mark Pan steppad down from his position as a Director of the Company on 21 July 2009 however he continued 1o be employed by the
Company up until 31 October 2009 Accordingly tha figures above include salary and benefits paid to Mark Pan for the penod 1 July 2009
1o 31 Cctober 2009 together with the one off payment made to him in consideration of um remaining in employment wath the Company

beyond his notice penod

.

A This figure includes £23,000 in refation 10 Michael Pescod who resigned on 31 December 2008
A4 These figures includs fees in respect of Charmanship of Board Committeas

The figuras for Dawvid Thomas cover the penod commencing from the date of his appaintment on 21 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

The Executive Directors receive taxable benefits in kind covenng the provision of a motor vehicle, private medical insurance,
some telephone costs and payment towards the cost of obtainng independent tax advice

There was no compensation for loss of office or any taxable expenses paid to the Directors dunng this financial year

From 1 July 2009 to 21 July 2009 inclusive Mark Pain received fees totalling £8,970 in respect of his Non-Executive Directorships
with Punch Taverns ple, Johnston Press PLC and LSL Property Services PLC Mark Pan was entitled to and did retain these fees

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests of the Drectors serving during the financial year and thesrr connected persons in the ordinary share capital of the
Company at the beginning and end of the year are shown below

No notificatilon has been recenved of any change In the interests below dunng the penod 30 June 2010 to 7 Septermber 2010 inclusive

30 June 2010 30 June 2009

Number of share options Number

Futly paid and awards ** Fully paid of share options

Mark Clare 1,218,698 2,993,066 520,869 1,060,769
David Thomas 186,000 1,684,244 - -
Steven Boyes 373,221 1,826,014 161,962 £95,019
Clive Fenton 259,401 1,672,117 101,273 584,102
Mark Pain” 100,000" - 100,000 10,769
Bob Lawson 490,242 - 213,149 -
Bob Davies 23,000 - 10,000 -
Rod MacEachrane 27,600 - 12,000 -
Tessa Bamford 26,500 - - -
Mark Rolfe 69,000 - 30,000 -
Bill Shannon 11,578 - 5.034 -

* Shareholding as at 21 Juty 2009, being the date on which Mark Pain stepped down as a Diractor of the Company
** Following the Company's Placing and Rghts ssue on 4 Novermber 2009 all Share Scherne entitiements, including number of shares under
option/award and option price per share, were adjusted to reflect the impact of the Rights Issue in accordance with the requirements of the

schemes by a formula approved by HMRC
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Long-Term Incentive Schemes
Details of movermnents in the Directors’ interests in executive long-term incentive schemes are as follows

51

Durng the year
Adjustment Market  Market
At for Placing At Date from pnceon price at Gan
Date of 30/06/09  andRights  Vested Lapsed  30/06110 which award wvesting recewable
award No lssue? No *** No No  exercisable” pence® pence £
Mark Clare
LTPP 16112006 111,861 - - (111,861) - 16112009 10050 - -
LTPP 21122007 212,770 111,701 - - 324,471 2112 2010 4310 - -
Co-Investment
Plan 18 10 2007 8,500 4,462 - - 12,962 1810 2010 6590 - -
Mark Pain**
LTPP 16112006 59,595 - - (69,595 - 16112009 10950 - -
LTPP 21122007 118,206 - - (118,206) - 2112 2010 4310 - -
Co-Investment
Plan 0312 2006 314 B2 (239) (157) - 03122009 11520 1267 303
Co-Investment
Plan 1810 2007 6,038 1,584 - (3.019) 4,603 1810 2010 6590 - -
Steven Boyes
LTPP 1611 2006 59,595 - — (69,595) - 16112009 1,0950 - -
LTPP 21122007 118,206 62,056 - - 180,262 21122010 4310 - -
Co-Investment
Plan 0312 2006 930 244 (709) {465) - 03122008 11520 1267 898
Co-Investment
Plan 1810 2007 6,038 3,168 - - 9,206 1810 2010 659 0 - -
Clive Fenton
LTPP 16 11 2006 59,595 — - (59,595) - 16112009 10950 - -
LTFP 21122007 118,206 62,056 - - 180,262 21122010 4310 - —
Co-Investment
Plan 0312 2006 830 244 (709) {465) - 03122009 1,1520 1267 898
Co-investment
Plan 1810 2007 6,038 3,168 - - 9,208 1810 2010 6590 - —

* The earest date on which an award may vest In normal circumstances, having fulfiled all qualifying conditions, after which ordinary shares
ara transferred automnatically as soon as possible

** Mark Pain stepped down as a Director on 21 July 2009

** These figures relate to the number of shares returned to participants in respect of the Basic Award ansing from detferred annual bonus
The Matching Award lapsed There were no qualifying conditions attached to thesa awards

A Following the Company's Placing and Rights lssue on 4 November 2009, all Share Schema entitlements, inctuding number of shares under
opton/award and option price per share were adjusted to reflact the impact of the Rights Issue in accordance with the requirements of the

schemes by a formula approved by HMRC

No new awards were made under any long-term incentive scheme dunng the year ended 30 June 2010

The performance of the TSR and EPS elements of the LTPP awards granted in 2007 will be tested at the end of the TSR
performance penod in December 2010

The performance cf the TSR and EPS elements of the Co-Investment Plan award granted in 2007 was tested after the year end
and nerther of the targets had been achieved Accordingly, the Basic Award will be returned to paricipants and the Matching Award

will lapse

The performance conditions for the LTPP and Co-Investment Plan awards are described on pages 46 and 47
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Directors’ share options
Detals of mevemants in the Dwectors’ nterests In executive share options are as follows

Dunng the year

Adjustment
At forPlacing At  Exercise Date from
Date of 30/08/08  and Rights Granted E£xercised Lapsed 30/06/10 price which Latest
grant No Issue” No No No No pence”  exercisable axpiry

Mark Clare
ESOS 1812 2008 49,180 25,818 - - - 74,998 40 18122011 17122018
ESOS 18122008 1,000,820 625,417 - - - 1,526,237 3640 18122011 17122018
SR80S 0302 2009 10,769 5,653 - - - 16,422 5708 01042012 30092012
ESOS 1012 2009 — - 1,037976 - - 1,037,976 2139 10122012 (09122019
Dawvid Thomas
ESOS 2500 2009 - 349,990 666,666 - - 1,016,656 3606 17122011 16122018
ESOS 1012 2009 - - 25,458 - - 25,458 1784 10122012 0912 2019
ESOS 1012 2009 - - §34,319 - - 634,319 12139 10122012 09122019
SRS0S 2903 2010 - - 7811 - - 7,811 11618 01062013 30112013
Steven Boyes
ESOS 1812 2008 49,180 25,818 - - - 74,998 40 1812 2011 1712 2018
ESOS 1812 2008 534,153 280,423 - - — 814,676 3640 18122011 1712 2018
ESOP 1010 2003 100,917 52,980 - - - 153,897 35737 10102006 09102013
SRSOS 0302 2008 10,769 5,653 - - — 16,422 5708 01042012 30092012
ESOS 1012 2009 - - 576,653 - - 576,653 12139 10122012 09122019
Clive Fenton
ESOS 1812 2008 49,180 25818 - - - 74,998 40 18122011 17122018
ESQS 1812 2008 534,153 280,423 - - — 814,576 3540 18122011 17122018
SRS0S 03 02 2009 10,769 5653 - - — 16,422 5708 01042012 30092012
ESOS 1012 2008 - - 576,653 - — 576,653 12139 10122012 09122019

» Following the Company s Placing and Rights Issua on 4 November 2009 &fl Share Scheme entitiernents, incuding number of shares under
option/award and oplion pnce per share, were adjusted to reflect the impact of the Rights Issue in accordance with the requiements of the
schemes by a formula approved by HMRC

The ESOS 1s dvided into two sub-schemes, one of which 1s approved under the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003 and
the other which 1s not The exercise price I1s calculated differently for each sub-scheme in accordance with the rules of the ESOS
The performance conditions for the ESOS grants are described on page 47

The performance condiion set by the Committee for the ESOP award granted in 2003, that the growth in EPS of the Company
aver a penod of three consecutive financial years should exceed the growth in the RP1 by at least 9%, was met n 2006, but the

optron has not yet been exercised

The mid-market share pnce of the Company on 30 June 2010 was 94 8 pence The mid-market high and low share pnces of the
Company during the year were 294 8 pence and 93 7 pence respectively Dunng the year, 72,916,666 ordinary shares were 1ssued
at 240 pence per share pursuant to the Placing and 545,525,090 ordinary shares were tssued at 100 pence per share pursuant to

the Rights Issue
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Directors’ pension benefits
Steven Boyes and Clive Fenton were members of the Scheme dunng the year ended 30 June 2010 Detalls of their accrued
benefits are as follows

Transfer value

of the
increase in
Increase In accrued
accrued pension over
pension over the year to
the year to 30 dune 2010 Increase in
30 June 2010 Total pension (net of accrued Transfervalue Transfervalue
{net of accrued at  nflation) less pansion over of accrued of accrued Change in
inflation) the and of Directors’ the year to pension at pensicn at  transfer value
contnbutions theyear contnbutions  30June 2010 30 June 2010 30 June 2008  over the year
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Steven Boyes 3885 271,417 58,464 86 4,057,346 3,678,847 378,499
Clive Fenton 598 41,464 8,382 18 579,702 513,376 66,326

Notes
With effect from 30 June 2009, the Scherne ceased to offer future accrual of defined benefit pensions for current employees and
the link between accrued benefits and future salary increases was removed

The total pension accrued at the end of the year 1s the amount that the Director had accrued when the Scheme ceased to offer
future accrual at 30 June 2009 plus revaluation in ine with the Scheme rules

Whilst the inflation measure has been negatve the accrued pensions have increased marginally n ine with the Scherme rules

All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes
(Teansfer Value) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 The transfer values of the accrued pension represent the value of assets that the
pension schema would need to transfer to another pension provider on transiernng the Scheme's hability in respect of the
Drrectors' pension benefits They do not represent sums payable to indwdual Directors and, therefore, cannot be added

meaningfulty to annual remuneration

The increase In the transfer value includes the effect of fluctuations in the transfer value due to factors beyond the control of the
Company and its Durectors, such as Stock Market movements

The figures do not take account of any retained benefits the members may have

Except as disclosed in respect of Chive Fenton on pages 48 and 50, none of the Directors have any nghts under the Company's
rmoney purchase pension scheme

There were no changes n the interests of the Directors shown above between 30 June 2010 and 7 September 2010

The Remuneratd

Robert Davies
Non-Executive Director
7 September 2010
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’

RESPONSIBILITIES

Financial statements and accounting records
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report
and Accounts inctuding the Directors’ Remuneration report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable

{aw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
staternents for each financial year The Directors are required
by the International Accounting Standards Regulation (the 'JAS
Regulation’) to prepare the Group financial statements under
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union ('IFRS") and have also elected to prepare the
Parent Company financial statements in accordance with IFRS
The financial statements are also required by law to be properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation Under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, the Directors must not approve the
acceunts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and

fair view of the state of affarrs of the Company and of the

profit or loss of the Company for that perod

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial
statements present farly for each financial year the Company's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows This
requires the fasthful representation of the effects of transactions,
other events and conditions In accordance with the definiions
and recognition criteria for assets, labilities, ncome and
expenses set out n the International Accounting Standards
Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of
finanoial statements’ In virtually all crcumstances, a far
presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable
IFRS Directors are also required to

* properly select and apply accounting policies,

» prasent information, iIncluding accounting policies, N a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient 1o enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and
financial performance, and

* make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern

The Directors are responstble for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonabte accuracy at any
time the financial pesition of the Company and enable them

1o ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hance for

taking reasonable sieps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other rregularties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial nfarmation included on the
Company's website Legislation in the Urvted Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
staterments may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors confirm that, to the best of each person’s
knowledge

a} the Group and Parent Company financial statements
contained n this report have been prepared n accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ((FRS")

as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
International Financial Reportng Interpretations Committee
Interpretations and Standng Interpretations Committee
interpretations as adopted and endorsed by the European
Union, and those parts of the Companies Act 2006
apphcable to companies reporting under IFRS, give a true
and far view of the assets, labdites, financial position and
proftt or loss of the Company and of the Group taken as
awhole, and

1he management report contained in this report includes

a far review of the development and performance of the
business and the positicn of the Company and the Group
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
nsks and uncertainties they face

b

The Directors of the Company and therr functions are listed
on pages 28 and 29

By order of the Board
1;-':; ,- J‘\‘) Pt

D F Thomas
Group Finance Director

M § Clare
Group Chief Executive

7 September 2010 7 September 2010

The Directors’ Report from pages 4 to 54 inclusive was
approved by the Board on 7 September 2010 and 1s signed

on its behalf by M
|utven

L Dent
Greup General Counsel and Company Secretary

7 September 2010
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Barratt

Developments PLC

We have audited the financial staternents of Barratt
Developments PLC for the year ended 30 June 2010 which
comprise the Consclidated income statement, the Group and
Parert Company balance sheets, the Group and Parent
Company cash flow statemenits, the Group and Parent
Company statements of comprehensive incoms, the Group
and Parent Company statements of changes in shareholders'
equity, the Accounting policies and the refated notes 1 to 33
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation s apphcable law ard International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Urion
(IFRS" and as regards the Parent Company financial
statements, as appled in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a
body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our aud:it work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those matters
wa are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no cther purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this repon, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors

and auditors

As explaned more fully n the Statement of Directors’
responsibiities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and far view Our respensibility 1 to audit the financal
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Beard's
{‘APB's") Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or arror
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent
Compary's arcumstances and have been consistentty applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estrmates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opion
» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affars as at
30 June 2010 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended.,

» the Group financial staternents have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRS,

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with IFRSs and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,
and

« the financial statements have been prepared N accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regutation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

Compares Act 2006

In our opimon

 the part of the Directors' Remuneration regort to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, arkd

« the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared i1s
congistent with the financ:al staterments

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to

you if, In our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the Parent Company financial staterments and the part of the
Dwectors’ Remuneration report to be audted are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

« we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the Directors' statemnent contained within the Directors’
Report in relation to going concern, and

= the part of the Corporate Governance statement relating
10 the Parent Company’s compliance with the rine provisions
of the June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review

(5. Latrodd tour

Graham Richardson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalt of Delottte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, Unrted Kingdom

7 September 2010
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

Year ended 30 June 2010
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
Before  Exceptional Before  Exceptional
exceptional tems exceptional items
itams (note 3) tems {nota 3)
Notes £m £m £m tm £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1,2 2,0352 - 2,035 2 22852 - 22852
Cost of sales (1,850 4) (4 8) {1,855 2) (2155 B) (4995 (2,8553)
Gross profit/{loss) 1848 {4 B) 1800 129 4 {499 5) {3701)
Administrative expenses (94 7) {11 0) {105 7) {95 2) (200) (115 2)
Profit/{loss) from operations 4 901 (15 8) 743 342 5199 {485 3}
Finance income 5 134 - 134 180 - 180
Finance costs 5 (1350) (114 1) {2491) (185 3) (13 3) {208 6)
Net finance costs 5 {t216) (114 1) (236 7) 77 3) (123 {190 6)
Share of post-tax loss from joint
ventures 13 {15) - (15) {10) {20) (30)
Loss before tax (330) (129 9) (162 9) (1441) {634 8) {678 9)
Tax 7 91 354 44 5 620 148 3 2103
Loss for the year from continuing
operations {23 9) {94 5) (118 4) {821) {386 5) {468 6)
Loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders (23 9) (94 5) (118 4) 821) (386 5) (468 6)
Loss per share from continuing
operations
Basic and diluted {restated™) 9 {14 B)p 89 1)p
*  Loss per share from continuing cperabions has been adjusted to reflect the Rights Issue as required by IAS 33 Earnings per Share
Year ended 30 June 2010
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes £m £m £m £m
Loss for the year (118 4} (468 6) {143 6) (202
Other comprehensive (expense)/income
Losses on cash flow hedges 5,29 {43 6) {62 8) (43 6) 62 8)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes 26 (26 3) 141) (26 3) (141)
Tax credit on items taken directly to equity 7 199 218 195 216
Net loss recogmised directly in equity (50 Q) (B51) (50 9) {55 3)
Amorbsation of losses on cancelled interest rate swaps
deferred in equity 5 02 04 02 04
Transfer from/to) income statement on cash flow hedges -
non exceptional 29 141 217) 141 217)
Transfer from income statement on cash flow hedges —
exceptional 29 501 - 501 -
Tax (charge)/crecit on items taken directly to equity 7 (18 0) 60 {18 0) 80
Net profit/{loss} transferred 454 {15 3) 464 {15 3)
Total comprehensive expense recognised for the year
attnbutable to equity shareholders (122 Q) {539 O} {147 6) (90 8)

The notes on pages 61 10 127 form an integral part of these financiat statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Group 30 June 2010
Share- Total
Share Share Merger Hedging Own based Retained retamed
capital premum reserve reserve shares payments earnings earmngs Total
£m £m £m £m em £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2008 347 2066 1,080 (34) (28 140 15007 15209 28678
L.oss for the year - - - - - - {4686) {4686) (4686)
L.osses on cash fiow hedges - - - (62 B) - - - - 628)
Transfer to Income statement on
cash flow hedges - - - 217) - - - - 217)
Amortisation of losses on cancelled
interest rate swaps deferred in equity - - - 04 - - - - 04
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - (141) (141) (14 1)
Tax on tems taken directly to equity - - - 236 - 02 40 42 278
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year ended
30 June 2009 - - - (60 5) - Q2 (4787) {4785 (5390)
Share-based payments - - - - - 28 - 28 28
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested options - - - - - 21 21 - -
At 30 June 2009 347 2066 11090 839 (28 149 1,0331 10452 2,3316
Lass for the year - - - - - - (1184 (1184) (M84)
Lasses on cash flow hedges - - - (43 8) - - - - (43 B6)
Transfer from income statement on
cash flow hedges — non exceptional - - - 141 - - - - 141
Transfer from income statement on
cash flow hedges - exceptional - - - 501 - - - - 501
Amortisation of losses on cancelled
interest rate swaps deferred in equity - - - 02 - - - - 02
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - (26 3) (263) (263}
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - {& 8) - 04 73 77 19
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year ended
30 June 2010 - - - 150 - 04 (1374 (1370) (1220}
Share-based payrments - - - - - {02) - 02 02
Issue of shares 618 - - - - - 6587 6587 72056
Fees relating to 1ssue of shares - - - - - - {27 5) (27 5) {27 5}
Purchase of shares by Employes
Benefit Trust - - - - {22} - - 22 22)
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested options - - - - - (19 19 - -
At 30 June 2010 96 5 2066 1,1090 {489) (50} 132 1,5288 1,5370 2,9002

* Orcinanly the excess of the pro¢eeds over the nominal value of the share capital would be credited te non-distnbutable share premium account
However the Placing and the Rights kssue were effected through a structure which resulted in the excess of the proceeds over the nominal valus
of the share capital Issued being recognised within retained eamings

The notes on pages 61 to 127 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Company 10 June 2010
Share- Total
Share Share Merger Hedging Oown based Retained retained
cap:tal premium raserve reserve shares payrnenls eamings eamings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July 2008 347 2066 11080 34 (28) 108 11516 13596 25065
Loss for the year - - - - - - 202) {202 (20 2}
Losses on cash flow hedges - - - {62 8) - - - - (62 8)
Transfer to income statement on
cash flow hedges - - - {217) - - - - 217)
Amortisaton of losses on cancelled
Interest rate swaps deferred in equity - - - 04 - - - - 04
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - (141) {14 1) (14 1)
Tax on tems taken directly to eguity - - — 236 - - 40 40 276
Total comprehensive expense
recogmsed for the year ended
30 June 2009 - - - {609 - - (303) {30 3) 80 8)
Share-based payments - - - - - 28 - 28 28
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested options - - - - - 21) 21 - -
At 30 June 2009 347 2066 11090 (63 9} 28 115 11234 11321 24185
Loss for the year - - - - - - {1436) (1436) (1436)
Losses on cash flow hedges - - - {436} - - - - (43 6)
Transfer from income statement on
cash flow hedges — non exceptional - - - 141 - - - - 141
Transfer from income statement on
cash flow hedges - exceptional - - - 501 - - - - 501
Amortsation of losses on cancelled
nterest rate swaps deferred in equity - - - 02 - - - - 02
Actuanal losses on pension scheme - - - - - - (26 3) (26 3) (26 3)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - (5 8) - - 73 73 15
Total comprehensive expense
recognised for the year
ended 30 June 2010 - - - 150 - - (1626) (1626} (1478}
Share-based payments - - - - - (02} - {02} (0 2)
Issue of shares 618 - - - - - 6587 6587 7205
Fees relating to 1ssue of shares - - - - - - {27 5) {27 5} {27 5}
Purchase of shares by Employee
Benefit Trust - - - - 22 - - (22 22
Transfer of share-based payments
charge for non-vested options - - - - - {19 19 - -
At 30 June 2010 965 2066 1,090 (48 9) {50) 94 15939 16983 29615

* Ordinanty, the excess of the proceeds aver the nominal value of the share capital would be credited to non distnbutable share premium account
However the Placing and the Rights Issue were effected through a structure which resulted in the excess of the proceeds over the nominal value
of the share capital 1Issued beng recogmsed within retaned eamings

The notes on pages 61 to 127 form an integral part of these financial statements
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At 30 June 2010
Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Cther intangible assets i 1000 1000 - -
Goodwill 10 792 2 7922 - —
Property, plant and equipment 12 67 99 11 28
Investments 14 - - 26154 24160
Investments accounted for using the equity method 13 799 83z - -
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 136 3 865 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 08 15 - -
Deferred tax assets 16 1733 1273 808 346
Dervative financial nstruments - swaps 24 327 e 327 319
1,321 9 12325 2730 0 24853
Current assets
Inventories 17 3,342 3 35408 - -
Trade and other receivables 18 661 415 §99 8 15127
Cash and cash equivalents 21 546 5 1788 5221 1630
Current tax assets - 50 6 - -
3,954 9 38117 1,421 9 16757
Total assets 5,276 8 5,044 2 41519 41610
Liabiities
Non-current habilities
L.oans and borrowings 23 {918 6) {1,475 6} {918 6} {1,475 6)
Trade and other payables 19 {300 g) (245 4} - -
Retirement benefit obligations 286 {4681) (315} 46 1) (31 5)
Dervative financial instruments — swaps 24 {72 4) (89 2} (72 4) (89 2)
(1,337 9) {1,.8417) (1,0371) (1,596 3)
Current habilities
Loans and borrowings 23 (23 2) 85 (116 3) (111 8)
Trade and other payables 19 {1,0127) 862 4) 361) (34 4)
Current tax labihties 28) — {0 9) —
{1,038 7) 870 9) {153 3) {146 2)
Total habilities (2,376 6) 2,712 6) 1,190 4) (1,742 5)
Net assets 2,900 2 23316 2,961 5 241856
Equity
Share caprtal 27 965 347 96 5 347
Share premium 206 6 2066 206 6 2066
Merger reserve 1,1090 1,1090 1,109 0 1,1090
Hedging reserve (48 9) 63 9) {48 9) 63 9)
Retained earnings 1,5370 10452 1,598 3 1,1321
Total equity 2,900 2 2,3316 2,961 5 24185

The financial statements of Barratt Developments PLC {registered number 604574) were approved by the Board of Directors and

authonsed for Issue on 7 September 2010

M S Clare D F Thomas
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director

bghalf of the Board of Director:
-‘l"tj (—‘4\7% >

The notes on pages 61 to 127 form an integral part of these financial statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Year ended 30 June 2010
Group Company
2009 2009
2010 {resiated"} 2010 (restated®)
Notes £Em £Em £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30 201 4 4078 2453 1812
Cash flows from investing activittes
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 04 21) (C3) 20
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 23 - -
Acquisition of subsidarnes net of cash acquired - a0 - -
Decrease/(increase) In investments accounted for using
the equity method 13 18 207) - -
Interest receved 65 37 559 1726
Net cash inflow/{outfiow) from investing activibes 79 (20 8) 556 170 6
Cash flows from financing actiwities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 27 7205 - 7205 -
Share i1ssue costs 27 (27 5} - (27 5) -
Purchases of shares by Employee Benefit Trust 27 {2 2} - (22 -
Make-whole fee on redermption of private placement notes 3 {49} - 49 -
Hedging termination costs (497} - (49 7) -
Other fees related to amendment of fimancing
arrangements 5 {6 5) - (6 5) -
Loan repayments (561 3) {241 0) (571 5) (188 8)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 684 (241 0) 58 2 (188 8)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3677 1460 3591 1630
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 178 8 328 163 0 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 21 546 5 178 8 5221 163 0

* The categonsation of vanous items within the cash flow statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 has been reclassified for consistency of

presentation wath the year endad 30 Jung 2010

The notes on pages 61 1o 127 form an integral part of thess financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Year ended 30 June 2010

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS} as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{'1ASB", Intermational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ('IFRIC} interpretations and Standing Interpretations
Committes {'SIC") Interpretations as adopted and endorsed

by the European Union ('EU’) and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS and therefore the Group financial statements comply

with Article 4 of the EU International Accounting Standards
Regulation The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation

of avallable for sale inancial assets, dervative financial
instruments and share based payments A summary of the
more significant Group accounting policies 1S set out below

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of
estrmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and labities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng
the reporting period Although these estimates are based on
the Directors’ best knowledge of the amounts, actual results
may ultmately differ from those estimates The most significant
estimates made by the Directors In these financial statements
are set out In ‘Cntical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty’

Going concern

in determining the appropriate basis of preparatien of the
financial statements, the Directors are required to consider
whether the Group can continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future

The Group's business actrities, together with factors which

the Directors consider are likely to affect its future development,
financial performance and financial position are set cut inthe
Group Chigf Executive’s review on pages 6 to 9 and the
Business review on pages 12 to 21 The matenal financal and
operational nsks and uncertaintes that may impact the Group’s
performance and therr mitigation are outined on pages 26

and 27 and financial nsks ncluding lquidity nsk, market nsk,
credit nsk and capital nsk are outined In note 25 to the

financial statermnerts

The financial performance of the Group 1s dependent upon
the wider econormic environment in which the Group operates
As explained n the Principal nisks on pages 26 and 27, factors
that particularly impact upon the performance of the Group
include changes in the macroeconomic ervironment ncluding
buyer confidence, availability of mortgage finance for the
Group's purchasers and interest rates

On 23 Septernber 2009 the Company announced a fully
underwntten Placing and Rights Issue, raising gross proceeds

of £720 5m, together with amended financing arrangements
The equity 1ssus was completed on 4 November 2009 and
the amended financing arrangements came into effect on
16 November 2009

The Placing and the Rights Issue, together with the amended
financing arrangements, have significantly strengthened the
position of the Group and have enabled the Group to take
advantage of land acquisition opportuniies There has been
some recovery In the new heusing market durning the year,
although the market remains subject te economic uncartainty
and a lack of mortgage finance particularly in the higher loan
to value segment The amended financing arrangements
provide an approprate alternative framework for the Group
should a further downturn anse

Accordingly, after making enquines, the Drectors have formed
a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements,
that there 1s a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources {0 continue N operatenal existence for the
foreseeable future, being at least twelve months from the date
of these financial statements For this reason, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis In preparnng the financial
statements

Adoption of new and revised standards
In the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group has adopted

IAS1 (revised) ‘Presentation of Financial Staterments’, IFRS8
‘Operating Segmants’, IAS23 (revised) ‘Borrowing Costs’,
IFRS? (revised) 'Share-based Payments’, Amendment to IFRS7
Improving Disclesures about Financial Instruments’, IFRS3
{revised) '‘Business Combinations’, IFRIC15 'Agreements for the
construction of real estate’, Amendment to FRS1 and 1AS27
‘Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-Controlled Entity
or Associate’, certan Improvernents to IFRSs, Amendment

to 1AS39 ‘Elgible hedged itemns', IFRIC16 'Hedges of a net
investment i a foreign operation’, Amendments to 1AS32
‘Financial Instruments  Presentation’ and IAS1 'Presentation

of financial statements for certain puttable dnancial Instruments
and cbligations ansing on lquidaton’, IAS27 revised)
'‘Consoldated and separate financial statements’, IFRS1
(revised) ‘First Time Adoption of IFRS', IFRIC17 'Distrbutions

of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’, IFRIC18 ‘Transfers of Assets
from Customers' and Amendments to IFRICA/1AS39
'Embedded denvatves’

1AS1 (revised) 'Presentation of Financial

Statements’

* |AS1 (revised) requires the preduction of a statement of
comprehensive income setiing out all tems of income and
expense relating to non-owner changes inequity There s
a choice between presenting comprehensve INCome in
one statement or In two statements compasing an income
statement and a separate statement of comprehensive
income The Group has elected to present comprehensive
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Financial statements
Accounting policies

Income In two statements In addition, 1AS1 (revised) requires
the staterent of changes in shareholders’ equity to be
presented as a pnmary statement The cther revisions to LAS1
have not had a significant impact on the presentation of the
Group's financial information  Following the adoption of IAS1
{revised), having assessed the matenality of restatements
arising from the adoption of new standards and interpretations
n the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2010,
and the mpact of restating earnings per share tn accordance
with [AS33 faliowing the Rights Issue, the Directors consider
that these have not had a sigrificant impact upon these
financial statements and accordingly balance sheets at

30 June 2008 are not presented

IFRS8 ‘Operating Segments’

» IFRS8 requires operating segments to be dentified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
which In the case of the Group 1s the Board, to allocate
resources to the segments and tc assess ther performance
In contrast, the predecessor standard (|AS14 'Segment
Reporung’) required the Group to dentify two sets of
segments (business and geographical), using a nsks and
rewards approach, with the Group's system of internal
financial reporting to key management personnel serving only
as the starting point for the entification of such segments

The Group has deterrmined in accordance with IFRS8 that its
reported operating segments will be based on business
segments (which were the basis of ts pnmary operating
segments under |AS14), and the segmental information set
out N note 2 1s presented on this basis The adoption of

this standard has not resulted in a change in the Group's
reporiable segments and accordingly there has been no
change in the allocation of goodwill between existing
cash-generating units IFRS8 also requires the disclosura

of nformation about geographical segmentation As the
Group cperates in a single geographic market, no secondary
segmentation Is provided

I1AS23 (revised) '‘Borrowing Costs'

* |AS23 (revised) requires the capitalisation of borrowing
costs directly attrbutable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a substantal
penod of time to get ready for use) as part of the cost of the
asset The amendment removes the option of immediately
expensing borrowing costs, subject to an exemption for
nventones manufactured in large numbers on a repetitive basis

The Group has evaluated its business processes and where
developments are considered 1o fall under the requirements
of lAS23 (revised) costs are capialised Borrowing costs of
£nil have been captalised at 30 June 2010 IAS23 (revised)
applies prospectively and therefore no restatement to prior
years s required on Implementation

IFRS32 (revised) ‘Share-based Payments’

» The amendment to IFRS2 requires non-vesting conditions
o be taken into account i the estimate of the fair value of
the equity nstruments  The adoption of the amendment has
resulted i a charge of £0 4min the administrative expenses
charged in the consohdated ncome statement for the year
ended 30 June 2010 and no net change n equity at 30 June
2010 The change In accounting policy had no iImpact upen
the pnor year consclidated income statement or equity

Amendment to IFRS? 'Improving Ihsclosures

about Financial Instruments’

* The amendment to IFRSY expands the disclosure requirements
in respect of far value measurerments recognised in the
statement of financial posion The amendment has required
additional disclosures in the financial statements in respect
of farr value measurements and iquidity nsk The Group has
elected not to provide comparative financial information for
these expanded disclosures in the current year in accordance
with the: transitonal reliefs offered in these amendments

IFRS3 (revised) ‘Business Combinations’

* The revision to IFRS3 requires transacton costs to be
expensed rather than included as costs of acquisiion, and
contngent consideration will be required to be far valued In
addition, there will be a choce of two goodwill measurement
methods where less than 100% of the entity 1s acquired
Implermentation of the remsion to IFRS3 has not impacted
upon the finangial staterments in the current year, however,
it will have a significant impact on any future acquistions

IFRICI15 ‘Agreements for the construction of

real estate’

* |FRIC15 provides gurdance on whether the construction of
real estate should be accounted for under IAS11 or IAS18 The
Group already accounted for the constructon of real estate in
accordance with {FRIC15, and accordingly implementation of
the interpretaton has not impacted upon the Group

The adoption of the following standards, interpretations and
amendments has not had any mpact upon the profit or net
assets of the Group in erther the current year or comparative
year and has not required any additional disclosures

* Amendment o IFRS1 and 14527 ‘Cost of an Investment Ina
Subsidiary, Jontly-Controlled Entity or Associate’,

« Certain Improvements to IFRSs,

* Amendment to lAS39 ‘Eligible hedged items’,

 [FRIC16 'Hedges of a netinvestment in a forexgn operation’,

s Amendments to 1AS32 ‘Financial Instruments  Presentation’
and IAS1 ‘Presentation of financial statements for certain
puttable financial Instruments and obligations ansing on
liquidation’,

* [AS27 {revised) 'Consolidated and separate fimancial staterments’,

* |FRS1 (revised) ‘Frst Time Adoption of IFRS’,

+ IFRIC17 ‘Distributions of Non Cash Assets to Owners',
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* |FRIC18 “Transfers of Assets from Custorners’, and
» Amendments to IFRICSAAS3S 'Embedded dervatrves’

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the resutts of Barratt
Developments PLC (the ‘Parent Company') and all its subsidiary
undertalangs made up to 30 June The financial statements of
subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date when
control passes to the Group using the purchase method of
accountng and up to the date control ceases All transactions
with subsidianes and inter-comparny profts or losses are
eliminated on consolidation

Business combinations

All of the subsidanes' identifiable assets and habiities, iIncluding
contingent labilities, existing at the date of acquistion are
recorded at ther far values All changes to those assets and
hiabdites and the resulting gans and losses that anse after the
Group has gained control of the subsidiary are included in the
post-acquisition Income statement

Jointly controlled entities

Ajointly controlled entity i1s an entity i which the Group holds
an interest with one or more other parties where a contractual
arrangement has established joint control over the entity
Jontly controlled entibes are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting

Jointly controlled operations

The Group enters into jointly controlled operations as part

of its housebuilding and property developrent activities

The Group's share of profits and logses from ds investments in
such jointly controlled operations s accountad for on a direct
basis and I1s Included in the consclidated income statement
The Group’s share of its Investments, assets and labilites 1s
accounted for on a directly proportional basis in the Group
balance sheet

Revenue

Revenue 1s recogrised at legal completion in respect of the
total proceeds of bulding and development and an appropnate
proportion of revenue from construction contracts 1s recognised
by reference 1o the stage of completion of contract actwity
Revenue 1s measured at the far value of consideration recernved
or recenvable and represents the amounts recervable for the
property, net of discounts and VAT The sale proceeds of
part-exchange properties are not included in revenue

Interest Income I1s accrued on a tme basis, by reference to the
pnncipal cutstanding and at the effective interest rate appicable

Construction contracts

Revenue 1s only recognised on a construction contract where the
oulcome can be estmated relably Vanations to, and clams
ansing In respect of, constructon contracts, are Included in
revenue to the extent that they have been agreed with the

customer Revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of contract actmity at the balance sheet date
This 1s normally measured by surveys of work performed to date
Ceontracts are only treated as construction contracts when they
have been specilically negotiated for the construction of a
development or property When it 1s probable that the total costs
on a construction contract will exceed 1ot contract revenue,

the expected loss 1s recognised as an expense In the income
statement immediately

Amounts recoverable on construction centracts are included

In trade recevables and stated at cost plus attnbutable profit
less any foreseeable losses Payments recerved on account for
construction contracts are deducted from amounts recoverable
on construciion contracts

Payments receved in excess of amounts recoverable on
construction contracts are included in trade payables

Exceptional items

ltems that are material In size or unusual or nfrequent N nature
are presented as exceptional items in the ncome statement
The Dwectors are of the opinion that the separate presentation
of exceptional items provides halpful information about the
Group's underhyng business performance Examples of events
that, inter alla, may give nse to the classification of tems as
exceptional are the restructunng of existing and newly-acquired
businesses, gains or losses on the disposal of businesses or
indrrdual assets, pension scheme curtaiments and asset
imparments, inciuding land, work in progress, goodwill and
investments

Restructuring costs

Restructunng costs are recognised in the mcome statement
when the Group has a detalled plan that has been
communicated to the affected parbes Alability s accrued
for unpaid restructunng costs

Profit/(loss) from operations

Proftfloss) frorm operations includes all of the revenue ankd costs
denved from the Group’s operating businesses Profit{loss) from
operations excludes finance costs, finance income, the Group's

share of profits or losses from joint ventures and tax

Segmental reporting

The Group consists of two separate segments for internal
reporting regularly reviewed by the chuef operating decision
maker to allocate rescurces to the segments and to assess
thewr performance, being housebiunlding and commercial
developments These segments thereiore comprise the prmary
reporting segments wittun the financal statements As all of the
Group's operations are within Britain, whichis one geographic
market in the context of the Group's activiles, there are

no geographic segments to be disclosed
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Financial statements
Accounting policies

Goodwill

Goodwilt ansing on consolidation represents the excess of
the farr value of the consideration over the far value of the
separately identifiable net assets and labilities acquired

Goodwill ansing on acgurisiion of subsidiary undertakings
and businesses 1s capitalised as an asset and reviewed for
impairment at least annually

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination at acquision Cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are
tested for impairment at least annually If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the imparment loss 1s allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit Any impairment
loss (s recognised immediately in the income statement and 1s
not subsequently reversed

Intangible assets

Brands

Internally generated brands are not capilaksed The Group
has capitalised as intangible assets brands that have been
acquired Acqguired brand values are calculated using
discounted cash flows Where a brand 18 considered to have
a fintte fe, 1t 1s amortised over its useful lfe on a straight-line
basis Where a brand 1s capitalised with an indefinite life, tt1s
not amortised The factors that resutt in the durability of brands
capitalised are that there are no matenal legal, regulatory,
contractual, compebtive, economic or other factors that it
the useful Ife of these intangible assets

The Group carries out an annual imparrment review of indefinite
Ife brands by performing a value-in-use calculation using a
discount factor based upon the Group's pre-tax weighted
average cost of capral

Investments
Interests in subsidiary undertakings are accounted for at cost
less any provision for impairment

Where share-based payments are granted to the employees

of subsidiary undertakings by the Parent Company, they are
treated as a capdal contribution to the subsidiary and the
Company's investrnent in the subsidiary 1s ncreased accordingly

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 15 carred at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated mmparment losses
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assetson a
straight-kne basis to their residual value over ther estimated
useful Ives Residual values and asset Ives are reviewed annually

Freehold properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 25 years Freehold land s not depreciated Plant 1s
depreciated on a straight-ine basis over its expected useful
e, which ranges from one 1o seven years

Inventories

Inventonies are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value Cost comprises direct matenals, direct labour costs and
those overheads which have been incurred in bnnging the
inventones to ther present locaton and condition

Land held for development, ncluding land in the course of
developrment, 1s inttally recorded at discounted cost Where,
through deferred purchase credit terms, the carrying value
differs from the amount that wil uitimately be paid in setting the
hability, this difference 1s charged as a finance cost in the
income statement over the penod of settlement

Due to the scale of the Group’s developments, the Group has te
allocate site-wide development costs between units built in the
current year and in future years It alsc has to estmate costs to
complete on such developmenis In making these assessments
there is a degree of inherent uncertanty The Group has
developed internat controls to assess and review carrying-
vatues and tha appropnateness of estmates made

Lease as lessee
Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement
in equal instalments over thelfe of the lease

Leases as lessor

The Group enters into leasing arrangements with third parties
following the completion of constructed developments until

the date of the sale of the development to third parties Rental
income from these operating leases 1s recognised in the income
statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease
Irwtial direct costs incurred in negotialing and arranging an
operating lease are added 1o the carnying amount of the leased
asset and recognised 11 the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term

Share-based payments

The Group issues both equity settled and cash-settled
share-based payments to cerlan employees Inaccordance
with the transitional provisions, IFRS2 *Share-based Payments'
has been appled to all grants of equity Instrurments after

7 November 2002 that had not vested at 1 January 2005

Equnity-settled share-based payments are measured at far value
at the date of grant Fawr value s measured etther using
Black-Scholes, Present-Econemic Value or Monte Carlo models
dependent upon the charactenstics of the scheme The far
value 1s expensed In tha Income statement on a straight-ling
basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group's estimate

of shares that will eventually vest where non-market vesting
conditions apply
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Non-vesting conditions are taken into account in the estmate
of the faur value of the equity nstruments

Cash-settled share-based payments are measured at farr value
at the date of grant and are re-measured both at the end of
each reporting pernod and at the date of settlement with any
changes In far value being recognised in the ncome statement
for the penod Farr value 1s measured inmally and at the end of
aach reporting period using a Black-Scholes model and at the
date of settlernent as cash pad

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currentty
payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on the taxable profit for the
year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Income statement because i excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductble
The Group's kability for current tax s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s recogrised in respect of all
temporary differences that have onginated but not reversed at
the balance sheet date where tfransactions or events that result
in an abligation to pay more tax n the future or a nght to pay
less 1ax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to
apply in the penod when the liabity 15 settled or the asset 1s
realised based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the halance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in
the income statement, except when it relates to tems charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax s
also dealt with in equity

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of aff avallable
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there
will be sutable taxable profits from which the future reversal
of the underlying tming differences can be deducted
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a
legally enforceable nght to set-off current tax assets aganst
cLirent tax labiles and when they relate 1o taxes levied by
the same tax authonty and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and labilities on a net basis

Pensions

Defined contribution

The Group operates defined contnbution pension schemes for
certain employees The Group's contribubions to the schemes
are charged in the income statement in the year in which the
contnbutions fall due
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Defined benefit

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits
15 determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

with actuanal valuations being carned out at each balance
sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recogrised in
full n the penod in which they occur They are recognised
outside profit or loss and presented in tha statement of
comprehensive income

Past servce cost, until the scheme ceased to offer future
accrual of defined benefit pensions to employees from
30 June 20089, was recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits were already vested, and otherwise was
amortised on a straght-line basis over the average period
unill the benefits become vested

The retrement benefit obligation recognised In the balance
sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
ablgation as adjusted for unrecogrused past service cost, and
as reduced by the farr value of the scheme assets Any asset
resutting from this calculation 1s irited to past service cost,
plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the scheme

Borrowing costs

The Group capitalises borrowing costs drectly attnibutable

to the acquisition, constructon or preducton of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of the asset where developments are
considered to fall under the requirements of IAS23 {revised)
Ctherwise, the Group expenses borrowingcosts in the

period to which they relate through the income statement

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labhites are recognised on the
Group's balance sheet when the Group becormes a party to
the contractual prowsions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual nghts to the cash flows fromthe asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity

The Group derecognises a financial habilty only when the
Group's obligatiens are discharged, cancelled or they expire

Financial assets

Non-dervative financial assets are classified as either 'avallable
for sale financial asseats’ or ‘loans and recenables’ The
classdication depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and 1s determined at the time of intal recognition
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Accounting policies

Available for sale financial assets

Non-interest beanng loans granted as part of sales transactions
that are secured by way of a second legal charge on the
respective property are classified as being avarlable for sale and
are stated at tar value Farr value 1s determined in the manner
descnbed In note 15

Revenue from transactions involving avatlabte for sale financial
assets is recognised at the far value of consideration recevable

Gains and losses anstng from changes in far value are
recogmised directly in the income staterment including
mpairment losses, changes in future cash flows and interest
calculated using the ‘effective interest rate’ method

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an actve
market They are included In current assets, except for those
with matunties greater than twelve months after the balance
shegt date, which are classified as non-current assets and
are measured at amortised cost less an allowance for any
uncollectable amounts The net of these balances are classified
as ‘'trade and other recevables’ in the balance sheet

Trade and other recevables are classified as “oans
and recervables’

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and other receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date and are impaired
where there is objective evidence that the recovery of the
recevable 1S in doubt

Objectve emdence of impairment could include significant
tinancial difficutty of the custorner, default on payment terms
or the customer going into iquidation

The carrying amount of trade and other recervables 1s reduced
through the use of an allowance account When a trade or other
recenvable 1s considered uncollectable, it 1s written off against
the allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounts
previously written off are credied against the allowance
account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in the income statement

For financial assets classified as avalable for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the value of the property underpinning

the value of the loan or ncreased risk of default are considered
1o be objective evidence of mparment

In respect of debt instruments classified as avalable for sale
financial assets, Increases In the far value of assets previously
subject to wnparrment, which can be objectively related to an
event occurnng after recogniton of the imparment ioss are
recognised in the ncome staterment to the extent that they
reverse the imparment loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances in
bank accounts with no notce or less than three months
notice from inception and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as ‘loans
and recevables’

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabities and equity are classified according to the
substance of the cantractual arangements entered into

Equity instruments

Equity instruments consist of the Company's ordinary share
capital and are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of
direct 1Issue costs

Financial liabilities

All non-dervative financial labities are classified as 'other
financial habilties' and are ntally measured at far value, net
of ransaction costs Other financial labilibes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the ‘effective interest

rate’ method

Other financial kabiihies consst of bank borrowings and trade
and other payables

Financial lrlabilires are classified as current habilities unless the
Group has an uncondrtional nght to defer settlement of the
hability for at least twetve monihs after the balance sheet date

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables on normal terms are not interest
beanng and are stated at amorised cost

Trade and other payables on extended terms, particularly in
respect of land, are recorded at thewr far value at the date of
acquistion of the asset to which they relate by discounting at
prevaling market interest rates at the date of recogniion

The discount to norminal valus, which will be paid In setting the
deferred purchase terms liabity, 15 amortised over the penod
of the credit term and charged fo finance costs using the
‘effectve interest rate’ methed

Bank borrowings
Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at
the proceeds recenved, net of drect Issue costs

Where bank agreements include a legal nght of ofiset for in
hand and overdraft balances, and the Group intends to settle
the net outstanding posrtion, the offset arrangements are
applied to record the net postion N the balance shest

Finance income and charges are accounted for using the
‘effactive interest rate’ methed inthe income statement
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Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the income
statement in the penod to which they relate

Derivative financial instruments

The Group has entered into derivative financial instruments

in the form of interest rate swaps, basis rate swaps and

Cross currency swaps to manage the interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk ansing from the Group's operations and
sources of finance The use of financial dernvatves 1s governed
by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors

as detalled in notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements

The interest rate and cross currency swap arrangements are
designated as hedging instruments, bemng either hedges of
a change in future cash flows as a result of interest rate
movements, or hedges of a change in future cash flows as

a result of foresgn currency exchange rate movements

The fair value of hedging derwvatves Is classified as a non-
current asset or a nen-current labilty if the remaning matunty
of the hedging relationship 1 more than tweive months and
as a currant asset or a current liability if the remaining matunty
of the hedge relationship 1s less than twelve menths

Hedge accounting

All of the Group's interest rate and Cross currency swaps are
designated as cash flow hedges At the Inception of the hedge
relatonship the Group documents the relatonship between

the hedging instrument and the hedged tem, along with its nsk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking vanous
hedged transactions Inaddition, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basts, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument 1s tughly effective in offsetiing the changes
n cash flows of the hedged items

Detalls of the far values of the interest rate and cross
currency swaps are provided in notes 22, 23 and 24 to
the financial statements Movements on the hedging
reserve In equity are detailled in the statements of changes
in shareholders® equity

Cash flow hedge

To the extent that the Group's cash fiow hedges are effective,
gains and losses on the fair value of the interest rate and

Cross currency swap arrangements are deferred in equity in
the hedging reserve until realised On realisation, such gains
and losses are recegnised within finance charges in the
Income statement To the extent that any hedge 1s ineffective,
gans and Josses on the farr value of these swap arrangements
are recognised iImmediately in finance charges in the

income statement

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the
penods when the hedged item 1s recogrised in profit or loss
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Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires or 1s terminated or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss
deferred in equity rernains in equity and s recogrised when
the forecast transaction 1s ulimately recognised in profit or loss
When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected o ocaur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred In equity 1s
recognised iImmediately in profit or lass

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the ncome statement
s0 as to match with the related costs that they are intended to
compensate Grants related to assets are deducted from the
carrying amoun! of the asset Grants related to income are
included in the appropnate ine within the ncome statement

Kickstart

During the year, the Group has been granted assistance for
the development of a number of sites under the Homes and
Commurihies Agency (HCA) 'Kickstart' scherme Where
receipts under the Kickstart scheme relate to grants they are
accounted for in accordance with the policy for government
grants stated above

In addition the Group has received cash upen spectfic sites
under the ‘Kickstart equity’ scheme which 1s repayable in future
penods, as the sites to which it relates are developed, along
with the share of the profits or losses attnbutable to the HCA
arising from the stes This hability s ncluded within borrowings
and s intially recogrused at far value by dscounting it at
prevailing market interest rates at the date of recognition

The discount to nominal value, which will be paid in settling

the lability, 1s amortised over the expected lfe of the site and
charged to finance costs using the ‘effective interest rate’
method Gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value

of the liabality related to the HCA's share of the profits or losses
of the site are recognised drectly In the income statement
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IMPACT OF STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Al the date of approval of these financial statements there
were a number of standards, amendments and interpretations
that have been published and are therefore mandatory for

the Group's accounting penods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 and later penods Al of these have been endorsed by
the EU with the exception of IFRS9, IFRIC19, the rewisions

or amendments 1o IFRS1, IAS24 and the Improvements 1o
[FRSs 2009/10 The Group has not early-adopted any
standard, amendment or interpretation

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are

expected to impact upon the Group are

» [FRS9 'Financial Instruments’ will apply to the Group from
1 July 2013 The new standard was 1ssued in November 2009
as the first step in the International Accounting Standard
Board's (IASB) project to replace IAS39 ‘Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement” IFRSS introduces new
requiremenits for classifying and measunng financial assets
The IASB 15 expected to expand IFRS9 dunng 2010 to add
new requirements for classifying and measunng financal
labiities, derecognition of financial nstruments, imparment
and hedge accounting The Group 1s currently assessing the
impact of the standard on the Group's results and financial
position and will continue to assess the impact as the
standard i1s rewised by the IASB

» 10524 (Revised) ‘Refated Party Transactons’ will apply to the
Group from 1 July 2011 The revised standard 1s expected to
impact upen the Group by requinng additional disclosures in
the annual financial statements

* Improvements to IFRSs, issued in April 2009, 1s the 2009
tranche of the Improvements to IFRS project and includes
a number of minor amendments to existing |AS and IFRS,
which require mplementation from 1 July 2010 The impact of
these amendments is currently being assessed by the Group

* |Improvements to IFRSs, issued in May 2010, I1s the 2010
tranche of the improverments to IFRS project and mncludes a
number of minor amendmenis to existing IAS and IFRS, which
require implementation from 1 July 2011 The impact of these
amendments 1S currently being assessed by the Group

The adoption of the following standards, amendments and

interpretations are not expected o have any matenal impact

on the financial statements of the Group

* An amendment to IFRS2 'Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions’ clanfies how indmmdual subsidiary
companies in a group should account for some share-based
payment arrangements in its own financial statements The
amendment will apply to the Group from 1 July 2010 and
has neimpact upon the Group

* Amendmenits to IFRS1 ‘Addiicnal Exemptions for First-time
Adopters’ and 'Limited Exemption from Comparatne IFRS7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters’ The amendments, which
will apply to the Group from 1 July 2010, refate solety to first tme
adopters of IFRS and therefore have no impact on the Group

* Amendment to IAS32 'Clasaification of nghis issues’ clardies
vanous 1Issues when accounting for a nghts 1ssue, ncluding
foreign currency ssues, compound financial instruments,
treasury shares and disclosure The amendment will apply
1o the Group from 1 July 2010, and aithough it will have no
impact on implementation, t may impact the accounting
for any future nghts 1ssues

= Amendment to IFRIC14 ‘Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Reguirement” was 1ssued to correct an unintended
consequence of the interpratation which, 1n some
crcumstances, prevented the recogrition as an asset some
voluntary prepayments for mnimum funding contributions
The amendment apphies tothe Group from 1 July 2011
and 1s not expected to have an impact on ihe Group

* [FRIC19 ‘Extinguishing Financtal Liabilites with Equity
Instruments’ applies to the Group from 1 July 2010 This
interpretation clarfies the accounting requirements when
equity Instruments are issued to extinguish financial labilites
The interpretaton 1s not expected to have an impact on the
Group on implementation, athough it may smpact the
accounting for future 1ssues of equity nstruments
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In accordance wath the requirements of IFRS, the Group

has detalled below the cntical accounting judgements made
and the key sources of estimation uncertainty within these
financial statements

Critical accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting polcies,
which are descrnibed in the accounting policies note, the
Drectors have made no indwvidual judgements that have a
significant Impact upon the financial statements, apart from
those invehang estimations, which are dealt with below

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estiration uncertanty at the balance sheet dates
are discussed below

Carrying-value of land and work in
progress

The Group's pnncipal actmty 1s housebulding and commercial
development Due to the nature of this actvity, much of the
development entered into by the Group 1s speculative in nature
Accordingly, the Group has in its balance sheet at 30 June
2010 current assets that are not covered by a forward sale
The Group's internal controls are designed to identfy any
developrments where the carrying-value of land and work in
progress 15 more than the lower of cost or net realisable value

In respect of the years ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010,
the Group conducted six-monthly reviews of the net realisable
value of its land and work in progress carrying-values of Its sites
in ight of the detenoration in the UK housing market Where the
estmated net realsable value of the site was less thanits
current carrying-vatue within the balance sheet, the Group
impaired the land and work in progress value This resulted in
an exceptional iImpairment of £499 5m in the year ended 30
June 2009 as shown in note 17 and £4 8m in the year ended
30 June 2010 These reviews were conducted on a site-by-site
basis using valuations incorporating forecast sales rates,
average seling prices and estimated costs to complete that
reflected both current and anticipated trading conditions These
are key judgements in the imparment calculaton Should there
be further signficant movements in UK house pnces then
further imparments/reversals of previous gross Imparments of
land and work in progress may be necessary

Estimation of costs to complete

Inorder to determing the profit that the Group 1s able to
recogrise on its devefopments in a specific penod, the Group
has to allocate site-wide development costs between units built
in the current year and in future years it also has to estimate
costs to complete on such developments In making these
assessments there 1s a degree of Inherant uncertainty The
Group has developed internal controls to assess and raeview
carrying-values and appropriateness of estmates made

Recognition of profit wherxe developments
are accounted for under 1AS511
‘Construction Contracts’

The Group applies its policy on contract accounting when
recogrusing revenue and profit on partialy completed contracts
The application of this policy requires judgements to be made
in respect of the total expected costs to complete each site
The Group has in place established internal control processes
1o ensure that the evaluation of costs and revenues are based
upon appropnate estimates

Impairment of goodwill

The determination of the imparment of goodwill of the
housebullding business requires an estmation of the value-in-
use of the housebuillding cash-generating unit as defined In
note 10 The value-in-use calculation requires an estimate of
the future cash flows expected from the hausebullding
business, including the anticpated growth rate of revenue and
costs, and requres the determination of a suitable discount rate
to calculate the present value of the cashfiows The discount
rate used 1S one applicable to the exsting capital structure of
the Group at the balance sheet date Thecarrying amount of
goodwill at 30 June 2010 was £792 2m with no iImpawrment
recognised during the year ended 30 Jure 2010

Impairment of brands

The determination of the impairment calculation for the
Group's indefinite ife brand, David Wilson Homes, requires
an estimation of the value-in-use of the brand as defined n
note 11 The value-n-use calculation requres an eshmate

of the future cash flows expected from this brand, including
the anticipated growth rate of revenue and costs, and requires
the determination of a suitable discount rate 1o calculate the
present value of the cash flows The discourt rate used 1S
one applicable to the existing capital structure wihich may
impact on the Group's discount rate in future penods The
carrying amount of ndefinite Iife brands at 30 June 2010
was £100 Om with no impairment recognised during the year
ended 30 June 2010

Deferred tax assets

At 30 June 2010 the Group recognised a net deferred tax
assel of £173 3m £176 7/m related to losses that arose dunng
the year and preceding year that are to be carmed forward and
releved against profits ansing in future perods The judgement
to recognise the deferred tax asset 1s dependent upon the
Group's expectations regarding future proftability based upon
site revenue and cost forecasts for future years which contain
a degree of inherent uncertanty

Defined benefit pension

The Directors engage a qualfied independent actuary to
calculate the Group's liabiity in respect of #s defined benefit
pension scheme in calculating this hability it 1s necessary for
actuanal assumptions to be made, which include discount
rates, salary and pension ingreases, price inflabon, the
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long-term rate of return upon scheme assets and mortality
As actual rates of ncrease and moriality may differ from those
assurned, the pension hability may differ from that included in
these financial statements

Hedge accounting

The majonty of the Group's faciies are floating rate, which
exposes the Group to increased interest rate nsk The Group
has therefore taken out £480 Om (note 24) of floating-to-fixed
interest rate swaps The Group has adopted hedge accounting
for these swaps on the basis that it 1s highly probable that there
15 sufficient forecast debt to match with the pencd of swaps

1f the highly probable critenon was not met in future then any
changes in farr vatue of the swaps would be recognsed in the
income statement, rather than n equity Dunng the year ended
30 June 2010, there was a loss of £31 2m (2009 £81 0m}
included in equity related to these swaps Swaps with a notional
amount of £285 Om were cancelled during the half year ended
31 December 2009 foliowing prepayment of part of the Group's
sterling borrowings from the net proceeds of the Placing and
the Rights Issue Cumulative losses on interest rate swaps of

£47 1m were recognised in the Income statement following these
cancellatons

In addition, the Group has entered into $187 2m (2009

$271 6m) of cross currency swaps to manage the cash flow
nsks related to foreign exchange, ansing from the Group's
sources of US Dollar denominated finance These swaps
are desygnated as a cash flow hedge against future foreign
exchange rate movements If the hedges ceased to be highly
effective then any changes in farr velue of the swaps would
be recognised in the Income statement, rather than equity
Duning the year ended 30 June 2010, there was a gan of
£13 6m (2009 £30 3m) included in equity related to these
swaps Againof £11 9m (2009 £7 2m) was realised upon
cancellaton of $103 9m of foretgn exchange swaps following
repayment of $103 9m LS Dollar private placement notes
on 16 Novernber 2009

Bvailable for sale financial assets

The Group holds avalable for sale financial assets pnincipally
comprising interest free loans granted as part of sales
transactions that are secured by way of a second legal charge
on the respective property The loans are held at the present
value of expected future cash flows taking into account the
estmated market value of the property at the estmated time
of repayment At 30 June 2010 the asset recognised on the
balance sheet was £136 3m (2009 £86 5m)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

1. Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue s as follows

71

2010 2009

Notes £m £m

Sale of goods 1,697 9 20028
Contract accounting revenusg 1373 1924
Revenue as stated in the income statement 2,035 2 22852
Lease income a1 33 34
Finance ncome 5 134 180
Forfalit deposits 14 70
Other income 144 129
TJotal revenue 20677 23265

Sale of goods includes £247 2m (2009 £339 4m) of revenue generated where the sale has been achieved using part-exchange
incentives Proceeds received on the disposal of part-exchange properties, which are not included in reveriue, were £153 8m

(2009 £288 0m)
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2. Segmental analysis

The Group consists of two separate segments for management reporting and control purposes, being housebulding and
commercial developments The segments are considered appropniate for reporting under IFRS8 'Operating Segments’ since these
segments are reguiany reviewed internally by the Group Board without {urther signdicant categonsation The Group presents its
primary segment information on the basis of these operating segments As the Group operates in a single geographic market,
Britain, no secondary segmentation is provided

2010 2009
House- Commercial House- Commercsal frestated™}
building developments Total buldng developments Total
Units Units Units Urits Urits Units
Residential completions 11,325 - 11,325 13,202 = 13,202
Income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 2,0001 351 2,0352 2095 8 1894 22852
Cost of sales before imparment
of inventores (1,819 9} (30 5) {1,850 4) 1,870 6) {185 2) {2,155 8)
Gross profit before imparment
of inventories 180 2 46 1848 1252 42 129 4
Adminigtrative expenses before
restructunng costs and pension curtalment {88 8) (59) {947) 86 4) 88) 95 2)
Profit/loss) from cperations before
imparrment of Inventories, restructunng
cosis and pension curtailment 914 13 901 B8 46) 342
Net imparment of inventories - {48) (4 8) 431 5) (68 0) 499 5)
Restructunng costs and pension
curtalment (11 0) - (11 0) (14 9} 51) (20 0)
Profit/{loss) from operations 804 61) 743 {407 6} (777) 485 3)
Share of post-tax loss from joint ventures 09) (06) (15) {30} - B0
Profit/{loss) from operations including
post-tax loss from joint ventures 795 &mn 728 #10 6} (777) (488 3)
Finance income 134 180
Finance costs — non exceptional {135 0) (195 3)
Finance costs — excephonal {114 1) (13 3)
Loss before tax (162 9) (678 9)
Tax 445 2103
Loss for the year from continuing
operations {118 4) (468 6)

* Addtional disclosures have been provided for the year ended 30 June 2009 for consistency of presentation with the year ended 30 June 2010
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2. Segmental analysis (continued)

2010 2009
House- Commercial House- Commercial
building developments Total bulding dewlopments Total
Balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m £m
Segment assets 4,531 5 126 6 4,658 1 46253 1739 47992
Elimination of intercompany balances (101 1} (111 7)
4,5570 46875
Deferred tax assets 1733 1273
Current tax assets - 506
Cash and cash equivalents 546 5 178 8
Consclhdated total assets 5,276 8 5,044 2
Segment liabilities (1,473 4) (597) (1,533 1} {1.2729) (657 3} (1,340 2)
Elimination of intercompany balances 011 1117
(1,432 0} (1,228 5)
Loans and borrowings (941 8) (1,484 1)
Current tax labilities (2 8) -
Consolidated total labihties (2,376 6) (2,712 6)
GCther information £m £m £m £m £m £m
Capitat additions 04 - 04 21 - 21
Depreciabon 35 01 36 50 01 51

3. Exceptional items

Amended financing arrangements

0On 23 September 2008 the Company announced a fully underwrntten Placing and Rights Issue, raising gross proceeds of

£720 5m, and certan amendments agreed in relation to the Group's financing arrangements which would come into effect
following completion of the Placing and Rights Issue and a reduction in the amount of term debt The equity issue was completed
on 4 Novernber 2008 and the amended financing facilites came into effect on 16 November 2009

As a consequence of amending its financing arrangements, as descrnbed in note 23, the Company incurred vanous fees, costs
and other expenses The amendment and other fees arxd costs were £24 2m, with £6 7m being charged to the ncome statement
durning the year and £17 5m being amortised over the life of the amended facilities

As a consequence of the part prepayment of the WB Acquisition Facilities as descnbed 1n note 23, the Company made
prepayment offers to each of the private placement noteholders, Including make-whole armounts in respect of the private
placement notes which were the subject of the prepayment offer The noteholders had the option to recerve a cash payment

in satisfaction of the make-whole obligation instead of make-whole notes Cash payments in respect of the make-whole amounts
of £4 9m were made to certain noteholders and make-whole notes of £18 Om were 1Issued to the remaining noteholders The total
charge recognised in the Income statement n refation to the make-whole payrments and notes was £23 9m

Interest rate swaps and foreign exchange swaps with contracted amounts of £285 Omand £5t 5m respecively were cancelled
during the year ended 30 June 2010 following the Placing and the Rights Issue and prepayment of part of the Group’s borrowings
Cumulative losses on interest rate swaps of £50 1m were recognised in the income statement following these cancellations
Interest incurred on the cancelled swaps from the date of the General Meeting to approve the Placing and the Rights Issue up

{0 the date of settlement amounted to £1 7m Cancellation costs on foreign exchange swaps amounted to £09m
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3. Exceptional items (continued)

Amended financing arrangements (continued)

The remaining balance of unamortised costs of £31 Om in respect of the amendments to the Group's financing arrangements

1N 2008 {the 2008 financing amendments’) was charged to the income statement when the amended financing arrangements
agreed in September 2009 in canjunction with the Placing and the Rights Issue became effectve on 16 Novernber 2009, as the
terms of the 2009 amended financing arrangements which became effectrve on 16 Novermber 2009 were substantially different
from the 2008 financing amendments onginal terms, prmanly due to the revised covenant arrangements and certan new maturity
dates and margins The remaining fair value uplift of £0 2min respect of the private placement notes was also credited to the
income statement on 16 November 2009

The total ncome statement charge in the year relating to the amended financing arrangements was £114 1m

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group incurred charges of £13 3m in respect of the make-whole fee which was tnggered
on the redemption of £36 7m of private placement notes

Impairment of inventones

Dunng the year the Group reviewed the net reahsable value of its land and work in progress carryng-values of its stes  This resulted
in no further impairment of the housebuilding business (2009 £431 5m) and an imparment of £4 8m (2008 £68 0m) relating 1o the
commercial developments business The total net impairment for the year was £4 8m (2009 £499 5m) Further details are prowded
In note 17

Restructurmg Ccosts
During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group ncurred £11 0m {2009 £27 1m) of costs in refation to reorganising and
restructunng the business, ncluding redundancy costs of £0 6m (2009 £17 6m)

Pension curtailment
No curtatiment credit was recognised dunng the year (2009 £71m) in relation to the Group's defined benefit pension scheme
Further details are gven in note 26

Impairment of inventories relating to investments accounted for using the equity method
At 30 June 2010, the Group cenducted an impairment review of its share of the inventones included within its investments
accounted for using the equity method  This resulted in no impairment charge for the year (2009 £2 8m} with no related
deferred tax credit (2009 £0 8m) Further details are given in note 13
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4. Profit/(loss) from operations before exceptional items
Profit/{loss) from operations before exceptional items 1S stated after chargingAcrediting)
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2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Staff costs 8 176 9 2096
Government grants {20 3) {1 6}
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 12 36 31
Profit on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - {0 4)
Lease income 31 (33) {34
Operating lease charges — hire of plant, machinery and vehicles 10 a2
—other 140 44

Government grants of £36 2m (2009 £3 1m) were received in the year relating to Government iniatives including first ttme buyer,
National Affordable Housing Programme and Kickstart Grant income of £20 3m (2009 £1 6m) was recognised n the income
staternent in relation to house sales completed under thess initiatives

Loss before tax 1s stated after charging the Directors' emoluments disclosed in the Remunerauon report onpage 50 and in

note 8

The remuneration pad to Deloitte LLP, the Group's principal auditors, 1s disclosed below

2010 2009
Auditors' remuneration £'000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Parent Company
and consolidated financial statements 70 70
The audtt of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 246 256
The audit of the Company's joint ventures pursuant to legislation 24 24
Total fees for audit of the Company, its subsidianes and joint ventures 340 350
Amounts for statutory and regulatory filings 1,097 -
Other services pursuant to legislation 80 115
Corporate finance services - 69
Qther services 4 89
Total fees 1,521 623

Amounts for statutory and regulatory filngs include fees in respect of work performed in relation to the Placing and the Rights Issue
Other services pursuant to lagislaion compnse the reviews of intenm financial statements

In the year ended 30 June 2008, corporate finance services were incurred n relation 1o certan projects  Other services mainly
comprnised advisory services refated 1o the equity Issue
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5. Net finance costs
Recognised in income statement

2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Finance income on short-term bank deposits {0 5) 09
Imputed interest on availlable for sale financial assets 15 {70) (112)
Other interest recevabhle 59 59
Finance income {13 4) (18 0}
Interest on bank averdrafts and loans 637 1418
Amortisation of losses on cancelted interest rate swaps 02 04
Imputed interest on deferred term land payables 265 198
Finance costs related to employee benefits 26 16 03
Transfer to/{from} equity on cash flow hedges 29 141 {217}
Foreign exchange loss on US Dollar debt 6 "9 338
Amortisation of facility fees 94 174
Imputed interest on Kickstart equity funding 02 -
Other interest payable 74 35
Finance costs before exceptional tems 1350 1953
Net finance costs before exceptional items 1216 1773
Exceptional finance costs
Make-whole fee on redemption of private placement notes 239 133
Hedging termination costs 827 -
Wiite-off of prevous facdity unamorused fees 310 -
Other {ees related to amendment of financing arrangements 65 -
Exceptional finance costs 3 1141 133
Total finance costs 24391 2086
Net finance costs 2357 190 6
Recognised in equity
2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Losses on cash flow hedges 29 436 628
Total farr value losses on cash flow swaps included in equity 436 628
Amortisation of losses on cancelled interest rate swaps 02 ©4)
Transfer (from)j/to Income statement on cash flow hedges - non exceptional 29 {14 1) 217
Transfer from income statement on ¢ash flow hedges - exceptionat 29 {501) -
Total fair value losses on cash flow swaps transferred {to)/from equity {64 4} 213
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6. Financial instruments gains and losses
The net (gans) and losses recorded in the consolidated Income statement, in respect of financial instruments fexcluding interest *

shown in note 5) were as follows

2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Loans and receivables
Imparrment of trade recevables 18 03 33
Available for sale financial assets
Net loss transterred on sale a5 01
Net imparment of available for sale financial assets 15 61 237
Other financial habilities
Foreign exchange losses on US Dollar debt 19 338
Transfers from hedged items
Transfer from equity on currency cash flow hedges {11 9) (338
1. Tax
Analysis of the tax credit for the year
2010 2008
Notes £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax on losses for the year - (43 6)
Adjustment in respect of previous years {0 4} B377)
{0 4) 813)
Deferred tax
Cngination and reversal of temporary differences {46 0) (148 0)
Adjustment In respect of previous years 19 90
16 441) (129 0)
Tax crecht for the year (44 5) {210 3)

In addition te the ameunt credited to the income statemant, deferred tax of £1 9m (2009 £27 8my) was credited directly to equity

note 16)
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1. Tax (continued)
Factors affecting the tax credit for the year

The tax rate assessed for the year is lower (2008 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax inthe UK of 28 09 (2009 28 09%)

The differences are explained below

2010 2009
£m £m

Loss before tax {162 9) 878 9)
Loss before tax muttiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 28 0%
{2009 28 0%) {45 6) (1901)
Effects of
Qther expenses not deductible or tax purposes 13 21
Additional tax relief for land remediation costs (16) 27
Adjustment in respect of previous years 15 (187)
Tax in respect of joint vertures 04 08
Tax rate difference on losses carned back - 22
Tax on share-based payments (0 5) 05
Tax credit for the year {44 5) (210 3)

June 2010 Budget announcerents

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budget Staterment The Finance (No 2) Act
2010, which was substantively enacted on 20 July 2010, includes legislation reducing the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to
27% fom 1 Aprl 2011 Further reductons to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 April 2014

The changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not nduded in these financial staterments
If t had been enacted at the balance sheet date, the effect of the reduction in the corporation tax rate from 28% 10 27% contaned in the

Finance (No 2) Act 2010, would be 10 reduce the deferred tax asset recognised at 30 June 2010 by approximatety £6 2m

The propoesed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 24% by 1 Apnl 2014 are expected to be enacted
separately each year If the deferred tax assets and liabities of the Group were all ¢ reverse after 2014, the effect of the changes
from 28% to 24% would be to reduce the net deferred tax asset by £24 8m To the extent that the deferred tax reverses more

quickly than this, the mpact on the net deferred tax asset will be reduced
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8. Key management and employees

Key management personnel, as defined under 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’, have been dentified as the Board of Directors
as the controls operated by the Group ensure that a key decisions are reserved for the Board Detaled disclosures of Directors'
indmdual remuneration, pension entitlements and share opticns, for those Directors who served dunng the year, are given in the
audited sections of the Remuneration report on pages 50 to 53 which form part of these financial statements A summary of

key managernent remuneration is as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Salanes and fees {including pension compensation) 29 24
Sociat security costs 06 03
Performance bonus 16 -
Beneitts 01 01
Pension costs - -
Share-based payments 04 03
56 31

Group Company

2010 2008 2010 2009

Number Number Number Nurnber

Average staff numbers {excluding subcontractors) 4,128 4,561 225 217
Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

Notes £m £m £m £m

Wages and salanes including bonuses 1534 162 8 16 0 15
Redundancy costs 3 06 176 06 -
Social security costs 170 182 19 15
QOther pension costs 26 65 67 05 13
Share-based payments 28 (0 6) 43 01 04
Total staff costs 4 176 9 209 6 191 147
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9. Loss per share

Basic loss per share 1s calculated by dividing the loss for the year attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of £118 4m (2009 £468 6m)
by the weighted average number of crdinary shares in issua during the year, excluding those held by the Employee Benefit Trust

which are treated as cancelled, which was 815 9m (2009 526 im {restated"))

There 1s no ditference between basic and diluted loss per share for the Group as the Group was loss making

The losses per share from continuing operations were as follows

2010 2008
frastated")
pance pence
Basic and diluted loss per share (14 5) (891)
Adjusted basic and diluted loss per share 29 {1586)
The calculation of basic, diluted, adjusted basic and adjusted diluted loss per share is based upon the following data
2010 2010 2009 2009
restated”)
£m pence Em pence
Loss for basic and diluted loss per share (118 4) {14 5} {468 6) 891)
Add exceptional finance costs 141 140 133 25
Add impairment of Inventones 48 06 48995 850
Add restructuring costs and pension curtallment gain 10 13 200 38
Less tax effect of above termns 35 4) 4 3) {148 3) (28 2)
Add post-tax impairment of inventories relating to investments
accounted for using the equity method - - 20 04
Loss for adjusted basic and adjusted diluted loss per share (23 9) (29 B21) (15 6)

* The number of shares in 1ssue has baen revised to reflect the Rights Issue as required by IAS33 Earnings per Share' which has adjusted the

loss per share

Losses are adjusted, removing exceptional finance costs, impairment of inventories, restructuring costs and pension curtalment

gain and the related tax to reflect the Group's undertying losses
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10. Goodwill

Group
£m

Cost
At 1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010 8167
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 July 2008, 30 June 2002 and 30 June 2010 245
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010 762 2

The Group's goodwill has a carrying-vatue of £792 2m related to the housebuilding segment The goodwill relating to the
commercial developments segment, with cost of £24 5m, was fully impaired In the year ended 30 June 2008

The Group conducts an annual Impairment rewiew of goodwill and intangbles together for both the housebuldng and commercial
developments segments The imparment review was performed at 30 June 2010 and cormpared the value in use of the
housebulding segment with the carmying-value of its tangible and intangible assets and allocated goodwill The Group allocates any
identrfied impearment first to goodwill and then to assets on a pro-rata basis, which in the case of the Group 5 1ls intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment

The value-in-use was determined by discounting the expected future cash flows of the housebuiding segment The first three years
of cash flows were determined using the Group's approved detaled site-hy-site business plan The cash flows for the fourth and fifth
years were determined using Group level internal forecasted cash flows based upon expected volumes, seling prices and margins,
taking into account avatable land purchases and work in progress levets The cash flows for year six onwards were extrapolated in
perpetuty using an estmated growth rate of 2 5%, which was based upon the expected long-term growth rate of the UK economy

The: key assumptions for the value-in-use calculatons were

* Discount rate this s a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and nsks appropriate to the
Group's housebulding business Accordingly the rate of 11 3% (2009 8 9%) 1s considered by the Directors to be the appropnate
pre-tax nsk adjusted ciscount rate being the Group's estimated long-term pre-tax weighted average cost of capital This rate 1s
calculated using the current capital structure of the Group at the balance sheet date

+ Expected changes in selling prices for completed houses and the related impact upon operating margin these are determined
on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon local market conditions and product type Foryears four and five
these have been estimated at a Group level based upon past expenence and expectations of future changes in the market taking
wto account external market forecasts

* Sales volumes these are determined on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon local market conditions,
land availability and planning permisstons  For years four and five these have been estimated at a Group level based upon
past experience and expectations of future changes in the market taking into account external market forecasts

* Expected changes n sité costs to complete these are determined on a site-by-site basis for the frst three years dependent upon
the expected costs of completing all aspects of each ndvidual development including any additional costs that are expected to
occur due to the business being on an individual development site for fonger due to current market conditons For years four and
five these have been estimated at a Group level based upon past expenence and expectations of future changes In the market
taking into account external market forecasts

The conclusion of this Impairment review was that the Group's goodwill related to the housebulding segment was not impared

The imparment review of goodwill and intangible assets at 30 June 2010 was based upon current expectations regarding sales
volumes, expected changes in selling pnces and site costs to completa n the uncertain condiions within the UK housing market
and used a discount rate considered appropnate to the position and nsks of the Group The result of the imparment review, which
was based upon the capital structure of the Group at the balance sheet date, was that the recoverable value of goodwill and
intangible assets exceeded 1ts carrying-value by £707 5m (2009 £2,932 7m) If the UK housing market and expectations regarding
its future were to detenarate with either operating margins reducing by 2 3% per annum {2009 7 8% per annum) or the appropnate
discount rate were to increase by 1 5% (2009 4 7%) and all other vanables were hald constant then the recoverable value of
goodwll and intangble assets would equal its carrying-value
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11. Intangible assets

Group
Brands
£m
Cost
At 1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010 1070
Amortisation
At 1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010 70
Carrying armount
At 30 June 2009 and 30 June 2010 100 0
Brands

The Group does not amortise the housebuilding brand acquired wath Wilson Bowden, being Dawd Wilson Homes, valued at
£100 0m, as the Directors consder that this brand has an indefinte useful economic kfe due to the fact that the Group Intends
1o hold and support the brand for an indefinite penod and there are no factors that would prevent it from doing so

The Group tests indefinte Iife brands annually for mpairment, or more frequently f there are indications that they might be impaired
At 30 June 2010 an impairment review was conducted using the calculabons and assumptions as explained in note 10 The
conclusion of this imparment review was that the Group's Dawvid Wilson Homes brand was not mparred

The brand of Wilson Bowden Developments {valued at £7 0m pnor to amortsation) was being amoruised over tenyearsasitisa
business-te-business brand operating N niche markets Following an impairment review at 30 June 2008, the Wilson Bowden

Developments brand was {ully mpared

12. Property, plant and equipment

Group Company
Plant and Plant and
Property equipment Total Property equipment Total
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2008 114 128 242 08 25 33
Additions - 21 21 - 20 20
Transfers to inventories (11) - (11) - - -
Disposals 03 (4 6} A9 - - -
A1 30 June 2009 100 103 203 08 45 53
Additions - o4 04 - 03 03
Disposals - {04) (0 4) - - -
At 30 June 2010 100 103 203 08 48 56
Depreciation
At 1 July 2008 17 66 83 02 11 13
Charge for the year 17 34 51 03 09 12
Disposals - (30) [£]0)] - - -
At 30 June 2008 34 70 04 05 20 25
Charge for the year 04 32 36 03 17 20
Disposals - {0 4) ¢ 4) - - -
At 30 June 2010 38 98 136 08 37 45
Net book value
At 30 June 2009 66 33 29 03 25 28
At 30 June 2010 62 05 67 - 11 11

Authonsed future capital expenditure that was contracted but not prowided for in these financial statements amounted to Cril (2009 £nil
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13. Investments accounted for using the equity method
The Group equity accounts for jontly controlled entites The Group has significant interests in the fellowing jointly controlied entities

Jont venture Percentage owned Country of registration Prncipal activity

Base Regeneration LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding

Base East Central Rochdale LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuilding

Base Hattersley LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebuitding

Base Werneth Oldham LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebullding

Barratt Wates (Horley) Limited” 78 5% England and Wales Housebuilding
Wandsworth Parkside LLP 50 0% England and Wales Housebulding
Ravenscrag Lmited™ 333% Scotland Commercial development
DWH/Wates (Thame) Limited 50 0% England and Wales Housebultding

*  Barratt Wates {(Horley) Linited 1s classified as a joint venture as the Group has equal control with one othar joint ventuse partner
Ravenscraig Limited ts classified as a joint venture as the Group has equal control and ownershup percentages with two jont venture pariners

Group

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 July 832 655
{Decrease)/increase in Investments in joint ventures {18) 207
Share of post-tax loss for the year before exceptional tems (15) 10
Exceptional item post-tax mparment charge - {2 0)
At 30 June 799 832

The share of loss for the year includes an impairment of £rut 2009 £2 8m) fellowing a fall in the net realisable value of the land and
work In progress within a joint venture The exceptional tem disclosed in the consolidated income staterment ncludes a deferred
tax crecit of £nil (2009 £0 8m) in respect of the impairment

In relation to the Group's interests injoint ventures, the Group's share of assets and labilies of the jont ventures 1s shown below

Group

2010 2009

£m £m

Current assets 78 4 814
Current babilites (21 4) {26 Q)
Non-current babilities 65 1) 62 0)
Net lilabilities of joint ventures B1) 6 6)

The Group has made loans of £88 0m (2009 £89 8m) to ts joint ventures which are included within Group mvestiments Included
within the Group's share of net llabiities from joint ventures 1s a proportion of loans to the joint ventures calculated using the Group's
ownership share of £810m (2009 £81 5m)
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13. Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)
The Group’s share of the oint ventures’ income and expenses dunng the year 1s shown below

Group
2010 2009
Before Before

exceptional  Exceptonal exceptonal Excepbonal

tems tems terns tems
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Income 122 - 122 223 - 223
Expenses (13 0) - (13 0) {23 9) 28) (26 7)
(08 - (08 (16) 28 (44
Tax ©07) - {07) 06 08 14

Share of post-tax loss from joint

ventures (15) - (15 (10} 20) {3 0)

Dunng the year the Group entered into a number of transactions with its joint ventures n respect of funding, development

management services (with charges made based on the utiisation of these services) and purchases of land and work In progress
Further details on these transactions are prowided in note 33 The Group has a number of contingent habilities relating to its joint

ventures Further detalls on these are provided in note 32

14 Investments

Company
2010 2009
fm £m
Cost
At 1 July 2,473 6 21210
Investment in subsidiary 2000 3500
{Decrease)/increase (in Investment in subsidianes retated to shara-based payments {0 6) 26
At 30 June 26730 24736
Impairment
At 1 July and 30 June 576 576
Net book value
At 1 July 2,416 0 2,063 4
At 30 June 26154 24160

On 17 June 2009 in order to strengthen the balance sheet of the Company’s principal trading subsidiary BDW Trading Limited
followsng the detencration of the UK housing market, the Company capitalised a loan of £350 Om inreturn for 350 £1 ordinary

shares at a premum of £899,999 each

0On 3 Jure 2010 in order to strengthen further the balance sheet of the Company's principal trading subsidiary BDW Trading
Limited following the detencration of the UK housing market, the Company capitalised a loan of £200 Om in return for 200 £1

ordinary shares at a prermium of £999,999 each
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14. Investments (continued)
The subsidiary undertakings which principally affected profits and net assets of the Group were

Subsidiary Percentage owned Country of registration Principal activity
Housebulding and

BOW Trading Limited 100% England and Wales development
Heusebuilding and

BDW East Scotland Limited 100% Scotland development
Housebullding and

David wilson Homes Limited 1009%" England and Wales development

Wilson Bowden Developments Limited 100%" England and Wales Commercial development

* Owned through another Group company

A full st of subsidiary undertakings 1s availlable on request from the Company's registered office

15. Available for sale financial assets

Group

2010 2009

Notes £m £m

At 1 July 865 669
Additions 522 338
Disposals (33) 17
Imputed interest 5 70 12
Net impairment taken through income statement &) ®1) (237)
At 30 June 136 3 865

Avalable for sale financial assets principally compnse interest free loans granted as part of sales transactions that are secured by
way of a second legal charge on the respectve property These loans are held at the present value of expected future cash flows
taking Into account the estimated market value of the property at the estimated time of repayment The income statement includes

a net mparment of £6 1m (2009 £23 7m} in cost of sales

The mparrment of avalable for sale financial assets anses due to the impact on the far value of these assets of the decling in UK

house prices

Further chsclosures relating to financial assets are set out In note 22
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16. Deferred tax
The Group recognised a deferred tax asset/{liabiity) compnsing

Accelerated

caprtal Temporary Group

allowance  diferences Tax losses Total

Notes £m £m £m £m
At 1 July 2008 11 332 - (321)
Credited/(charged} to Income staterment 7 02 (13 1301 1280
Ansing on acqursition of subsidianes - 26 - 26
Amounts taken directly to equity 7 - 78 - 278
At 30 June 2009 13 41 1301 1273

{Charged)/credited to income statement 7 (01) 2 4) 46 6 441
Amounts taken directly to equity 7 - 19 - 19
At 30 June 2010 12 (46) 1767 1733

The Company recegrised a deferred tax asset compnsing
Accelerated

capital  Temporary Company

allowance  dfferences Tax losses Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1 Juty 2008 03 122 - 125
Charged to income statement {01) (5 4} - (55
Amounts taken directly to equity - 276 - 276
At 30 June 2008 02 344 - 346
Credited/(charged} to Income statement 04 (35) 478 47
Amounts taken directly to equity - 15 - 15
At 30 June 2010 06 324 478 808

All deferred tax relates to the United Kingdom and 1s stated on a net basis as the Group has a legally enforceable nght to set-off the

recogrised amounts and intends to settle on a net basis
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16. Deferred tax (continued)
The Group recognised a deferred tax assetfliabidlity) compnsing

87

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes £m £m £m £m
Pension scheme 26 129 88 129 88
Hedging 191 249 191 249
Losses 1767 1301 47 8 -
Share options 18 09 02 01
Other items, including capital allowances 27 38 08 08
Deferred tax assets 213 2 168 5 808 346
Brands (28 0) 28 0) - -
Cther tems (11 9) {13 2) - -
Deferred tax lrabihties (39 8) M2 - -
Net deferred tax asset 1733 1273 808 346
The movernents in each type of temporary difference for the Group are as follows
Pension Shara
scheme options Tax losses Hedging Brands Other Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2008 104 - - 13 {28 Q) (15 8) (321)
Incomne statement {56) 07 1301 - - 38 1280
Arising on acquisition of
subsidianes - - - - - 26 26
Amounts taken directly to
aquity 40 02 - 236 - - 278
At 30 June 2008 88 049 1301 249 {28 0) ©4) 1273
Income statement 32 05 46 6 - - 0z 441
Amounts taken directly to
equity 73 04 - (58) - - 19
At 30 June 2010 129 18 1767 191 (28 0) {9 2} 1733
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16. Deferred tax (continued)

It1s not antcipated that any of the deferred tax labifity in respect of brands will reverse in the twelve months following the balance
sheet date Whilst it s anticipated that an element of the remaining deferred tax assets and labiites will reverse dunng the twelve
months following the balance sheet date, at present it 1s not possible to quantify the value of these reversals

In addition to the above, the Group has not recorded a deferred tax asset of £3 3m (2009 £2 8m)in respect of capital and other
losses because these are not considered recoverable in the foreseeable future

The movements in each type of tempeorary difference tor the Company are as follows

Pension Share
scheme Options  Taxlosses Hedging Other Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2008 104 - - 13 08 125
Income statement 56) 01 - - - {55
Armounts taken directly to eguity 40 - - 236 - 276
At 30 June 2008 88 01 - 249 08 346
Income statement 32 01 478 - - 447
Amounts taken directly to equity 73 - - (5 8) - 15
At 30 June 2010 129 02 478 191 08 808
17. Inventories
Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Land held for development 2,3087 2,453 2
Construction work In progress 9614 1,044 2
Part-exchange properties 476 3BT
Other inventories 46 67

3,342 3 3,5408

a) Nature of inventornes

The Duectors consider all nventones 1o be essentially current in nature although the Group’s operational cycle 1s such that a
proportion of inventories will not be realised within twelve months [t 1s not possible to determine with accuracy when specific
Inventory will be realised as this will be subject 10 a number of Issues such as consumer dermand and planning permission delays
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17. Inventories (continued)

b) Impairment of inventories

At 30 June 2010 the Group reviewed the net realisable valug of its land and work in prograss carrying-values of ts sites

The imparment review compared the estimated future net present realisable value of development sites with their balance sheet
carrying-value This review resulted In no imparment charge for the housebuilding business (2009 £431 5m), although there were
gross imparment reversals and charges of £57 4m due to performance vanances upon housebulding sites (2009 £120 9m)
There was an imparment of £4 8m for the commercial developments business (2009 £68 0m), leading to a total net imparrment
during the year of £4 8m (2009 £499 5m)

The key jJudgements in estmating the realisable value of a site were the estimation of lkely sales prices and estmated costs to
complete Sales pnces were estimated on a site-by-site basis based upon local market conditons and took into account the
current prices being achieved upon each site for each product type In addition, the estimation of future sales prices Included an
allowance on a site-biy-site basis for low single digit sales pnce inflation In future penods  The estmation of costs to complete also
included an allowancs for low single digit build costs inflation in future penods

Whilst the UK housing market has seen some recovery dunng the year, if it were to change beyond management expectations in
the future, n particular with regards to the assumptions around likely sales pnices and estmated costs to complete, then further
adjustments to the carrying-value of land and work in progress may be required

following these mparments £1,208 1m (2009 £1,460 5mj) of nventones are valued at farr value less costs to sell rather than at
histoncal cost

¢) Expensed inventories

The value of Inventones expensed in 2010 and included in cost of sales was £1,735 2m (2009 £2,009 8my) including £13 Om

{2009 £20 8rm) of inventory write-downs Incurred in the course of normal trading and a reversal of £1 9m (2009 £nil} on inventories
that were wnitten down i a previous accounting penod, but excluding the £4 8m (2009 £499 5m) exceptionalimparment

During the year, average selling prices across the Group's developments were In-ine with those incorporated into the impairment
review at 30 June 2009 and therefore overall no further impairment was required in the housebuilding business, atthough there
were gross imparment reversals and charges of £57 4m due to performance vanances upon housebulding sies

The value of nventones written down and recognised as an expense i 2010 totafled £17 8m (2009 £520 3m), being the
£4 8m (2009 £499 5m) classified as an exceptional cost and the remaining £13 Om (2009 £20 8m) incurredin the normal

course of trading

d) Company
The Company has no Inventones
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18. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m

Non-current assets
Other recevables 08 15 - -
08 15 - -

Current assets

Trade recewvables 451 301 - -
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 898 5 1511t
Cther recevables 14 64 02 04
Prepayments and accrued mcome 96 50 11 12
661 15 8998 15127

Trade and other receivables are non-nterest beanng, and the Group has no concentration of credt nisk, with exposure spread over

a large number of debtors Of the year end trade recenvahiles the following were overdue but not mpaired

Group

2010 2009

Ageing of overdue but not imparred receivables £m £m

Less than three months 71 31

Greater than three months 56 44

The carrying-values of trade and other recenables are stated after the following allowance for doubtful recevables

Group

2010 2009

Notes £m £m

At 1 July 46 31
Charge for the year 5] 03 33
Uncollectible amounts wntten off, net of recovenes {19) 18
At 30 June 30 46

Tha allowance for doubtful recevables consists of ndvidually impaired trade recevables which arein default The impairment
recognised In cost of sales represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade recevables and the present

value of any expected recovenes The Group does not hold any coflateral over these balances

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade recervables approximates to therr fair value

Further disclosures relating to tinancial assets are set out In note 22
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19. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m m £m £m

Non-current habilities
Land payables 3002 2452 - -
Other payables 06 Q2 - -
3008 245 4 - -

Current liatihes

Trade payables 3080 318 2 28 54
Land payables 266 6 2254 - -
Accruals and deferred income 3339 2609 333 283
Other tax and social security 66 58 - 07
Other payables 966 521 - -
1,127 862 4 361 344

Accruals and deferred mcome ncludes a ©1 8m (2009 £19m) social securty accrual relating to share-based payments (note 28)
Total payables include £165 2m (2009 £105 8m} secured by legal charges on certan assets

Other non-current payables are unsecured and non-interest beanng

Further disclosures relating to financeal abilities are set out in note 23

20. Contract accounting
In relation to contracts in progress at the balance sheet date

Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Amounts due frorm contract customers included in trade and other recevables 135 170
Amounts due to contract customers included In trade and other payables {22 1) (22 B)
(8 6) 56
Contract costs incurred plus recogrised profits less recognised losses to date 279 4 3814
Less progress hillings (288 0) (3870)
(8 6) (58

At 30 June 2010, retentons hekd by customers for contract work amounted to £6 6m (2009 £6 9m) of which £4 7m (2009 £15m)
are due for settlement after twelve months Advances receved from customers for contract work amounted te £49 1m {2009
£64 3m} of which €12 2m (2009 £6 7m} relates to woark which is not expected to be performed n the next twelve months
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21. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2008

£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 546 5 178 8 5221 1630

Cash and cash equivalents are held at floating interest rates inked to the UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates as
applicable Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an ongmnal maturity

of three months or less

Further disclosures relaing to financial assets are set out In note 22

22. Financial assets
The carrying-values and farr values of the Group's financial assets are as follows

Group
2010 2009
Carrying- Carrying-
Fair value value Fair value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dernvative financial nstruments 24 327 27 319 319
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents bd| 546 5 546 5 1788 1788
Trade and other recevables 359 359 165 165
Available for sale
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 136 3 136 3 865 865
Total financial assets 751 4 751 4 3137 3137
The carrying-values and far values of the Company's financial assets are as follows.
Company
2010 2009
Garrying- Carrying-
Fair value value Farr value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dervatve financial instruments 24 327 27 319 319
Loans and recevables
Cash and cash equivalents 21 5221 5221 1630 1830
Trade and other recevables 18 02 02 04 04
Intercompany loans 18 898 5 898 5 1,511 1,511
Total financial assets 1,453 5 1453 6 1,706 4 1,706 4

Trade and other recavables excludes accrued Income, amounts recoverable on contracts, prepayments and tax and social

secunty The far values of financial assets and labilities are determined as indicated in notes 22 and 23a
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22. Financial assets (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets that are measured subsequent to witial recognibion at faur value,

grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the far value 1s observable

» Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for idenbical assets,

» Level 2 farr value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly § e as prices) or indirectly {1 e derrved from prices), and

» Level 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techriques that include inputs for the asset that are not
based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs}

93

Group
2010
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Derwvative financial assets 24 327 - - 327
Available for sale
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 - 136 3 - 136 3
Totat 327 136 3 - 169 0
Company
2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Dervatve financial assets 24 327 - - 327
Total 327 - - 327
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23. Financial liabilities
a) Fair value and carrying-value

The carrying-values and far values of the Group’s financial habilihes are as follows

Group
2010 2009
Carmrying- Carrying-
Fair value value Fair value value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Designated as cash flow hedges
Denvative financial instruments 24 72 4 724 Bo2 392
Other financial habilities
Bank overdrafts 23b - - 74 74
Trade and other payables 1,103 6 1,094 8 8664 8857
Loans and borrowings 23b 946 8 941 8 1,4781 1,476 7
Total financial labiittes 21228 21080 24411 24590
The carrying-values and far values of the Company's financial labilihes are as follows
Company
2010 20098
Carrying- Carrying-
Fair value value Farr valus value
Notes £m £m £m Em
Designated as cash flow hedges
Dervative financial Instruments 24 724 724 892 B9 2
Other financial habilities
Bank overdrafts 23b 104 8 1048 1107 Mo7r
Trade and other payables 297 207 332 332
Loans and baorrowings 23b 9351 9301 1,4781 1476 7
Total financial rabilities 1,142 O 11370 1,711 2 1,709 8

Trade and other payables excludes deferred income, payments received in excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, lax and

social securtty and other non-financial hablines

The far values of financial assets and latilties are determined as follows

= The far values of avalable for sale financial assets represent the value of therr discounted cash flows, which have been calculated
using market assumptions of the likely penod to redemption and movements in UK house prices
» Denvative financial instruments are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the

apphcable yield curves derived from guoted interest rates

« The far values of other non-dervative financial assets and liabiities are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis using

current market rates for similar instruments

Trade and other payables include land payables, which may bear interest on a contract specific basis Trade and other payables
includes rtems secured by legal charge on certan assets as disclosed 0 note 19
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)

a) Fair value and carrying-value (continued)
The following table provides an analysis of financial habiities that are measured subsequent to inthial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 15 observable
¢ Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical hatyities,

» Level 2 far value measurements are those denved from inputs cther than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the lability, erther directly e as prices) or indirectly (18 derved from prices), and
» Level 3 farr value measurements are those denved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the habiity that are not based

on observable market data (uncbservable iInputs)

Group
2010
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Financial labiities at farr value through
profit and loss
Dervative financial habilites 24 724 - - 724
Total 72 4 - - 724
Company
2010
Leval 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Notes £m £m £m £m
Financial habilittes at fair value through
profit and loss
Derwative financial liabilities 24 724 - — 724
Total 72 4 - - 724
b) Drawn debt facihities
The drawn debt at 30 June comprises
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Non-current
Bank loans 7269 1,200 9 726.9 1,200 9
Private placement notes 1917 2747 1917 2747
Total non-current borrowings 9186 1,475 6 918 6 14756
Current
Bank overdrafts - 74 1048 1107
Loan nctes 03 11 03 11
Prvate placement notes nz - 12 -
Kickstart equity funding 17 - - -
Total current borrowings 23 2 85 16 3 1118
Total borrowings 941 8 1,484 1 1,034 9 1,5874

Cn 22 September 2009, tha Company entered into agreements with its bank lenders and private placement noteholders to amend
the terms of its existing financing arrangements, including revised financial covenant arrangements These amendments became
effectve on 16 November 2008 following completion of the Placing and the Rights Issue and the prepayment of 40% of the WB
Acquisition Facilties, being £483 0m of the cormmitted £484 1m five-year term facility and £9 5m of the £750 0m revolving credit
facility fwhich operates as a term facility) and the prepayment of £94 8m of pnvate placement notes In addition, on 16 November
2009, undrawn commitments of £50 Om under each of the Company’s two revehing credit facilities were cancelled, reducng the
totat revolving credit commitments under both facilities to £700 Om As a resutt of the prepayment of private placement notes,
make-whole notes totalling £19 Om were 1ssued to the noteholders as detaled in note 3
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)
b) Drawn debt facilities (continued)
The weighted average interest rates, including fees, paid in the year were as follows

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009 |
% % % %

Bank loans net of swap interest 81 g9 81 89 !
Loan notes 20 78 20 78
Private placement notes 16 17 16 "7

The principal features of the Group's drawn debt faciliies at 30 June 2010 were as follows

1) Comnutted faciliies
* A commutted £740 5m five-year revolving credit facility of which £740 5m was drawn at 30 June 2010, made avalable under
a credit agreement dated 5 February 2007 (as amended from time to tme including in August 2008 and most recently with
effect from 16 November 2009} As part of the August 2008 amendments, the revolving credt faciity was fully drawn and
now effectively operates as a term facilty The maturity date on this debt 1s 26 Apnl 2012 Cn 16 Novermber 2009, £9 5m i
of the taciity was prepard and the relevant proportion of the facility cancelled |
* A committed £350 Om three-year revohing credit facility of which €nil was drawn at 30 June 2010, made available under a !
facility agreement dated 2 February 2005 (@s amended from time to time and most recently with effect from 16 November
2009) The maturty date on this debt 1s 16 Novermber 2012
» A committed £350 Om three-year revolving credit facility of which £nil was drawn at 30 June 2010, made available under a
factity agreement dated 9 July 2008 (as amended from time to time and most recently wath effect from 16 November 2009)
The matunty date on this debtis 16 November 2012

The Group suspended dvidend payrments in June 2008 as part of its cash conservation policy The Board remains focused on
strengthening the balance sheet and conserving cash in addition, the terms of the Group's financing arrangements also ImMpose
restrictions on the declaration and payment of davdends in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2010 The Boardis
committed to reinstating the payment of dvidends and will do so when it becemes appropnate and permissible to do so

11) Fixed rate Sterling private placement notes

» The Group has £77 8m of fixed rate Sterling private placement notes, £11 2m exprre on 15 Oclober 2010 The remaining £66 6m
of fixed rate Sterling private placement notes expire between 23 Apri 2018 and 23 Apnl 2020 At 30 June 2009, there were
£114 2m of fixed rate Sterling prvate placement notes but on 16 November 2008, the Comparny repaid £43 4m of fixed rate
Sterling private placement notes and 1ssued £7 3m of fixed rate Sterling private placement notes due to the make-whole clause
within each of these agreements which was tnggered on repayment At 30 June 2009 the fixed rate Sterling private placement
notes had a farr value uplift of £0 3m Dunng the year £0 im of the far value uplift was credited to the ncome statement and
the remaining £0 2m was credited to the income statement within excepticnal items

m) Fixed rate US Dollar private placement notes !

+ US Dollar ten-year private placement notes of $42 6m issued pursuant 10 a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apni 2008 and
as amended from time to time and most recently with effect from 16 Novermber 2008 At 30 June 2009, there were $59 8m
US Dollar ten-year private placement notes but on 16 November 2009, the Company repaid $22 5m of US Doltar ten-year private
placernent notes and issued $5 3m of US Dollar ten-year private placement notes due to the make-whole clause within these
agreements which was triggered on repayment

* US Dollar five-year private ptacement notes of $20 6m issued pursuant o a note purchase agreement dated 23 Apnl 2008 and
as amended from time to time and most recently with effect from 16 Novernber 2009 At 30 June 2009, there were $31 3m of
US Dollar five-year private placement notes but on 16 November 2009, the Company repaud $12 1m of US Dollar five-year private
placement notes and issued $1 4m of US Dollar five-year private placement notes due to the make-whole clause within these
agreements which was tnggered on repayment

* US Dollar ten-year private placement notes of $124 Om issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 23 August 2007
and as amended from time to tme and most recently with effect from 16 November 2009 At 30 June 2009, there were $180 5m
of US Dollar ten-year private placement notes but on 16 November 2009, the Company repaxd 369 3m of US Dollar ten-year
pnvate placement notes and issued $12 Bm of US Dollar ten-year private placement notes due to the maks-whole clause within
these agreements which was tnggered on repayment
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)

b) Drawn debt facilihes {continued)

1v) Floating rate Sterhing loan notes

The Group had £0 3m (2008 £11m) Sterling loan notes at 30 June 2010 having repaid £0 7m on that date and £0 1m cn

31 December 2009 These loan notes are repayable at 30 June or 31 December each year at the option of the notehelder
or, to the extent not previousty repaid, are due in December 2012, and are subject to floating rates of interest Iinked to LIBOR

Following the Placing and the Rights Issue £0 3m of cash i1s held in a secured bank account which supports the Group’s

obligation to repay any amounts which the noteholder may claim under that guarantee

v) Bank overdrafts and uncommitted meoney market facilities
The Group also uses vanous bank overdrafts and uncommitted borrowing facilities that are subject to floating nterest rates linked
to UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates as applicable All debtis unsecured

¢) Net debt
Net debt at the year end i1s shown below
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 546 5 1788 6221 1630
Non-current borrowings
Bank loans {726 9) 1,200 9) {726 9) (1,200 6)
Private placerment notes (1N 7) (274 7) {191 7) 274 7)
Total non-current borrowings (918 6) (1,475 6) 918 6) (1,475 6)
Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts - (74) (104 8) (1107)
Loan notes {03) 11 03) 1)
Private placement notes {11 2) - (11 2) -
Kickstart equity funding 11 7) - - -
Total current borrowings (23 2) (8 B) {116 3) (111 8)
Total borrowings (941 8) (1,484 1) {1,034 9) (1,587 4)
Denvative financial instruments
Foretgn exchange swaps 28 4 284 284 284
Net debt (366 9) 1,276 9) {484 4) {1,396 0)

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank and other short-term highly iquid investments with a matunty of three months or
less Net debt s defined as cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, interest bearing borrowings and foreign exchange swaps
The Group ncludes foreign exchange swaps within net debt as these swaps were entered into to hedge the foreign exchange
exposure upon the Group's US Dollar denominated private placement notes  The Group's foreign exchange swaps have both an
Interest rate and an exchange rate slerment and only the exchange rate element on the notional amount of the swap 15 ncluded

within the net debt note above
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)
¢) Net debt (continued)
The Group's denvative financial instruments at the year end are shown below

Group Company

2010 2008 2010 2008

£m £m £m £

Foreign exchange swap — exchange rate element 284 284 284 284
Foreign exchange swap — interest rate element 38 21 38 21
322 305 322 305
Interest rate swaps {71 9) 87 8) {719) 878)
Net denvative financial instruments (39 7} 57 3) {397) {57 3)

24. Derivative financial instruments — swaps

The Group and Company have entered info denvative financial nstruments to manage interest rate and foreign exchange risks as

explained In note 25 Nesther the Group nor the Company enter into any dervatives for speculative purposes

Group and
Company
2010 2009
Asset Liability Asset Liabihity
£m £m £m £m

Designated as cash flow hedges

Non-current

Interest rate swaps - M9 - (878
Foreign exchange swaps 327 {0 5) N9 {14
Total denvative financial nstruments 327 {72 4) 319 {89 2)

a) Interest rate swaps

The Group and Company enter into derwvative transactions im the form of swap arrangsments to manage the cash flow nsks,
related to interest rates, ansing from the Group's and Company's sources of finance All of the Group’s and Company's Interest rate
swap arrangements contain a clause that allows the Group/Company or the 1ssuer to cancel the swap in May 2012 at far value

As at 30 June 2010 the Group and CGompany had outstanding net floating rate Sterling debt and overdrafts of £727 2m

{2009 £1,209 4m) In obtamming this funding the Group and Company sought to achieve certainty as to both the avalabilty of,

and incoms statement charge related to, a designated proportion of anticipated future debt requrements
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24. Derivative financial instruments - swaps (continued)
a) Interest rate swaps (continued)

The Group and Company have entered into swap arrangements to swap £480 0m {2009 £765 Om) of this debt into fixed rate

Stering debt in accordance with the Group and Company treasury policy outined in note 25 After taking inlo account swap
arrangements the fixed interest rates applicable to the debt were as follows

30 June 2010 Fixed rate 30 June 2008 Fixad rata

£m payable % Matunty £m payable % Matunty
1425 579 2012 1425 579 2012
500 580 2012 500 580 2012
600 594 2017 600 594 2017
600 599 2017 600 599 2017
325 564 2017 400 593 2017
600 575 2022 400 596 2017
750 544 2022 325 564 2017
- - - 1200 575 2022
- - - 750 544 2022
- - - 650 543 2022
- - - 400 572 2022
- - - 400 576 2022

4800 7660

The swap arrangements are designated as a cash flow hedge aganst future interest rate movements  The far value of the swap
arrangements as at 30 June 2010, which 1s based on thrrd party valuations, was a liabiity of £719m (2009 £878m) with a loss

of £31 2m (2009 £81 0m) charged directly to equity in the year There was no ineffectiveness to be taken through the income
staternent during the year or the pnor year

Swaps with a notional amount of £285 0m were cancelled duning the year following the Placing and the Rights lssue and
prepayment of part of the Group's Sterling borrowings  Cumulative losses on interest rate swaps of £47 1m were recogmised
in exceptional tinance costs in the income statement following these cancellations Swaps with a notional amount of £985 Om
were cancelled dunng the year ended 30 June 2008 Cumulative losses on these swaps of £3 0m, previously deferred in
equity, have been recognisad In exceptional finance costs in the Income statement, as the forecast transaction specified N
the hedge relationship 1s no longer expected to occur

Further disclosures relating to financial instruments are set out n note 25
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24. Derivative financial instruments - swaps (continued)

b) Basis rate swaps

During the previous year, the Group entered into £400 Om of six-month basis rate swaps to swap the interest payable upon some
of the Group’s borrowings from sixe-month LBOR to one-month LIBOR plus a premium These swaps reduced the cash interest
payable by the Group by £1 4m over the six-month Iife There were ne basis rate swaps outstandng as at 30 June 2009 or 30 June
2010

¢) Foreign exchange swaps
The Group and Company enter into dervative transactions in the form of swap arrangements to manage the cash flow risks related
to foreign exchange arising from the Group's sources of finance denominated in US Collars

As at 30 June 2010 the Group and Company had outstanding fixed rate US Dollar loan notes of $187 2m {2009 $271 6m)
The Group and Company have entered into swap arrangements 1o swap all of this debt into fixed rate Sterling debt i accordance

with the Group treasury policy outlined In note 25 After taking into account swap arrangements the fixed interest rates applicable
o the debst were as follows

Fixed rate Fixed rate

3¢ June 2010 payable 30 June 2008 payable
Sm % Matunty Sm % Maturity
182 898 2013 10 1095 2013
10 1095 2013 303 898 2013
14 1078 2m3 75 10 65 2017
1037 6 61 2017 1730 661 2M7
75 1065 2017 36 1223 2018
128 975 2017 562 924 2018
337 924 2018 - - -
36 1223 2018 - - -
53 11 37 2018 - - -

1872 2716

The swap arrangements are designated as cash flow hedges aganst future foreign exchange rate moverments The hedges match
the contractual Inmal receipt, the final settlement, and as a result of refinancing on @ July 2008 match 76% of the interest payments
The farr value of the swap arrangements as at 30 June 2010, which 15 based on third party valuatons, was an asset of £32 2m
{2009 £30 5m} wath a gan of £13 6m (2009 £30 3m) credited directly to equity in the year

Agan of £41 9m {2009 £7 2m) was reahsed upon cancellabon of $103 9m (2009 $40 5m) of foregn exchange swaps following
repayment of $103 9m (2008 $40 5m) US Collar private placement notes on 16 November 2009 (2009 12 January 2008} In
additien the Group made a realised foreign exchange loss of £119m (2008 £7 2m) upen 1its US Dollar private placement notes

There was no ineffectiveness to be taken through the Income statement dunng the year or the prier year

Further disclosures relating to financial instruments are set out in note 25
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25. Financial risk management
The principal operational nsks of the business are detaled on pages 26 and 27 The Group's financial assets, financial habilities
and demvative financial instruments are detaled in notes 22, 23 and 24

The Group's operations and financing arrangements expose It 10 a vanety of financial nsks that Include the effects of changes
indebt market prices, credit nsks, liquidity nsks and interest rates The most significant of these to the Group s liguidity nsk

and, accordingly, there 1s a reguler, detaled system for the reporting and forecasting of cash flows from the operations to Group
management with the goal of ensunng that nsks are promptly identfied and appropnate mitigating actions taken by the central
treasury department These forecasts are further stress tested at a Group level on a regular basis to ensure that adequate
headroom within facilities and banking covenants 1s maintained In addition, the Group has in place a nsk management programme
that seeks to imit the adverse effects of the other nsks onits financial performance, in particuar by using financial Instruments,
including debt and denvatives, to hedge interest rates and currency rates The Group does not use dervative financial instruments
for speculative purposes

The Board approves treasury policies and certan day-to-day treasury actwties have been delegated to a centralised Treasury
Operating Commuttee, which in turn regularly reports to the Board The treasury department implements guidelines that are
established by the Board and the Treasury Operating Committee

a) Ligmdity risk

Lquidity risk 1s the nisk that the Group will be unable to meet its labilities as they falldue The Group actively maintains a mixture
of long-term and medurn-term committed facilihes that are designed to ensure that the Group has sufficient avallable funds for
operations The Group's borrowings are typically cyclical throughout the financial year and peak n April and May, and October
and November, of each year, due to seasonal trends inincome  Accordingly the Group mantains sufficient faciity headroom to
cover these requirements On a normal operating basis the Group has a policy of mamntaining headroom of up to £250 0m

The Group identifies and takes appropriate actions based upon its regular, detalled system for the reporting and forecasting of
cash flows from its operabons At 30 June 2010, the Group had committed bank facilities of £1,615 3m (2000 £2,284 4m) and
total facimes of £1,676 5m (2008 £2,360 6m) At 30 June 2010, the Group's debt drawn against these faciliies was £930 1m
(2009 £1,4841m) This represented 57 6% of avallable committed facilities at 30 June 2010 (2009 65 0% In addition the
Group had £546 5m (2009 £178 8m) of cash

The Group was In compliance with its financial covenants at 30 June 2010 At the date of approval of the financial statements the
Group's Internal forecasts indicate that it will remain in compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable future being at least
twehve months from the date of signing these financial staterments Cormpliance with covenants is also considered on page 61

The Group's cbjective 1s to miimise refinancing nsk  The Group therefore has a policy that the average matunty of its committed
bank faciities and private placement notes is at least two years on average with a target of three years At 30 June 2010, the
average matunty of the Group's committed faclites was 2 6 years (2009 31 years)

The Group maintans certain committed floating rate faciities with banks to ensure sufficient hquidiy for its operatons  The undrawn
committed facidities available to the Group, In respect of which all conditions precedent had been met, were as follows

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

Expiry date £m fm £m £m
Inless than one year - 500 - 500
In more than one year but not more than two years - - - -
In more than two years but not more than five years 700 0 7500 700 0 7500
7000 8000 700 0 8000
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25, Financial risk management (continued)
a) Liquidity nisk {continued)
Inaddition, the Group had £61 2m of undrawn uncommitted faciibes avalable at 30 June 2010 (2009 £68 8m)

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial labilities, exclucing dervative financial habilities, by remaining
contractual maturty at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying  Contractual Less than

amount cash flow 1year 1-2years 2-5years Over5years
Group Notes £m m £m £m £m £m
30 June 2010
Loans and borrowings
(including bank overdratts) 23 9418 1,0999 589 757 604 2049
Trade and other payables 23 1,094 8 1,1515 80156 153 8 1817 145
2,036 6 2,251 4 860 4 929 5 2421 219 4
30 June 2009
Loans and borrowings
(including bank overdrafts) 23 1,4841 1,864 6 838 933 13700 375
Trade and other payables 23 8857 9360 650 3 157 6 1159 123
2,369 8 2,8006 7341 2508 1,4859 3208

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial labilities, excludng dervative financial habilites, by remairing
contractual maturity at the balance sheet date were as follows

Carrying  Contractual Less than

amount cash flow 1 year 1-2years 2-5years Over Syears
Company Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
30 June 2010
Loans and borrowings
{(including bank overdrafts) 23 1,034 9 1,1930 1520 7787 604 204 9
Trade and other payables 23 297 297 297 - - -
1,064 6 1,2227 1817 757 604 204 9
30 June 2009
Loans and barrowings
(including bank overdrafts) 23 1,687 4 19679 1871 933 1,.3700 3175
Trade and cther payables 23 332 332 332 - - -
1,620 6 2,0011 2203 933 1,3700 aivs

Trade and other payables excludes deferred income, payments receved in excess of amounts recoverable on contracts, tax and
social security and other non-financiat habilities
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25. Financial risk management (continued)

a) Laqurdity nisk (continued)

The expected undiscounted cash flows of the Group's and the Company's dervative financial instruments, by remaining
contractual matunty, at the balance sheel date were as follows

Carrying Contractual Less than

amgunt cash flow 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over 5years
Group and Company Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
30 June 2010
Financial assets
Gross setiled dervatives
Receve leg 22 327 1608 ™ 71 325 1141
Pay leg - (123 3) {5 8} (58) (25 6) (86 1)
Financial labihties
Gross settled dervatives
Receve leg 23 0 5) 146 08 o} :] 30 100
Pay teg - {15 2) ©9 (09) {32 (10 2)
Net settled denvatives 23 (71 9} (88 4) (22 3) {19 9) {291) (71
{397} (515) {21 1) {18 7) (22 4} 107
30 June 2009
Financial assets
Gross settled dervatives
Receive leg 22 319 2459 107 108 498 1746
Pay leg - (205 4} 9 6) 9 6) (42 6) {143 6)
Financial habiities
Gross settled dernvatives
Receive leg 23 (14) 133 07 07 27 92
Pay leg - (152) 09 09 @32 (102
Net settled dervatives 23 {87 8) (1097} 314) (24 O} (250) (29 3)
{57 3) (711) (30 5) (23 0) (18 3} 07

Under the Group's ISDA agreements the interest rate swaps are settled on a net basis

b} Market nisk (price nsk)
1) UK housing market nisk
This section specifically discusses UK housing market nsk in the context of the financial nstruments in the Group balance sheet

The Group Is subject to the prevailing conditions of the UK economy and the Group's earnings are dependent upon the level of
UK house prices UK house prices are determined by the UK economy and economic conditions including employment levels,
interest rates, consumer corfidence, mortgage avaiability and competior pricing However, the Group does seek 10 maintan
an appropriate geographic spread of operating dvisions and an appropnate product mix to miigate any risks caused by local
economic conditions The Group has detailed procedures to manage its market related operational nsks which nclude
* a weekly review of key trading indicators, Including reservations, sales rates, wsitor levels, levels of incentives, competitor actvty
and cash flow projections,
s the prowsion to mortgage prowders with complete transparency of housg purchase pnces alongside any discounts
or other incentives in order that they have appropnate information upon which to base therr lending decision, and
« collaboration with key mongage lenders to ensure that products are appropnate wherever possible for its custormers
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25. Financial risk management (continued)

b) Market risk (price nisk) (continued)

1) UK housing market nisk (continued}

The UK housing market affects the valuation of the Group's non-financial assets and habilities and the critical judgerments applied
by management in these financial statements, including the valuation of land and work In progress, goodwill and brands

The Group's financial assets and llabilties that are directly Inked to the UK housing market are as lollows

Linked to UK Not inked to
housing UK housing

market market Total
Group Em £m £m
30 June 2010
Non-denvative financial assets 136 3 5824 7187
Non-denvative financial labilities - (2,036 6) {2,036 6)
Denvatives - {397) (397)
136 3 (1,493 8) {1,357 6}
30 June 2009
Nen-denvative financial assets 865 1963 2818
Non-denvative financial labilities — (2,369 8) {2,369 8)
Derwvatives - {573) 573
865 (2,231 8) (2,145 3)

The value of the Group's avalable for sale financial assets 1s directly inked to the UK housing market At 30 June 2010 these assets
were carned at a far value of £136 3m (2009 £86 5m)

The Company has no financial assets and labdities that are directly nked to the UK housing market

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2010, if UK house prices had been 5% lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's house price Iinked
financial assets and llabiliies, which are solely available for sale financial assets, would decrease in value, excluding the effects of
tax, by £52m {2009 £6 2m) with a corresponding reduction In both the result for the year and equity

1) Interest rate risk
The Group has boeth Interest beanng assets and interest beanng labilites Floating rate borrowings expose the Group to cash flow
Interest rate nsk and fixed rate borrowings expose the Group to far value interest rate nsk

The Group has a policy of mantaning both long-term fixed rate funding and medium-term floating rate funding so as 1o ensure that
there 1s appropriate flexibility for the Group's operational requirements  The Gireup has entered nto swap arrangements 1o hedge
cash flow risks relating to interest rate movements on a propertion of its debt and has entered into fixed rate debt in the form of
Sterling and US Dallar denominated private placements
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25. Financial risk management (continued)
b) Market rigk (price risk) (continued)
1) Interest rate nisk (continued)

The Group has a policy that 50%-80% of the Group's median gross borrowings cakculated on the latest three-year plan (taking
into account hedging} I1s at a fixed rate, with an average minimum duration of five years and an average maximum duration of
fifteen years At 30 June 2010, 70 4% of the Group's borrowings was at a fixed rate (2009 68 4%)

The exposure of the Group's financial habilies 1o Interest rate nsk 1s as follows

Non-interest

Floating rate Fiead rate bearing
financal financial financial
habilities habilties labilities Total
Group £m £m £m £m
30 June 2010
Financial labilites (excluding dervatives) 7272 2029 1,106 5 2,036 6
Impact of interest rate swaps (480 0) 4800 - -
Financial hability exposure to interest rate nsk 2472 682 9 1,106 6 2,036 6
30 June 2009
Financial labiites (excluding denvatives) 1,209 4 2147 8857 23698
Impact of Interest rate swaps (7650) 7650 - -
Financial iability exposure to interest rate nisk 444 4 10397 83567 2,369 8
The exposure of the Company's financial labilmes to interest rate risk 1s as follows
Non-interest
Floating rate Fixed rate bearing
financial financial financial
lrabilities habilities labilies Total
Company £m £m £m £m
30 June 2010
Financial habilties (excluding dervatives) 8320 2029 297 1,064 6
Impact of Interest rate swaps (480 0) 4800 - -
Financial hability exposure to interest rate nsk 352 0 682 9 207 1,064 6
30 June 2009
Financial liabilties (excluding dervatives) 13127 27147 a3z 1,620 6
Impact of nterest rate swaps (765 O) 7650 - -
Financial hability exposure to interest rate nsk 5477 10397 332 16206

Floating interest rates on Sterling borrowings are Inked to UK bank rate, LIBOR and money market rates  Thefloating rates are
fixed 1IN advance for pericds generally ranging from one fo six months  Short-term flexibility 1s achieved through the use of overdraft,
committed and uncommitted bank faciites  The weighted average interest rate for floating rate borrowings n 2010 was 3 2%

(2009 6 6%)

Sterling private placement notes of £77 8m (2009 £114 2mj) were arranged at fixed nterest rates and exposed the Group to far
value interest rate nsk The weighted average nterest rate for fixed rate Sterling private placement notes for 2010 was 11 8%

(2009 11 5%) with, at 30 June 2010, a weighted average perod of 77 years (2009 8 5 years) for which the rate 1s fixed

US Dollar denominated private placerment notes of £125 1m (2008 £164 8m} were arranged at fixed interest rates and exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate nsk The weighted average interest rate for fixed rate US Dollar denomunated private placement

notes, after the effect of foreign exchange rate swaps, for 2010 was 11 2% (2009 11 09%,) with, at 30 June 2010, a weighted average

penod of 6 8 years (2009 78 years) for which the rate 1s fixed
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28. Financial risk management (continued)

b) Market risk (price nsk) (continued)

1) Interest rate nisk (continued)

Sensihvity analysis

In the year ended 30 June 2010, if UK interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other vanables were held
constant, the Group's pre-tax loss would increase/decrease by £1 8m (2009 £3 9m), the Group's post-tax loss would increase/
decrease by £1 3m (2009 £2 8m} and the Group's equity would decrease/increase by £1 3m {2009 £2 8my)

) Foreign exchange rate nsk

As at 30 June 2010, the Group has fixed rate US Dollar denominated private placerment notes of $187 2m (2009 $271 6m) In order to
mitigate nsks associated with the movement in the foreign exchange rate, the Group has a policy of fully hedging the pnncipal of its
US Dollar denominated debt and a significant proportion of the interest payments The Group therefore entered into foreign exchange
swap arrangements on the issue of its US Dollar denominated debt, all of which are designated as cash flow hedges Accordingly the
Group has no net exposure to foreign currency ngk on the prncipal of ts US Dollar debt The foreign exchange swaps match 76% of
the interest payments and therefore the Group Is subject 1o foreign exchange rate risk upon the remaining 24%

Detaills of the Group's foreign exchange swaps are provided in note 24

Sensitivity analysis

1n the year ended 30 June 2010, if the US Dollar per Pound Sterling exchange rate had been $0 20 igher/lower and all other
vanables were heid constant, the Group's pre-tax loss would increase/decrease by £0 4m (2009 £0 7m), the Group's post-tax loss
would Increase/decrease by £0 3m (2009 £0 5m) and the Group's equity would decrease/increase by £0 3m (2009 £0 5m)

©) Credit nisk

In the mayonty of cases, the Group receives cash upeon legal completion for private sales and receves advance stage payments
from Registered Socia! Landlords for social housing The Group has £136 3m (2009 £86 S5mj of avallable for sale financial assets
which expose It to credit nisk, atthough this asset 1s spread over a large number of properties As such, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers

The Greup manages credt nskon the following ways

» The Group has a credit pelicy that 1s hrted to financial insttutions with high credit ratings as set by international credit rating
agencies and has a policy determining the maximum permissible exposure 1o any single counterparty

+ The Group only contracts dervative financial nstruments with counterparties with which the Greup has an International Swaps
and Denvatives Association Master Agreement in place These agreements permit net settlement, thereby reducing the Group's
credit exposure to iIndividual counterparties

The maximum exposure 1o any counterparty at 30 June 2010 was £100 0m of cash on depost with a financial institution (2009
£31 0m) The carrying amount of financral assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowance for losses, represents
the Group's maximum exposure 1o credit nsk

As at 30 June 2010, the Company was exposed to £898 5m (2009 £1,511 1m) of credit nsk in relation to intercompany loans, as

well as financial guarantees, performance bonds and the bank borrowings of subsiciary undertakings  Further detaills are provided
In notes 32 and 33
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25. Financial risk management (continued)

d) Capital risk management (cash flow risk)

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to contmue as a going concern in order o provide returns
for shareholders and meet its liabilities as they fall due whilst maintaning an appropriate capital structure

The Group manages as capital ts equity, as set out In the condensed consolidated staterment of changes in sharehelders’ equity,
its bank borrowings (being overdrafts, loan netes and bank loans) and ts private placement notes, as set out nnote 23

The Group 18 subject te the prevailing conditions of the UK economy and the Group's earnings are dependent upon the level of UK
house prices UK house prices are detenmined by the UK economy and economic conditions inctuding employment levels, interest
rates, consumer confidence, mortgage avalabiity and competitor pricing The management of these operational nsks is set out In
the principal nsks and uncertainties on pages 26 and 27

In addition, the other methods by which the Group can manage its short-term and long-term capstal structure include adjusting the
level of ardinary dividends pad to shareholders (assuming the Company 1s paying a dvidend), issuing new share capital, arranging
debt tc meet liability payments, and selling assets to reduce debt

26. Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates defined centnbution and defined benefit pension schemes

2010 2008
Defined contnbution schemes £m £m
Contnbuticns dunng the year
Group defined contribution schemas consoldated income statement charge 65 39

At the balance sheet date there were outstanding contrbutions of £0 2m (2009 £0 2m), which were paid on or before the due date

Defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme in the United Kingdom, the Barratt Group Pension & Life Assurance
Scheme (the ‘Scheme’) which is closed 1o new entrants With effect from 30 June 2009, the Scheme ceased to offer future accruat
of defined benefit pensions for current employees and the ink between accrued benefits and future salary increases was removed
This decision was taken following a detaled consultation precess with the Trustees and employee members of the Scheme
Alternative defined contribution pension arrangements are 1n place for current employees

A full actuanal valuation was camed out at 30 November 2007 and updated to 30 June 2010 by a qualified ndependent actuary
The projected unit method has been used to calculate the current service cost Due to the Scheme ceasing to offer future accrual
of defined benefit pensions to employees from 30 June 2009, there 1s no current service cost In the year or Infuture years
Following the completion of the Scheme trenmial actuanal valuation for funding purposes, the Group has agreed to make future
contributions to the Scheme, in addition 1o the normal contnbution payment, of £13 3m per annum until 30 Novernber 2015 to
address the Scheme's deficit and the Group will also meet the Scheme's administration expenses, death in seice premiums and
Pension Protection Fund levy The next tnennial actuanal valuation for funding purposes 1s due with effect from 30 November 2010
At the balance sheet date there were outstanding contnbutions of £11m (2009 £0 4m)
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The assets of the defined benefit scheme have been calculated at far {bid) value The labilities of the Scheme have been calculated
at each balance sheet date using the following assumptions

Pnncipal actuanal assumptions 2010 2009
Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obhigations

Discourt rate 5 40% 6 30%
Rate of compensation increase N/A 4 40%
Rate cf pnce inflation 320% 340%
Weighted average assumpticns to determine net cost

Discount rate 6 30% 6 30%
Expected iong-term rate of return on plan asssts 6 31% 6 82%
Rate of compensation increase N/A 4 70%
Rate of price inflation 3 40% 370%

Members are assumed to exchange 10% of thar penston for cash on retirement The assumptions have been chosen by the Group
following adwice from Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited, the Group’s actuarial advisers

The following table illustrates the Iife expectancy for an average member on reaching age 65, according to the mortality
assumptions used 1o calculate the scheme labiies

Assumptions Male Female
Retrred member born in 1935 (Ife expectancy at age 65} 21 5years 24 6 years
Non-retired member born in 1965 (Iife expectancy at age 55) 24 4years 278 years

The base mortalty assumptions are based upen the PAS2 mortality tables The Group has camed cut a mortality nvestigation of
the Scheme's membership te ensure that this 15 an appropnate assumption  Allowance for future increases In ife expectancy 1s
made in Iine with the medium cohert projection, with an underpin on the annual rete of mprovernent in mortality of 1%

The sensitivities regarding the pnncipal assumptions used to measure the scheme labilities are set out below

Increase in scheme

Assumptions Change in assumption habilities
Discount rate Decrease by01% £51m (2 1%)
Rate of inflation Increase by 01% £2 6m (1 0%}
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year €6 5m (2 6%)
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The amounts recognised In the consalidated income statement were as follows

109

2010 2009

£m £m

Current service cost - 28
Exceptional curtalment gain - {71)
Total pension gain recognised In operating expenses in the consolidated income statement - 4 3)
Interest cost 124 129
Expected return on scheme assets (10 8} {12 6)
Total pension cost recognised in finance costs in the consolidated iIncome statement 16 ¢3
Total pension cost/{gain) recogmsed in the consolidated iIncome statement 16 40

The exceptional curtailment gain in the prior year of £7 1m arose in respect of the cessation of future accrual of defined benefit
pensions for current employees and the associated removal of the ink between accrued benefits and future salary increases

and redundancies made in the year ended 30 June 2009

The amounts recognised In the Group statement of comprehensve Income were as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Expected return less actual return on pension scheme assets (17 6) 205
Loss/gain) ansing from changes in the assumptions underlying the present value
of benefit obligations 439 {6 4)
Total pension cost recogmsed in the Group statement of comprehensive itncome 263 141
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The amount included In the Group and Company balance sheets ansing from obligations 1n respect of the defined benefit pension

scheme I1s as follows

2010 2009
£m £
Present value of funded obligatons 248 3 2019
Far value of scheme assets (202 2) (170 4)
Deficit for funded scheme/net habihty recognised in the Group balance sheet at 30 June 461 315
2010 2009
£m £m
Net lability for defined benefit obligations at 1 July 315 372
Contributions received {13 3) {15 8}
Expense/{gain) recogrised in the consolidated income staterment 186 40
Amounts recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive income 263 141
Net hability for defined benefit obligations at 30 June 461 315
A deferred tax asset of £12 9m (2009 £8 8m) has been recogrised in the Group balance sheet in relation 1o the pension habity
note 16)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obhgations were as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Prasent value of beneft obligaticns at 1 July 2019 2088
Current service cost - 28
Exceptional curtalment gain - {71)
Interest cost 124 129
Scheme participants’ contributions - 16
Actuanal lossAgain) 439 {6 4)
Benefits paid from scheme {9 9) {105)
Premiums paid - {0 2)
Present value of benefit obligations at 30 June 248 3 2019
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
Movements in the far value of scheme assets were as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Fairr value of scheme assets at 1 July 170 4 1716
Expected return on scheme assets 108 126
Actuarial gain/floss) on scheme assets 176 (20 5)
Employer contributions 133 158
Scheme participants’ contributions - 16
Benefits paid from scheme 9 9) (10 5)
Premiums paid - 2
Fair value of scheme assets at 30 June 202 2 1704

The analysis of scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows

2010 2009

Expected Expected

Percentage retumon  Percentage of retum on

of scheme scheme schems schame

assets assets assets assels

Equrty securties 51 5% 714% 50 3% 731%
Debt securities 476% 478% 49 4% 532%
Other 0 9% 0 50% 03% 0 50%
Total 100 0% 5 96% 100 0% 631%

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the current level of expected returns
on nsk free nvestments (primanly Government bonds), the histoncal level of nsk premium associated with other asset classes In
which the portfolio 1s Invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class  The expected retur for each asset class
was then weighted based on the actual asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for
the portfolio

The actual return on scheme assets was as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Actual return on scheme assets 284 (78)
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26. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The five-year history of experience adjustments ansing on scheme (labilites)/assets was as follows

2010 2005 2008 2007 2006
Present value of defined benefit obligations (£m) {248 3} (201 9) {208 8) (232 8} (231 8)
Fair value of scheme assets (£m) 202 2 1704 1716 1678 1411
Deficit 1 the scheme (£m) (46 1} {315) 372 (64 9} ©07)
Experence adjustment in scheme liabilies {£my) - - 14 {13 2) -
Percentage of scheme habiiities (%) - - 55 {57) -
Experience adjustment in scheme assets {£m) 176 {20 5) (173 76 80
Percentage of schermne assets (%) a7 (120 (10 1) 45 57
Amount recognised in the Group statement of
comprehensive INCome (£m) 263 141 20 1) (13 4) -
Percentage of scherne assets (%) 130 83 {117} 80) -

The cumutative amount of actuarial gans and losses since 30 June 2005 recogrused in the Group statement of comprehensive
income Is a loss of £6 9m

The expected employer contnbution to the defined benefit pension scheme in the year ending 30 June 2011 15 £13 3m

21, Share capital

2010 2009
£m £m

Allotted and 1ssued ordinary shares
10p each fully paid 965,215,015 ordinary shares (2009 346,718,019) 96 5 347

Dunng the year, 7,406,014 options over the Company's shares were granted under the Company's Executive Share Option Scheme
and 4,160,038 options were granted under the Senior Management Share Option Plan 2009/2010 and 2,144,435 options were
granted under the SAYE Scherme

During the year, 55,240 shares were issued to satisfy early exercises under the 2009 SAYE Scheme
On 18 October 2009 the Company 1ssued 72,916,666 new ordinary shares by way of a Placing at 240 pence per share

On 19 October 2009 the Company prowvisionally allotted 545,525,090 new ordinary shares in respect of a 1.3 for 1 Rights Issue
at a pnce of 100 pence per share This allotment was subsequently confirmed on the closing of the Rights Issue

The Placing and the Rights Issue generated gross proceeds to the Company of £720 5m After costs of £27 5m the Placing and
the Rights Issue generated net proceeds 1o the Company of £693 Om

The Barratt Developments PLC Employee Benefit Trust (the *EBT'} holds 3,828,314 (2009 1,711,046) ordinary shares in the
Company During the year the EBT participated in the Rights Issue and conseguently purchased 2,224,359 ordinary shares for
£2,224,359 The cost of the shares held by the EBT, at an average of 128 B pence per share (2009 165 9 pence per share} was
£5,062,765 (2009 £2,838,386) The marketl value of the shares held by the EBT at 30 June 2010 at 94 8 pence per share (2009
147 5 pence per share) was £3,724,990 (2009 £2,523,793) The shares are held in the EBT for the purpose of satisfying options
that have been granted under The Barratt Developments PLC Executve and Employee Share Option Plans These ordinary shares
do not rank for dvidend and do net count in the calculation of the weighted average number of shares used to calculate earmings
per share untif such time as they are vested to the relevant employee
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28. Share-based payments
a) Details of the share-based payment schemes

1) Executive Share Option Flan

In Navemnber 1997, the Company adopted the Executive Share Option Plan (the 'ESOP) The grant of share optons under the
ESOP ts at the discretion of the Remuneration Committes, taking into account indvidual performance and the overall performance
of the Group Options must be held for a mimimum of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse if
not exercised within ten years from the date of grant The exercise of options granted under the ESOP 1$ subject to the achievernent
of an objective performance condition set by the Remuneration Committee, namely that the growth in the basic earnings per share
of the Company over a perod of three consecutive financial years should exceed the grawth in the Retail Price Index by at least 6%
for options granted in 1997 and 1998, and by at least 9% for those options granted in and since 1999 No options may be granted
under the ESOP after 18 December 2007

1) Employee Share Option Plan

In Novemnber 1999, the Company adopted an Employee Share Option Plan (the ‘Employee Plan’) The Board approves the grant

of share options to employees under this Employes Plan which are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date
of grant The exercise of the options granted under the Employee Plan is subject to the achievernent of an objectve performance
condition set by the Board, namely that the growth in the basic earnings per share of the Company over a penod of three
consecutive financial years shoukd exceed the growth in the Retall Price Index by at least 9% No options may be granted under
the Employee Plan after 10 Apnl 2010

Those who have participated in the Executive Share Option Plan do not participate in the Employee Share Option Plan

m) Long-Term Performance Plan
The Long-Term Performance Plan {the 'LTPP') was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held in November
2003 to take effect from 1 Juty 2003

No LTPP awards were granted in the financial year ended 30 June 20089 or 30 June 2010 The Commitiee is proposing to use
the LTPP in the year ending 30 June 2011

Awards under the LTPP are at the discretion of the Committee, taking into account ndividual performance and the overall
performance of the Group An employee s not eligible to receve options under the ESOS and awards under the LTPP in the
same financial year

Awards under the LTPP are based on an annual allocation of notional ordinary shares eguvalent in vale to a maximum of 200%
of basic salary with vesting taking place at the expiry of the three-year performance pernod of the plan, subject to attainment of
the agreed performance targets There is no re-testing of performance conditions 50% of the award will vest on attainment of

a performance target based on TSR and 50% based on EPS growth

The Committee considers these targets to be tha most appropriate measure of financial performance for a housebuilder at the
tme of the awards, as they are fundamental measures of the Group's undertying performance and are directly inked to the
generation of returns to shareholders

For awards made In 2007, the comparator group for the TSR portion of the award companses those companies, excluding
mvestment trusts, ranked 51-100 in the FTSE Index  For the TSR element of the award, 50% of the total award will vest if the
Company's TSR measured over a three-year period ranks at the upper quartile or above against the TSR of the comparator
group 10% of the total award will vest If the TSR ranks at the medtan and no part of the award will vest f the TSR ranks
below the median The award will vest on a straght-line basis between the upper and lower targets
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28. Share-based payments (continued)

a) Details of the share-based payment schemes (continued)

m) Long-Term Performance Plan {continued)

For awards made in 2007, the targets are as follows for the EPS element of the target, the full 50% will vest if EPS growth exceeds
the RPI plus 18% and 10% will vest if EPS growth exceeds the RPI plus 9%, for performance in between, the awards will vest on a
straght-line basis The ERPS for the Company 1s calculated by dviding the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
by the weighted average number of ardinary shares in issue duning the year, excluding those held by the Employee Benefit Trust

1v) Seruor Managernent Share Option Plan

In December 2009, the Company adopted the Senior Management Share Option Plan 2008-2012 (the 'Plan’) The Board approves
the grant of share options to employees under the Plan which are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date
of grant, provided the employee remains employed by the Company It s mtended that the grant of options under the Plan will be a
one-off event and those who participate in the Plan are not eligible to participate in the Long-Term Performance Plan or Executive
Share Option Scheme, therefore Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in the Plan

v) Executive Share Option Scheme

In November 2008, the Company adopted the Executive Share Ophon Scheme (the 'ESOS") The grant of share options under the
ESQOS s at the discretion of the Remuneration Commities, taking into account Indwidual performance and the overall performance
of the Group Options must be held for a minimum of three years from the date of grant before they can be exercised and lapse If
not exercised within ten years from the date of grant The exercise of options granted under the ESOS 1s subyject to the achieverment
of an objective performance condition set by the Remuneration Committee, which for options granted in 2008 was based upon
Return On Capital Employed {ROCE") There will be no opportunity to retest any performance ¢ntena The ROCE performance
condition 15 underpinned by the requirement that the Committee 1s satished that vesting determined by the ROCE condition is

such that it correctly reflects the underlying financial performance of the Company across the performance period

For options granted in 2008, 100% of the option will vest if the ROCE for the financial year ending 30 June 2011 reaches 14 5%,
25% of the award will vest if the ROCE reaches 10 5% and no part of the award will vest if the ROCE 1s below 10 5% The award
will vest on a straight-hne basis between the upper and lower targets ROCE will be calculated as operating profit (measured across
the whole year to 30 June 2011) dwded by shareholder funds plus net debt less any intangible assets {(being the average of the

12 month end figures dunng the same year) The Committee considered that ROCE was the most rounded measure of financial
performance for a housebuilder at the tme of this award and was satisfied that the ROCE target range represented a stretching
target considenng the cutiook for the housebuiiding market
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28. Share-based payments (continued)

a) Details of the share-based payment schemes (continued)

v1) Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

In Novernber 2008, the Company adopted the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (the ‘SRSOS') Under the SRSOS,
participants are required to make monthly contributions to an HM Treasury approved savings contract with a bank or bulding
society for a pertod of three years On entenng into the savings contract participants were granted an option to acquire ordinary
shares in the Company at an exercise price determined under the rules of the SRSOS The exercise of options under the SRSOS
1S not subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition as the SRSOS s HM Revenue and Customs approved and open to
all eligible employees The first grant under the SRSOS was made on 3 February 2009 at an exercise price of 8705 pence per
share (which was subsequently adjusted fo reflect the Rights Issue to 5705 pence) The second grant under the SRSOS was
made on 31 March 2010 at an exercise price of 116 18 pence per share

vi) Management Incentive Plan

In May 2009, the Company adopted the Management Incentve Plan 2008-2011 (the ‘Plan’) The Plan entitles participants to a
cash bonus iinked to the Company's share price, subject ta the achievement of an objective performance condition set by the
Remuneration Committee, based upon ROCE for the financial year ending 30 June 2011 There will be no opportunity to retest
any performance cnterna The ROCE performance conditien 1s underpinned by the requirement that the Committee 1s satisfied
that vesting determined by the ROCE condition is such that it correctly reflects the undertying financial performance of the
Company across the performance penod

viu) Co-Investment Plan

The Co-Investment Plan {the ‘Plan’} was approved by shareholders at the AGM held in November 2005 and any annual bonus
earned above target will normally be compulsorily deferred mnto shares held under this Plan The Executive Directors also have
the opportunity to voluntarly defer additional amounts of annual bonus up to a maximum of 25% of basic salary nto the Plan

Matching awards will then be made by the Company, at the rate of one for one for compuisory deferral and at a masamum of four

tor one for voluntary deferral, matching awards will be subject to performance conditions measured over a pencd of three years
The relevant performance conditions are the same as those used for the LTPP as detated on page 113
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28. Share-based payments {(continued)

b) Outstanding equity-settled share-based payments

At 30 June 2010, the following options 1ssued in accordance with the rules of the Executive Share Option Plan, the Serwor
Management Share Option Plan, the Employee Share Option Plan, the Long-Term Performance Plan, the Executive Share Option
Scheme, the Co-Investment Plan and the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme were outstanding

Option pnce 2010 Not exercisable
Date of grant perce Number after
Executive Share Option Plan
27 October 2000 179 35073 26 October 2010
1 Novemnber 2001 216 51,845 31 October 2011
22 October 2002 285 329,176 21 October 2012
10 October 2003 357 874,099 9 Qctober 2013
Total Executive Share Option Plan options 1,290,193
Executive Share Cption Scheme
18 December 2008 (approved”) 410 899,982 17 December 2018
18 December 2008 (unapproved”) 36 8,656,586 17 December 2018
25 September 2009 36 1,016,656 16 December 2018
10 December 2009 (approved-) 18 25,458 9 December 2019
10 December 2008 (unapproved®} 121 6,318471 9 December 2019
Total Executive Share Option Scheme options 16,917,153
Sensor Management Share Option Plan
10 December 2009 {approved”) 18  3,005330 9 December 2019
10 December 2009 {unapproved™) 121 1,060,353 9 December 2019
Total Servor Management Share Option Plan options 4,065,683
Employee Share Option Plan
29 March 2001 207 12,192 28 March 2011
25 April 2002 308 48,776 24 Aprl 2012
14 May 2004 387 490,208 13 May 2014
Total Employee Share Opton Plan options 551176
Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
3 February 2000 57 13,229,254 30 Septermber 2012
30 March 2010 116 2,121,002 31 December 2013
Total Savings-Related Share Option Scheme options 15,350,256
Total share options 38,174,461
Long-Term Performance Plan
21 December 2007 - 3,613,185 -
Total Long-Term Performance Plan awards 3,613,185
Co-Investment Plan
18 October 2007 - 126,532 -
Total Co-Investment Plan awards 126,532
Total 41,914178

* The Executve Share Option Schema and the Senior Management Share Option Plan are dvided nto two sub-schemes, one of which s
approved under the Income Tax {Earmings and Pensions) Act 2003 and the other which is not, and the axercise price is calculated differently

for each sub-scheme in accordance with the nies of the sub-scheme

The exercise prices and the number of shares under option have been adjusted following the Rights Issug in November 2009
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28. Share-based payments (continued)
c) Outstanding cash-settled share-based payments
At 30 June 2010, the following award units Issued In accordance with the rules of the Management Incentive: Plan were outstanding

Award pnce 2010
Date of grant pence Number Nat exercisable after
Management Incentive Plan
6 May 2009 57 8,008,282 30 June 20N
Total Management Incentive Plan 8,009,282

d) Number and weighted average exercise price of outstanding share-based payments
The number and weighted average exercise prices of options 1ssued under the Executive Share Option Plan were as follows

Weighted
average Weghted

exercise 2010 average 2009

pnice in Numberof  exercsepnce Number of

pence optons In pence options

QCutstanding at 1 July 493 1,062,210 476 1,399,712

Adjustment for Rights lssue - 477,716 - -
Forferted dunng the year 399 {249,732) 423 {337,502)

Qutstanding at 30 June 328 1,290,193 493 1,062,210

Exercisable at 30 June 328 1,290,193 493 1,062,210

The number and weighted average exercise prices of options 1ssued under the Employee Share Option Plan were as follows

Weighted
average Weightect

exercise 2010 average 2009

pnce n Numberof  eerase pnoe Nurmber of

pence options n pence options

Qutstanding at 1 July 566 450,800 555 565,950
Adjustrrent for Rights Issue - 236,598 - -
Forferted dunng the year 350 (136,222) 515 {115,150)
Qutstanding at 30 June 376 551,176 566 450,800
Exercisable at 30 June 376 551176 566 450,800
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28. Share-based payments (continued)

d) Number and weighted average exercise price of outstanding share-based payments

(continued)
The nurnber and weightedt average exercise prices of awards made under the Long-Term Performance Plan were as follows
Weighted Waighted
average 2010 average 2009
exercise Numberof  exerciga pnce Number of
pnce In pence opbons N pance options
Outstanding at 1 July -~ 3,342,996 - 4,730,696
Adjustment for Righis Issue - 1,309,086 - -
Forferted durnng the year - {1,038,897) - {1,387,700)
Qutstanding at 30 June - 3613185 - 3,342,096

Exercisable at 30 June -

The number and weighted average exercise pnces of options granted under the Executive Share Cplion Scheme were as follows

Weighted Waighted

average 2010 average 2009

exercise  Numberof exercise price Number of

price in pence optons In pence options

Qutstanding at 1 July 56 6,666,667 - -
Adjustment for Rights Issue - 3,849,885 - -
Forfeited dunng the year 70 (1,005,413) - -
Granted dunng the year 115 7,406,014 58 6,668,667
Qutstanding at 30 June 68 16,917,153 56 6,666,667

Exercisable at 30 June -

The number and wesghted average exercise prices of options granted under the Senior Management Share Option Plan were as follows

Weighted Wasghted

average 2010 BVerage 2009

EXercise Numberof  exercise pnoe Nurnber of

price i pence optons N Penoe Opions

Cutstanding at 1 July - - - -
Forfeited during the year 19 {94,355) - -
Granted dunng the year 119 4,160,038 - -
Qutstanding at 30 June 119 4,065,683 - -

Exercisable at 30 June -

The number and weighted average exercise prices of optrons granted under the Savings-Related Share Opbion Scheme were as foliows

Wesghted Wasghted

average 2000 average 2009

exercise Numberof  exercise price Number of

price in pance ophons in pence options

Outstanding at 1 July 87 9,690,675 - -
Adjustment for Rights Issue - 4,912,820 - -
Forfeited dunng the year 65  {1,319,495) 87 (78,600)
Granted dunng the year 16 2,144,435 87 9,769,275
Exercised during the year 61 (78,179) - -
Outstanding at 30 June 65 15,350,256 87 9,690,675

Exercisable at 30 June -
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28. Share-based payments (continued)

d) Number and weighted average exercise price of outstanding share-based payments

(continued)

The number and weighted average award price of awards made under the Management Incentve Plan were as follows

Werghted Waghted
average 2010 average 2009
exercise Nummberof  axeaiss price Number of

price Inpence  award units N pence award units

Qutstanding at 1 July 87 5,633,726 - -

Adjustment for Rights lssue - 2,957,620 - -

Ferteited during the year 57 {582,063) - -

Granted dunng the year - - 87 5,633,725

Outstanding at 30 June §7 8,009,282 87 5,633,725

Exercisable at 30 June - - - -

The number and weighted average award price of awards made under the Co-Investment Plan were as follows

Weightad Weighted
average 2010 average 2009
exarcise Numberof exercse pnce Number of
price in pence  award units n pence award units

Qutstanding at 1 July - 101,623 - 103,443

Adjustment for Rights Issue - 48,296 - -

Lapsed dunng the year - {17,317) - 1,820)

Exercised during the year - (6,070) - -

Qutstanding at 30 June - 126,532 - 101,623

Exercisable at 30 June -

The weighted average share price, at the date of exercise, of share options exercised during the year was 136 3p No share options
were exercised dunng the pnor year The weighted average Iife for all schemes outstanding at the end of the year was 5 6 years

(2009 4 9 years)
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28. Share-based payments (continued)
€) Income statement charge

A charge to the income statement has been made for the awards issued on or after 7 Novermber 2002 that had not vested at

1 January 2005 in accordance with IFRS2 ‘Share-based Payments'

1} Executive Share Option Scheme

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during 2010 was 35p (2009 48p) per award The awards have been valued

using a Black-Scholes model
The weghted average inputs to the Black-Scholes model were as follows
Grants
2010 2009
Average share price 17p 72p
Average exercise price 115p 56p
Expected volatility 36 6% 96 6%
Expected life 3 6 years 30 years
Risk free interest rate 176% 249%
Expected dnvidends 0 43% —

Expected volatiity was determined by reference to the historical volatilty of the Group's share price over a period consistent with
the expected Ife of the options  The expected life used N the models has been adusted, based on the Directors’ best estimate,

for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations

1) Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during 2010 was 32p (2009 39p) per award The awards have been valued

using a Black-Scholes model

The weighted average inputs to the Black-Scholes model were as follows

Grants
2010 2009
Average share price 125p 70p
Average exercise price 116p 87p
Expected volatility 307% 96 6%
Expected Iife 3 0years 3 0vyears
Risk free interest rate 202% 224%
Expected dividends Q0 47% -
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28. Share-bhased payments (continued)

€) Income statement charge (continued)

1) Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (continued)

Expected volatiity was determined by reference to the histencal volatiity of the Group's share price over a penod consistent with
the expected hfe of the options  The expected Ife used in the models has been adjusted, based on the Directors' best estimate,
far the effects of non-transferabikity, exercise restrictions and behavioural consideraticns

111} Senior Management Share Option Plan
The weighted average far value of the options granted dunng 2010 was 24p (2002 nil pence) per award The awards have been

valued using a Black-Scholes model

The weighted average inputs to the Black-Scheles model were as follows

Grants

2010

Average share price 10p
Average exercise price 119p
Expected volatility 307%
Expected iife 3 7 years
Risk free interest rate 169%
Expected dwvidends C 47%

Expected volatiity was determined by reference to the histoncal volatility of the Group’s share price over a penod consistent with
the expected life of the options  The expected life used In the models has been adjusted, based on the Directors' best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferabiity, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations
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28. Share-based payments (continued)
e) Income statement charge (conhnued)
1v) Management Incentive Plan

No awards were granted during 2010

The weighted average fair value of the awards granted dunng 2009 was 106p per award The awards have been valued using a
Black-Scholes model

The weighted average Inputs to the Black-Scholes model were as follows

Awards

2010 2009

Average share price - 149p
Average exercise pnce - B7p
Expected volatiity - 96 6%
Expected Iife - 3 Qvyears
Risk free interest rate - 222%

Expected dwvidends - _

Expected volatility was determined by reference to the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over a penod consistent with
the expected e of the options  The expected life used In the models has been adusted, based on the Directors’ best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

v) Total expense

The Group recognised a credit of £0 2m (2008 £2 8m expensea) In respect of equity-settled share based payment transactions
and a credit of £0 4m (2008 £15m expense) for cash-settled share-based payrment transactions for the year ended 30 June
2010 As at 30 June 2010, an accrual of £1 8m (2009 £1 9m) was recognised in respect of socal secunty habiliies on
share-based payments
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29. Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the gans or losses on denvative financial instrurnents that have been
designated as hedges by the Company

Losses on cash flow hedges of £43 6m (2009 £62 8m) relate to losses on interest rate swaps of £31 2m (2009 £81 0m), payments
on interest rate swaps of £26 Om (2009 £12 1m} and gains on foreign exchange swaps of €13 6m (2009 £303m} A gan of £11 9m
{2009 £7 2m) was realised upon cancellation of $103 9m of foreign exchange swaps following repayment of $103 9m US Dollar
private placement notes on 16 Novermber 2009

Transfers from income staterment on cash flow hedges of £14 1m (2008 €21 7m to Income statement) refate to payments on
interest rate swaps of £26 Om (2009 £12 1m) and foreign exchange losses of £11 9m {2009 £33 8m) A loss of £11 9m (2009

£7 2m) was realised following repayment of $103 8m US Dollar private placernent notes on 18 November 2009 Cumulative losses
on interest rate swaps of £50 1m were recogrused In the income statement as an exceptional tem following the cancellation of
interest swaps

Merger reserve
The merger reserve comprises the non-statutory premium ansing on shares 1ssued as consideration for acqusiton of subsidianes
where merger relief under section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 applies

Own shares
The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Barratt Developments PLC purchased in the market and held by the
EBT on behalf of the Company in order to satsty options and awards under the Company's incentive schemes

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the obligation of the Group in relation to equity-settled share-based
payment fransactons

Parent Company income statement

In accordance with the provisions of secton 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement for the Parent
Company has not been presented The Company's loss for the year was £143 6m (2009 £202m}
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30. Cash flows from operating activities

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes £m £m £m £m
Loss for the year from continuing operations {118 4) (468 B} (143 6) (20 2}
Tax {44 5) {210 3 (46 3) (5 5}
Finance ncome (13 4) (18 O} (55 9) (757}
Finance costs 2491 2086 2147 1873
Share of post-tax loss from joint ventures 15 30 - -
Profit/{loss) from operations 743 {485 3} {311} (141}
Amarusation of deferred loss on swaps 5 92 04 02 04
Depreciation 12 36 51 20 12
Imparment of inventones 17 48 499 5 - -
Imparrment of available for sale financial assets 15 61 237 - -
Share-based payments (credity/charge 28 (0 6) 43 01 02
Imputed interest on deferred term land payables 5 {26 5) {19 8) - -
Imputed interest on avalable for sale financial assets 5,15 70 12 - -
Amortisation of tacility fees 5 9 4) (17 4) {9 4) (17 4)
Imputed interest on Kickstart equity funding 5 {02) - - -
Write-off of previous faciity unamortised fees 5 (310) - {310) -
Finance costs related to employee benefits 5,26 {16) 03} 16) 03
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 - 04 - -
Deferred tax on far vatue adjustment - @33 - -
Total non-cash items (47 6) 5030 {39 7) {15 9)
Decrease in nventones 1937 795 5 - -
(Increase)/decrease n trade and other recevables {23 9) 638 $n57 3663
Increasef{decrease} n rade and other payables 198 2 1321 9) 62 {212
Increase in availabie for sale financial assets {55 9) 43 3) - -
Total movements in working capital 321 494 1 409 5 3381
Interest paid (101 2) {155 3) (93 4) {153 8)
Tax receved 538 513 - 2589
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2914 407 8 245 3 181 2
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31. Operating lease obligations

a) The Group as lessee

At 30 June 2010, the Group had cutstanding comrmitments for future mimmum lease payments under non cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows

Group
2010 2009

Land and Land and
bulldings Other buldings Other
£m £m £m Em
Within one year 130 3.3 74 34
More than one year and no later than five years 195 5.5 192 31
In five years or mors 84 - 110 -
409 88 376 65

Operating tease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain office properties and maotor vehicles Mator vehicle
leases have an average term of 2 5 years {2009 1 3 years) to expiry Property leases have an average term of 20 years (2009
3 3 years) to expiry

Al 30 June 2010, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minkmum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows

Company
2010 2009

Land and Land and
bulldings Other buldings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 07 0.3 08 03
More than one year and no later than five years 21 06 22 04
In five years or more (1] - 11 -
36 0.8 41 07

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for certain office properties and metor vehicles Motor vehicle
leases have an average term of 2 5 years (2009 1 8 years} to expiry Property leases have an average term of 54 years (2009

57 years) 1o expiry

b) The Group as lessor
Property rental ncome sarmed dunng the year was £3 3m 2009 £3 4m)

The Group has lease agreements with third parties for certain commercial properties either in the process of development or which
have been developed by the Group, and units on land to be subsequently developed for residential use It 1s intended that the
commercial properties, with their future rental income, will be sold to third parties in the normal course of business, and therefore
they are classified as work in progress until the date of sale At 30 June 2010, these properties had a carrying-value of £9 Om (2009
£70mj, and land with rental units had a carrying-value of £47 Sm (2009 £45 9m) At 30 June 2010, these rental agreements had an
average term of 2 6 years (2009 2 8 years) to expiry ard total rental recevables over the remaning lease pericd are £9 0m (2009

£4 9m) with £3 Tm {2009 £1 5m) withun one year, £4 6m (2008 £2 7m) In more than one year and no later than ive years and £1 3m
(2009 20 7m) in five years or more
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Financial statements
Notes to the financial statements

32. Contingent liabilities
a) Contingent habihties related to subsidianes
The Company has guaranteed certain bank borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings

Certain subsidiary undertakings have commitments for the purchase of trading stock entered into n the normal course of business

In the normal course of business the Group has given counter indemnibes In respect of performance bonds and financial
guarantees Management estimate that the bonds and guarantees amount to £399 Om (2009 £417 5m), and confirm that at the
date of these financial statements the possibility of cash outflow s considered minmal and no provision 1 required

b) Contingent habilities related to joint ventures
The Group has guaranteed certain bank borrowings of its joint ventures, amounting to £nil at the year end (2008 £3 9m)

At 30 June 2010, the Group has an obligation to repay £0 9m {2009 £0 9m) of grant monies receved by a joint venture upon
certain future disposals of land

The Group also has a number of performance guarantees in respect of its joint ventures, requinng the Group to complete
development agreement contractual obligations in the event that the joint ventures do not perform what 1s expected under
the terms of the related contracts

¢) Contingent habilihes related to subsidiaries and jomnt ventures

Provision 1s made for the Directors’ best estimate of all known legal claims and alllegal actions inprogress  The Group takes legal
advice as to the Iikelhood of success of claims and actions and no provision I1s made where the Drectors consider, based on
that achwice, that the action 1s unlikely to succeed, or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potential obligations cannot be made

1) Incident at Battersea Park Road, London

One of the principal subsidianes within the Group 1s BDW Trading Ltd {'BDW') On Tuesday 26 September 20086 at Battersea Park
Road, London, a tower crane supplied to BDW {with operator} by a third party contractor collapsed The collapse of the crane
was not contained within the boundanes of the site and the crane operator and a member of the public were kiled In addition,
significant damage was caused to a neighbouring block of flats and shops which resulted in the evacuation of a number of local
residents due to concerns about structural stability There 1s an ongoing criminal nvestigation currently being carned out by the
London Metropolitan Police and the Health and Safety Executive to ascertain whether any of the parties involved are cnminally
hable for manslaughter or under relevant heatth and safety legislation Although nc assurance can be given, the Board has been
adwvised that on the information available as at 7 September 2010, being the last practcable date prior to the publication of this
Annual Report and Accounts, the nsk of a finding of cnminal lability against BDW )is low A number of civil claims brought against
BDW in connection with the same incident have now been settled All such claims are covered by the Group's Insurance, to the
exient not recoverable from the third party contractor's insurers

1} Incident at Bedfont Azure Lakes

On 28 February 2008, a resident was found dead and another seriously Inured in housing asscciation accommaodation at the
Bedfont Lakes, Azure site that was developed by BDW It 1s believed that the cause of both the death and the serous injury was
due to carbon monoxide poisoning Following investigations by the Police and the Health and Safety Executive criminal
proceedings have been commenced aganst both the plumbing and heating sub-contractor utilsed by BDW for the development
for a breach of health and safety legislation, and against an individual registered gas engineer for manslaughter caused by gross
neghgence and breach of gas safety legislation The Police and Health and Safety Executive investigations are still ongoing Claims
have been made aganst BDW by both the housing association and by vanous residents on the estate where the incident occurred
A number of clams have been settled by the Group’s Insurers but the remainder are still cutstanding and are being dealt with by
the Group's Insurers, although the extent to which these are covered by the Group's nsurance or the Insurance of other parties
cannot, at present, be clearly ascertaned
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33. Related party transactions

a) Remuneration of key personnel

Disclosures related to the remuneration of key personnel as defined N 1AS24 'Related Party Disclosures” are gven in note 8
There 1s no difference between transactions with key management personnel of the Compary and the Group

b) Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company has entered into fransactions with s subsidiary undertakings in respect of funding and Group services
(which include management accounting and audit, sales and marketing, IT, company secretanal, architects and purchasing)
Recharges are made to the subsidianes based on utiisation of these services

The amount outstanding to the Company from subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2010 totalled £898 5m (2009 £1,5111m)
There was no amount owed by the Company to subsidiary undertakangs at 30 June 2010 (2009 £nil)

Duning the year ended 30 June 2010, the Company made management charges to subsidianes of £24 2m (2008 £22 0m}
and receved nterest on Group loans from subsichanes of £55 5m (2009 £171 1m)

The Company and Group have entered into counter-indemnities in the normal course of business in respect of performance bonds

¢) Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures

The Group has pnncipally entered into transactions with its joint ventures in respect of funding, development management services
twith charges made based on the utdisation of these services) and purchases of land and work In progress These: transactions
totalled £1 9m {2009 £19m) £0 3m {2009 £06m) and £nil {2009 £18 5m)

The amount of outstanding loans and interest due to the Group from its jont ventures at 30 June 2010 1s disclosed in note 13
The amount of other outstanding payables to the Group from its joint ventures at 30 June 2010 totalled £nil (2009 £rul}

The Group has alsc dunng the year provided bank guarantess to the value of £26 Om (2009 £26 Om) to twoof its joint venture
partners No provisions have been made for doubtfil debts in respect of the amounts owed by the related paries
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128 Other mformation

FIVE-YEAR RECORD, FINANCIAL
CALENDAR, GROUP ADVISERS, COMPANY
INFORMATION AND LIFE PRESIDENT

Five-yearrecord

2008 2007 2006
2010 2009 (restated} frestated’) {restated')
Group revenue (£m) 2,035 2 2,286 2 35647 3,046 1 24314
(Loss)/profit before tax (£m) (162 9) 678 9) 1373 424 8 3853
Share caprital and equity {£m) 2,900 2 23316 28678 29076 1,6290
Per ordinary share
Basic {loss)/earnings per share {pence?) {14 5) (891) 164 756 74 4
Dividend paxd (pence) - - 3653 3207 28 33

' The results for the years ended 30 June 2008, 30 June 2007 and 30 June 2006 have been restated as disclosed n previous Annual Reports
2 Earrings per share has been adjusted to reflect the Rights Issue as required by IAS33 'Earnings per Share

Financial calendar
The following dates have been announced or are indicative of future dates

Announcement

2010 Annual General Meeting and Intenm Management Statement 17 November 2010
201011 Interm/half year results February 2011
Intenm Management Statement May 2011
2010/11 Annual Results Announcement September 2011

Group advisers
Registrars
Capita Registrars
The Registry
34 Beckenham Read
Beckenham Solicitors
Kent Slaughter and May
BR3 4TU
Brokers and Investment Bankers
Requstered Auditors Credit Suisse Secunities (Europe) Limited

Deloitte LLP UBS Investrment Bank
London

Company information
Registered in England and Wales Company number 604574
Registered address Barratt House, Cartwnght Way, Forest Business Park, Bardon Hill, Coalville, Leicestershire LEGT 1UF

Life President

Sir Lawrence Barratt founded the first Barratt Company in 1958 and was knighted for his services to the industry in 1982
He retired as Non-Executve Chairman in Novemper 1997 assuming the role of Life President
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